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DESIGN CONCEPT

The golden arc on the cover is a symbol of the exciting opportunities 

driven by business development of Sinopec Kantons. The gold in the 

background alongside the blue ocean goes hand in hand with the growth 

of our Company. The tanker sailing across the vast oceans signifies the 

forward-driven future for Sinopec Kantons.

STRIVE TO BECOME
A WORLD-CLASS
INTERNATIONAL PETROCHEMICAL
STORAGE AND LOGISTICS
COMPANY
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COMPANY AT A GLANCE

Jetty, Storage and Logistics in China
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1. Tangshan Caofeidian Shihua
 Berth: 1
 Largest tanker capacity: 300,000 tonnes
  Designed throughput capacity:  

20mm tonnes p.a.

3. Qingdao Shihua
 Berth: 13 
 Largest tanker capacity: 300,000 tonnes
  Designed throughput capacity:  

84mm tonnes p.a.
 Storage capacity: 1.032mm m3

2. Tianjin Port Shihua
 Berth: 1
  Largest tanker capacity: 300,000 tonnes
  Designed throughput capacity:  

20mm tonnes p.a.

4. Rizhao Shihua
 Berth: 3
 Largest tanker capacity: 300,000 tonnes
  Designed throughput capacity: 

56mm tonnes p.a.

7. Zhan Jiang Port Petrochemical
 Berth: 13
 Largest tanker capacity: 300,000 tonnes
  Designed throughput capacity:  

44mm tonnes p.a.
 Storage capacity: 1.008mm m3

COMPANY AT A GLANCE

5. Ningbo Shihua
 Berth: 3
 Largest tanker capacity: 450,000 tonnes
  Designed throughput capacity:  

35mm tonnes p.a.

6. Huizhou Huade Petrochemical
 Berth: 4
 Largest tanker capacity: 300,000 tonnes
  Designed throughput capacity:  

31.9mm tonnes p.a.
 Storage capacity: 1.34mm m3

 Length of crude oil pipeline: 174 km
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Storage Logistics

Storage and Logistics outside China

Storage LNG Vessels
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11.  Fujairah Oil Terminal,  
United Arab Emirates,  
Middle East 

 Storage tank: 34
 Storage capacity: 1.155mm m3

12.  Batam Island, Indonesia
The Board has decided to cease to 
proceed with the Batam Project

8.  Vesta Terminal Tallinn, 
Estonia, Europe

 Storage tank: 35
 Storage capacity: 405,600 m3

9.  Vesta Terminal Flushing,  
the Netherlands, Europe

 Storage tank: 27
 Storage capacity: 388,500 m3

10.  Vesta Terminal Antwerp, 
Belgium, Europe

 Storage tank: 45
 Storage capacity: 934,000 m3

14.  Australia Pacific   
LNG Project

 Vessel: 6
 Each vessel capacity: 174,000 m3

13.  Papua New Guinea  
LNG Project

 Vessel: 2
 Each vessel capacity: 172,000 m3



Storage and Logistics outside China

4
countries
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2.88
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Dear Shareholders,

2022 has been an extraordinary and challenging year. 

The Company’s production and operation has faced 

considerable challenges due to the persistent COVID-19 

pandemic, the intensification of geopolitical conflicts 

and the turbulence in the financial markets caused by 

successive interest rate hikes in the United States. As a 

result of a combination of the aforementioned factors, 

the momentum of global economic growth has reduced, 

causing a profound impact on the global energy industry 

as there has been a material adjustment in the pattern 

of energy supply and demand, resulting in a reduction 

in demand for oil and gas and wide price fluctuations. In 

face of the severe and complicated operating situation, 

Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and 

its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) actively responded 

to the difficulties, and focused on strengthening the 

coordination of its production and operation, reform and 

development and risk prevention and control to ensure 

safe and stable production and operation of the Group’s 

operating entities. On behalf of the board (the “Board”) 

of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, I would 

like to express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders for 

their concern and support, and to all staff for their hard 

work and dedication under the difficult circumstances.

Under the proactive deployment and leadership of the 

Board, in 2022, the Group continued to implement 

refined management, actively reduced costs and increased 

efficiency, and strived to explore development opportunities 

to further expand the scale of the Group’s operations. 

In 2022, the Group has resolved certain historical legacy 

issues appropriately, effectively mitigated the risks of its 

operating entities and made adequate provision for the 

equity of operating entities with indications of impairment 

LOOKING AHEAD TO 2023, DESPITE FACING 
UNFAVOURABLE FACTORS SUCH AS INFLATION 
RISKS, GEOPOLITICAL CONFLICTS AND A 
SLOWDOWN IN GLOBAL ECONOMIC GROWTH, 
THE CHANGE IN GLOBAL COVID-19 PANDEMIC 
SITUATION AND THE STEADY UPTREND OF THE 
ECONOMY OF THE PRC, HAS GIVEN IMPETUS TO 
THE GLOBAL ECONOMIC RECOVERY. THE GROUP 
WILL SEIZE THE OPPORTUNITIES AND ENDEAVOR 
TO ACHIEVE ITS ANNUAL PRODUCTION AND 
OPERATION TARGETS. THE GROUP WILL ALSO 
STRIVE TO EXPAND ITS CORE BUSINESSES TO 
PROMOTE ITS SUSTAINABLE AND QUALITY 
DEVELOPMENT.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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in accordance with the principle of fairness and prudence, 

in order to enhance its capability to withstand future market 

fluctuations. During the Year, the Company recorded an 

attributable loss of approximately HK$261 million in respect 

of its investment in Vesta Terminal B.V. (“Vesta”) in Europe 

due to factors such as the geopolitical conflicts. Also, based 

on the updated feasibility study report of the Batam Island 

integrated storage and terminal project (“Batam Project”) 

in Indonesia (“Indonesia”), the Batam Project was found to 

be economically impractical and the Board of the Company 

decided to cease to proceed with the Batam Project and 

made a provision of approximately HK$630 million for the 

Company’s interest in PT. West Point Terminal (“PT. West 

Point”).

In 2022, the Group recorded revenue of approximately 

HK$616 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 

approximately 3.21%. For the year ended 31 December 

2022 (“Year” or “Reporting Period”), the Group’s profit 

for the Year was approximately HK$403 million, representing 

a year-on-year decrease of approximately 61.64%, which 

translates into a profit attributable to equity holders of 

approximately HK17.49 cents per share. Despite the 

significant decline in the Group’s results for 2022, in order 

to reward our shareholders for their long-standing support 

to the Company, and taking into account the Company’s 

cash flow situation and future business development needs, 

the Board recommended the payment of a cash dividend of 

HK20 cents per share for 2022 full year, and after deducting 

the interim cash dividend of HK8 cents per share paid, a 

final cash dividend of HK12 cents per share for 2022 is 

recommended, which stays the same as last year.

In 2022, Huade Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (“Huade 

Petrochemical”) in Huizhou Daya Bay, a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of the Company, has continued to implement its 

refined management, and maintained orderly production 

and operation and cost control while implementing measures 

to prevent and control the pandemic. In order to further 

enhance the scale of its business and increase profitability in 

the future, Huade Petrochemical has seized the opportunity 

to enter into a long-term contract with a third party for the 

use of port facilities, improved its manufacturing process 

and upgraded its berth to make use of vacant berthing slots 

for providing tanker unloading services for another third 

party to increase the scale of revenue; and reduced the 

demurrage time of tankers to enhance operating efficiency. 

In 2022, Huade Petrochemical unloaded crude oil from 90 

tankers, with a total of approximately 12.37 million tonnes, 

representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 5.82% 

and transmitted approximately 11.31 million tonnes of crude 

oil, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 

2.92%. Huade Petrochemical has also recorded segment 

revenue of approximately HK$616 million, representing a 

year-on-year decrease of approximately 3.21%, and the 

segment results from Huade Petrochemical amounted to 

approximately HK$494 million, representing a year-on-year 

increase of approximately 109.90% as a result of the gain on 

disposal of assets for the exchange of submarine pipelines.

2022 was the second year in which the Company directly 

managed its operating entities, namely Zhan Jiang 

Port Petrochemical Jetty Co., Ltd. (“Zhan Jiang Port 

Petrochemical”), Qingdao Shihua Crude Oil Terminal 

Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Shihua”), Ningbo Shihua Crude Oil 

Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Shihua”), Rizhao Shihua 

Crude Oil Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Rizhao Shihua”), Tianjin Port 

Shihua Crude Oil Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Port Shihua”) 

and Tangshan Caofeidian Shihua Crude Oil Terminal Co., 

Ltd. (“Caofeidian Shihua”) (collectively, the “Six Domestic 

Terminal Companies”). In face of the changes in the 

market and industry environment, the Group insisted on 

its operation targets, actively urged its operating entities to 

improve their corporate governance level and optimised the 

role of the board of directors of each operating entity. The 

Group has also urged the Six Domestic Terminal Companies 
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to actively explore new markets, improve efficiency and 

continuously strengthen the control of various costs and 

expenses. In 2022, under the impact of the pandemic 

and sluggish demand, the aggregate terminal throughput 

of the Six Domestic Terminal Companies amounted to 

approximately 210 million tonnes, representing a year-on-

year decrease of approximately 7.08%, and generated a 

total investment return of approximately HK$798 million 

for the Company, representing a year-on-year decrease of 

approximately 14.19%.

In 2022, the Group’s storage business faced major 

challenges due to the combination of wide fluctuations 

of international oil prices, the increased risk of global 

recession, as well as the impact of adverse factors such as 

the recurrence of the pandemic. Fujairah Oil Terminal FZC 

(“FOT”), a joint venture of the Company in the Middle East, 

actively responded to changes in the market, made every 

effort to develop new markets, overcame the adverse effect 

of major flooding and quickly repaired facilities to resume 

production, resulting a low start followed by an uptrend in 

FOT’s operating situation and an average occupancy rate 

of approximately 99.3% throughout the Year. In addition, 

during the Year, we continued the construction of a pipeline 

network connecting the storage area to the very large 

crude carrier (“VLCC”) terminal at the port to enhance FOT 

business competitiveness and increase the scale of future 

revenue and profit. In 2022, FOT generated an investment 

income of approximately HK$70.38 million for the Company, 

a decrease of approximately 27.66% year-on-year.

In 2022, the Company made a provision for the valuation 

loss in interest in Vesta, a joint venture of the Company, 

due to the geopolitical conflict which led to an extreme 

deterioration in the operating environment of Vesta 

storage area in Estonia and the impact of changes in the 

regional storage market environment. In order to improve 

Vesta’s operating condition, Vesta made changes to 

its management, strengthened its marketing efforts in 

Estonian storage area, optimised its operating costs and 

staff structure, and made every effort to control costs and 

expenses. Nevertheless, the Group’s share of loss in Vesta 

during the Year amounted to approximately HK$272 million, 

which is mainly attributable to the provision for valuation 

loss amounting to approximately HK$261 million.

In 2022, based on the updated feasibility study report 

for the Batam Project in Indonesia, due to the impact of 

energy transition on the traditional oil storage market, and 

increasing competition in respect of oil storage from the 

Singaporean region, the Batam Project was economically 

impractical. Accordingly, the Board has decided not to 

continue to proceed with the Batam Project. The Group 

will continue to adopt various effective measures actively to 

protect the legitimate rights and interests of the Company 

and its shareholders.

In 2022, the Group’s liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) 

vessel logistics business has overcome the impact of the 

pandemic, and has continued to maintain stable operation 

and attained improved economic benefits. The eight LNG 

vessels has completed a total of 102 voyages during the 

Year, generating a total investment return of approximately 

HK$116 million for the Company, representing a year-on-

year increase of approximately 16.35%.
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Looking ahead to 2023, despite facing unfavourable 

factors such as inflation risks, geopolitical conflicts and a 

slowdown in global economic growth, the change in global 

COVID-19 pandemic situation and the steady uptrend of 

the economy of the PRC, has given impetus to the global 

economic recovery. The Group will seize the opportunities 

and endeavor to achieve its annual production and 

operation targets. The Group will also strive to expand 

its core businesses to promote its sustainable and quality 

development.

By order of the Board

Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited

Chen Yaohuan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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In 2022, the global economy was hit by the sporadic cases of COVID-19 that occurred in multiple places 

in China, the outbreak of the Russia-Ukraine conflict, as well as the high cost of energy transportation, 

high inflation and the rising risk of interest rate hikes. The Group has responded flexibly to market 

changes by continuing to actively pursue refined management and striving to explore development 

opportunities. In addition to seeking to further expand the Group’s scale of operations, in 2022, the 

Company properly solved historical legacy issues, and effectively mitigated the risks by making an 

adequate provision for investment losses arising from long-term equity investments in operating 

entities with operating risks. In addition, during the Year, the Company made an impairment provision 

of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of its subsidiary, PT. West Point, resulting 

in a decline in consolidated net profit for the Year.



Impairment Loss
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s 

impairment loss amounted to approximately 

HK$629,772,000 (2021: HK$156,551,000), which was 

mainly attributable to the impairment provision of the non-

current assets of PT. West Point following the Company’s 

decision of not to proceed with the Batam Project. For 

details of the reasons for the impairment loss, please refer 

to the relevant announcement dated 23 December 2022 

published by the Company on the website of The Stock 

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) 

(www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company 

(www.sinopec.com.hk).

Segment Information
In 2022, the Group had two business segments, namely the 

crude oil jetty and storage business and the vessel chartering 

and logistics business. The segment reports of the Group for 

the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 5 to 

the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the segment 

revenue and segment results of the Group’s crude oil jetty 

and storage business were approximately HK$616,064,000 

(2021: HK$636,517,000) and HK$1,089,636,000 (2021: 

HK$1,062,380,000) respectively, representing a year-on-

year decrease of approximately 3.21% and increase of 

approximately 2.57% respectively. For the year ended 

31 December 2022, the segment results of the Group’s 

vessel chartering and logistics business were approximately 

HK$116,013,000 (2021: HK$99,709,000), representing a 

year-on-year increase of approximately 16.35%. In 2022, 

despite the impact of the outbreak of COVID-19, coupled 

with factors such as the Russia-Ukraine conflict and the 

successive interest rate hikes in the United States, the 

Group responded actively to the situation by coordinating 

the prevention and control of the pandemic as well 

as the production and operation to secure the orderly 

commencement of various business activities, and ensured 

safe and stable production and operation of the Group’s 

operating entities. The two business segments maintained 

stable operations in general. However, due to the provision 

made by the Company for the investment losses arising from 

long-term equity investment in Vesta, the segment results 

of the crude oil jetty and storage business were adversely 

affected to a certain extent.

Other Income and Other Gains, Net
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s other 

income and other gains, net amounted to approximately 

HK$326,856,000 (2021: HK$79,721,000), representing a 

year-on-year increase of approximately 310.00%, which 

was mainly attributable to the one-off gain arising from the 

disposal of the old submarine crude oil pipeline by Huade 

Petrochemical during the Year, in exchange for a new 

submarine pipeline.
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Finance Income
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s finance 

income amounted to approximately HK$77,702,000 (2021: 

HK$21,952,000), representing a year-on-year increase of 

approximately 253.96%, which was mainly attributable to 

the increase in interest income from deposits as a result of 

the year-on-year increases in the amount and interest rates 

of the Group’s bank deposits during the Year.

Share of Results of Joint Ventures
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s share of 

results of joint ventures was approximately HK$540,403,000 

(2021: HK$901,561,000), representing a year-on-year 

decrease of approximately 40.06%, which was mainly 

due to: (i) the Group’s share of loss for Vesta as a result of 

Russia-Ukraine conflict; (ii) a decline in terminal throughput 

due to the high international oil prices and the recurrent 

situation of COVID-19 pandemic in China, resulting in the 

low utilization rate of local refineries.

Operating (Loss)/Profit, Profit before 
Income Tax and Profit for the Year
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s 

operating loss amounted to approximately HK$179,194,000 

(2021 operating profit: HK$52,643,000), which was mainly 

attributable to the Company’s discontinuation of the Batam 

Project, which required an impairment provision of property, 

plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets of PT. West 

Point; the Group’s profit before income tax amounted to 

approximately HK$609,734,000 (2021: HK$1,156,943,000), 

representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 

47.30%; and the Group’s profit for the Year amounted to 

approximately HK$402,641,000 (2021: HK$1,049,684,000), 

representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 

61.64%. The decreases in each of the profit before income 

tax and profit for the Year were mainly due to an impairment 

provision made by the Company for the non-current assets 

of its subsidiary, PT. West Point, and a provision of the 

investment loss in Vesta during the Year.

Income Tax Expenses
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s income 

tax expenses amounted to approximately HK$207,093,000 

(2021: HK$107,259,000), representing a year-on-year 

increase of approximately 93.08%, which was mainly 

attributable to the year-on-year increase in taxable profit as 

a result of the one-off gain arising from the disposal of the 

submarine crude oil pipeline by Huade Petrochemical.

Right-of-use Assets
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s right-of-use assets 

amounted to approximately HK$66,946,000 (31 December 

2021: HK$590,985,000), representing a decrease of 

approximately 88.67% as compared with the end of last 

year, which was mainly due to an impairment provision 

made by the Group of its right-of-use assets regarding PT. 

West Point.

Prepayment
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s prepayment 

amounted to approximately HK$1,887,000 (as at 31 

December 2021: HK$847,000), representing an increase 

of approximately 122.79% as compared with the end of 

last year, which was mainly attributable to the increase in 

the long-term deferred expenses related to the navigation 

channel dredging fee of Huade Petrochemical.

Trade and Other Receivables
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade and other 

receivables amounted to approximately HK$590,647,000 (as 

at 31 December 2021: HK$1,621,698,000), representing a 

decrease of approximately 63.58% as compared with the 

end of last year, which was mainly attributable to the receipt 

of dividend receivable as at the end of last year by the 

Company from its joint venture during the Year.
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Liquidity and Source of Finance
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash 

equivalents and time deposit with original maturity 

of more than three months aggregately amounted to 

approximately HK$5,490,097,000 (as at 31 December 

2021: HK$4,197,541,000), representing an increase of 

approximately 30.79% as compared with the end of last 

year, which was mainly attributable to the increase in 

cash dividends distributed by the operating entities of the 

Company.

Current Ratio, Gearing Ratio and 
Liabilities to Assets Ratio
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio (current 

assets to current liabilities) was approximately 26.02 (as at 

31 December 2021: 24.34), and its liabilities to assets ratio 

(total liabilities to total assets) was approximately 3.21% (as 

at 31 December 2021: 2.82%). As at 31 December 2022, 

the Group had no bank loans and other borrowings. Gearing 

ratio (total bank loans and other borrowings to total equity) 

was nil as at 31 December 2022 as the Group had no bank 

loans and other borrowings (as at 31 December 2021: nil). 

Government Grants
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s government grants 

amounted to approximately HK$53,714,000 (as at 31 

December 2021: HK$14,909,000), representing an increase 

of approximately 260.28% as compared with the end of last 

year, which was mainly attributable to grants received by 

Huade Petrochemical from the local government as a result 

of government land planning.

Lease Liabilities
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s lease liabilities 

amounted to approximately HK$35,020,000 (as at 31 

December 2021: HK$22,812,000), representing an increase 

of approximately 53.52% as compared with the end of last 

year. The increase in lease liabilities was mainly attributable 

to the relocation of the submarine crude oil pipeline resulted 

in an additional lease liability for sea use rights for Huade 

Petrochemical during the Year.

Trade and Other Payables
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade and other 

payables amounted to approximately HK$143,301,000 (as 

at 31 December 2021: HK$213,105,000), representing a 

decrease of approximately 32.76% as compared with the 

end of last year, which was mainly attributable to Huade 

Petrochemical’s payment during the Year for the submarine 

crude oil pipeline relocation project which was listed as trade 

and other payables at the end of last year.

Income Tax Payable
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s income tax payable 

amounted to approximately HK$83,412,000 (as at 31 

December 2021: HK$19,259,000), representing an increase 

of approximately 333.11% as compared with the end of 

last year, which was mainly attributable to the year-on-year 

increase in taxable profit as a result of the gains arising from 

the disposal of the submarine crude oil pipeline by Huade 

Petrochemical.

Significant Investment, Acquisition 
and Disposal and Future Plans for 
Material Investments or Capital 
Assets
Save as disclosed in this annual report, for the year ended 31 

December 2022, the Company did not have any significant 

investment, acquisition and disposal. Apart from those 

disclosed in this report, there were no material investments 

or additions of capital assets authorised by the Board as at 

31 December 2022.

Exchange Rate Risk
The Company is engaged in petrochemical storage, jetty 

and logistics businesses in places including the PRC, Europe 

and United Arab Emirates through its subsidiaries, associates 

and joint ventures, which generate operating income in 

RMB, Euro and US$ respectively. As the exchange rates of 

RMB, Euro and US$ against HK$ fluctuate, the Group faces 

exchange rate risk to a certain extent. Please refer to section 

headed “Risk Identification and Response Measures” for key 

response measures of the Group in relation to exchange rate 

risk.

Save for the above, the Group was not exposed to any other 

significant foreign exchange risk during the Reporting Period.
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Contingent Liabilities and Assets Pledged by the Group
As at 31 December 2022, details of the contingent liabilities and assets pledged by the Group were as follows:

Guarantor Beneficiary

Name of 

agreement Content of clause

Date of 

agreement

Guarantee or 

pledge period

Pledge 

provided or 

guarantee 

balance as at 

31 December 

2022

Sinomart 

Development

FOT Equity Pledge 

Agreement

Sinomart Development shall 

pledge its 50% equity interest in 

FOT to the banks which offered 

FOT the refinancing loan of 

US$280 million. Note

15 September 

2021

Effective until 

full repayment 

of the loan

50% of shares 

of FOT held

       

Sinomart 

Development

PT. West Point Land Lease 

Agreement

In the event that PT. West Point 

fails to pay to the lessor of Batam 

Project any amount of the land 

lease fee due under the Land 

Lease Agreement, Sinomart 

Development undertakes to 

pay, on demand, an amount 

calculated by multiplying such 

unpaid amount by its percentage 

of shareholding interest in PT. 

West Point.

9 October 

2012

Effective for 

30 years upon 

the date of 

execution of 

the agreement

SGD5.09 

million

       

Note: The Sponsor Support Agreement for the original loan was terminated and procedures for releasing the pledge was completed for the relevant equity 

pledge. Please refer to the Company’s Annual Report 2020 for the Sponsor Support Agreement for the original loan.

Save as stated above, the Group did not provide any other financial assistance, guarantee or pledge of shares for other 

companies as at 31 December 2022.
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About the Batam Project
On 9 October 2012, the Company acquired 95% of the 

shares of PT. West Point through Sinomart Development, 

its wholly-owned subsidiary, and proposed to invest in and 

construct the Batam Project in Indonesia via PT. West Point. 

Due to the minority shareholder from Indonesia, the project 

entered into arbitration. The Group received arbitral awards 

in the Group’s favour and obtained enforcement orders from 

the Indonesian Court in respect of the arbitral awards. In the 

second half of 2021, the Group has engaged two consulting 

agencies, which were responsible for the oil storage and 

jetty of the project respectively, to jointly prepare an 

updated feasibility study report, thereby providing basis for 

subsequent decisions on the project.

According to the feasibility report, the Batam Project was 

economically impractical due to factors including (a) the 

long-term impact of energy transition on the traditional oil 

storage market; and (b) increasing competition in respect of 

oil storage from the Singaporean region. Accordingly, the 

Board has in principle decided not to continue to proceed 

with the Batam Project. The Group will continue to adopt 

various effective measures actively to protect the legitimate 

rights and interests of the Company and its shareholders. 

For details, please refer to the relevant announcements 

dated 25 April 2010, 9 October 2012, 15 November 2016, 

21 March 2017, 6 December 2019 and 23 December 2022 

published by the Company on the website of the Stock 

Exchange and the website of the Company.

Employees, Emolument Policies and 
Training
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 228 

employees. The Company adheres to the philosophy of 

diversity and equal opportunities in employee recruitment, 

striving to ensure that the number of employees of different 

genders satisfies the Company’s development needs. For 

specific proportions of employees by gender, please refer 

to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the 

Group. Remuneration packages of employees, including 

basic salaries, bonuses and benefits-in-kind, are structured 

by reference to market terms and trends of human resources 

costs in various regions as well as employees’ contributions 

based on performance appraisals. Subject to the profit of the 

Group and the performance of employees, the Group also 

provides discretionary bonuses to employees as an incentive 

for their greater contributions. In addition, the Group also 

makes contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund 

Schemes in Hong Kong and the retirement benefit schemes 

in the PRC established for its Hong Kong employees and 

Chinese employees respectively in accordance with local 

laws and regulations. Please refer to note 9 to the financial 

statement “Employee Benefit Expenses”  for details of 

remuneration of employees.

In 2022, the Group organized and carried out training 

activities on anti-corruption laws and regulations, 

management of network security and caring for mental 

health of employees, etc. For details, please refer to the 

Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group. 

Save for disclosed above, as of the year ended 31 December 

2022, the Company has not entered into and implemented 

any long-term incentive schemes.
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The Board is pleased to submit the annual report and the 

audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 

31 December 2022.

Principal Place of Business
The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Bermuda and 

has its registered office in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 

Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal 

place of business in Hong Kong is at 34/F, Citicorp Centre, 

18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The 

principal activities and other particulars of its principal 

subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial 

statements.

An analysis of the principal businesses and segment 

information of the Group during the Year is set out in note 5 

to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review and Outlook
For details of the business review including an analysis of 

the Group’s performance using key financial performance 

indicators during the Reporting Period and prospect of the 

Group, please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s 

Statement” on pages 4 to 7 of this annual report and the 

section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on 

pages 8 to 13 of this annual report.

Events after the End of the Reporting 
Period
Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there was no other 

significant event which has occurred after 31 December 

2022 and up to the date of this report.

Compliance with Laws and 
Regulations
The Group has adopted its risk management and internal 

control policy to monitor the continuous compliance with 

laws and regulations. For the year ended 31 December 2022, 

so far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied 

with relevant laws and regulations that have significant 

impacts on the Group in all material aspects, including, 

in particular, the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Rules 

Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the 

Stock Exchange as well as the Environmental Protection Law, 

the Marine Environment Protection Law, the Labour Contract 

Law, the Production Safety Law and Law on Prevention and 

Control of Occupational Diseases of the People’s Republic of 

China (the “PRC”).

Major Customers and Suppliers
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers of 

the Group respectively are set out below:

Percentage of the Group’s total amounts
 

Sales Purchases

The largest customer 83% N/A
   

Five largest customers in aggregate 98% N/A
   

The largest supplier N/A 53%
   

Five largest suppliers in aggregate N/A 67%
   

China Petrochemical Corporation (“Sinopec Group Company”), the controlling shareholder of the Company, had beneficial 

interests in three of the five largest customers and none of the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close 

associates, or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of 

the Board hold more than 5% of the issued shares of the 

Company) had any interests in any of the aforementioned 

suppliers or customers.

Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 

2022 and the financial position of the Group and the 

Company as at that date is set out in the consolidated 

financial statements on pages 70 to 143 of this annual 

report.

Transfer to Reserves
For the year ended 31 December 2022, profit attributable 

to equity holders of the Company, before dividends, of 

approximately HK$434,882,000 (2021: HK$1,050,396,000) 

has been transferred to reserves. Details of other changes 

in reserves are set out in the Consolidated Statement of 

Changes in Equity on pages 73 to 74 of this annual report.

Key Event Calendar for Shareholders 
– Final Dividend
The Board recommended a dividend of HK20 cents per share 

for the whole year of 2022 (2021: HK20 cents per share) 

payable in cash, excluding the interim dividend of HK8 cents 

per share for 2022 (2021: HK8 cents per share) paid in cash 

on 19 October 2022, the final dividend of HK12 cents per 

share for 2022 (2021: HK12 cents per share) will be paid in 

cash to all shareholders whose names appear on the register 

of members of the Company on 14 July 2023 (Friday).

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 

10 July 2023 (Monday) to 14 July 2023 (Friday) (both days 

inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be 

registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, 

all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant 

share certificates, must be lodged with Tricor Secretaries 

Limited, the branch share registrar of the Company at 17/F, 

Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, 

for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on 7 July 2023 

(Friday). The cheques for dividend payment will be sent 

to shareholders on or about 25 July 2023 (Tuesday) if the 

resolution for the proposed final dividend is passed at the 

forthcoming annual general meeting.

There is no arrangement under which a shareholder has 

waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Key Event Calendar for Shareholders 
– 2022 Annual General Meeting
The Company will convene the 2022 annual general meeting 

on 12 June 2023 (Monday), and the register of members of 

the Company will be closed from 6 June 2023 (Tuesday) to 

12 June 2023 (Monday) (both days inclusive) during which 

period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to 

qualify for attending the 2022 annual general meeting of 

the Company and voting at the meeting, all share transfer 

documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, 

must be lodged with Tricor Secretaries Limited, the branch 

share registrar of the Company at 17/F, Far East Finance 

Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not 

later than 4:00 p.m. on 5 June 2023 (Monday).

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
For the description of the principal risks and uncertainties 

facing by the Company, please refer to the “Risk 

Identification and Response Measures” in the “Corporate 

Governance Report” on pages 46 to 48 of this annual 

report. The relevant discussion constitutes as part of the 

“Report of the Directors”.
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Fixed Assets
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group spent 

approximately HK$5,486,000 (2021: HK$42,232,000) 

on fixed assets. Details of movements in property, plant 

and equipment are set out in note 18 to the consolidated 

financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company 

during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 

24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the 
Company’s Listed Securities
During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the 

Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or 

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Members of the Board
The following is a list of the Board of Directors for the 

year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this 

annual report. Biographical details of the Directors who held 

office at the date of this annual report are set out in the 

section of this annual report entitled “Directors and Senior 

Management”. Information on the appointment, retirement 

and remuneration of Directors is set out in the “Corporate 

Governance Report” section of this annual report.

List of Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Yaohuan (Chairman)

Mr. Zhong Fuliang

Mr. Mo Zhenglin

Mr. Yang Yanfei

Mr. Zou Wenzhi

Mr. Ren Jiajun

Mr. Sang Jinghua (General Manager)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria

Mr. Fong Chung, Mark

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David

Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws (the “Bye-

laws”), Mr. Chan Yaohuan, being the Chairman and an 

executive Director, Mr. Zhong Fuliang, being an executive 

Director, and Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Dr. Wong Yau 

Kar, David, being the independent non-executive Directors, 

will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general 

meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-

election.

Directors’ Service Contracts
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service 

contract with the Company for a term of one year renewable 

automatically upon expiry for a successive term of one year 

unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in 

writing served by either party. Each of the independent  

non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of 

appointment for a term of three years.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 

forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired 

service contract which is not determinable by the Company 

or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of 

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 
Interests or Short Positions in the 
Shares, Underlying Shares and 
Debentures
As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and chief 

executive of the Company had any interests or short 

positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of 

the Company or any of its associated corporations (within 

the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures 

Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the 

“SFO”)), which is required to be notified to the Company 

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part 

XV of the SFO or which is required, pursuant to Section 352 

of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, 

or which is required to be notified to the Company and the 

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities 

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in 

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

Share Option Scheme
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did 

not establish and implement any share option schemes.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or 
Debentures
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company, or any 

of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, 

did not participate in any arrangements to enable the 

Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of 

shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body 

corporates.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons 
Discloseable under the SFO
As at 31 December 2022, shareholders who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the 

Company which would have to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 

3 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions), 

or which were entered in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as 

follows:

Name of shareholder

Capacity and nature of 

interest

Number of ordinary 

shares held

Approximate 

percentage of total 

issued shares

Sinopec Kantons International Limited 

(“Kantons International” Note) Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000(L) 60.33%
    

Note: The entire issued share capital of Kantons International is held by China International United Petroleum & Chemicals Co., Ltd. (“UNIPEC”). The controlling 

interest in the registered capital of UNIPEC is ultimately held by Sinopec Group Company.
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Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been 

notified that any person (other than the Directors and chief 

executive of the Company) had interests or short positions 

in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which 

would have to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock 

Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part 

XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which 

were taken or deemed to have under such provisions), or 

which were entered in the register of interests required to be 

kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, 
Arrangements or Contracts
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance 

to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, 

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a party, and in which 

a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a 

material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the 

end of, or at any time during, the year ended 31 December 

2022.

Material Contracts of the Controlling 
Shareholder or its Subsidiaries
For details of the material contracts entered into between 

the Company or its subsidiaries and the controlling 

shareholder or its subsidiaries, please refer to relevant 

information contained in the section headed “Connected 

Transactions” on pages 21 to 26 of this annual report. Save 

as disclosed herein, no other material contracts (including 

but not limited to material contracts for the provision of 

services to the Company or its subsidiaries by the controlling 

shareholder and its subsidiaries) were entered into between 

the Company or its subsidiaries and the controlling 

shareholder or its subsidiaries.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the  

Bye-laws or the applicable laws of Bermuda.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no bank loans and 

other borrowings.

Five Year Summary
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the 

Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 144 

of this annual report.

Retirement Benefit Schemes
Other than the establishment of the Mandatory Provident 

Fund Schemes in Hong Kong and the contributions made to 

the retirement benefit schemes in the PRC, the Group has 

not operated any other retirement benefit schemes for its 

employees. Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are 

set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
As permitted under the Bye-laws, every Director shall be 

entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company 

from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages 

and expenses which he or she may incur or sustain in or 

about the execution of the duties of his or her office, and no 

Director shall be liable for any loss, misfortune or damage 

which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in 

the execution of the duties of his or her office or in relation 

thereto, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any 

matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty.

Liability Insurance of the Directors
For details of the liability insurance of the Directors of the 

Company, please refer to the paragraph headed “Liability 

Insurance for Directors” set out in the Corporate Governance 

Report on page 41 of this annual report.
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Sufficient Public Float
Based on the public information available to the Company 

and to the knowledge of the Directors, for the year ended 

31 December 2022 and as at the date of this report, the 

Company has maintained sufficient public float prescribed 

under the Listing Rules.

Audit Committee
The Company has set up its audit committee with written 

terms of reference available on the websites of the Stock 

Exchange and the Company. Currently, the audit committee 

of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises four 

independent non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee 

meets with the Group’s senior management and external 

auditor regularly to review the effectiveness of the risk 

management and internal control system and the interim 

and annual reports of the Group, and is responsible to the 

Board directly. The details of the Audit Committee are set 

out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this 

annual report.

Auditor
In accordance with the relevant regulations of the relevant 

governmental authorities of the PRC in relation to the term 

of appointment of the auditor of a state-owned enterprise 

and its subsidiaries, PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as the 

auditor of the Company at the annual general meeting of 

the Company convened on 15 June 2021, and following its 

retirement, KPMG has been appointed as the auditor of the 

Company.

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, will offer itself for  

re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general 

meeting to be convened. A resolution in relation to the 

re-appointment of KPMG as the auditor of the Company will 

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting for 

consideration and approval by the shareholders.

Environmental Policies and 
Performance
The Group has been placing great emphasis on safety, 

environmental protection and compliance during operation 

in order to promote collective sustainable development with 

the community where it operates.

In 2022, the Group continued to improve its policies and 

organizational structure, remained committed to and actively 

discharged corporate social responsibilities in accordance 

with the instructions of the Board.

The Group has incorporated relevant environmental 

protection measures into its overall work plan. The Group 

has monitored and been committed to reducing emissions 

to ensure that waste and carbon emissions are under 

reasonable control. In addition, the Group has formulated 

detailed emission treatment policies for exhaust gas, 

sewage and waste. Meanwhile, the Group has strict 

regulations on the use of energy, water resources and 

other natural resources and gives priority to recycling. To 

address environmental risks arisen from daily operation, 

the Group has adopted a series of preventive measures and 

formulated different contingency plans for the occurrence 

of any type of accident, to minimize the possible hazards 

to the environment and natural resources. In 2022, the 

Group complied with the relevant laws and regulations in all 

material aspects.

For further details of the Group’s environmental policies and 

performance, please refer to the Environmental, Social and 

Governance Report of the Group.
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Relationships with Employees, 
Customers and Suppliers
For the relationship between the Group and its employees, 

please refer to the paragraph headed “Employees, 

Emolument Policies and Training” set out in the section 

headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 13 

of this annual report.

The Group actively interacts with all stakeholders including 

employees, customers, suppliers, investors and regulatory 

authorities to maintain good relationships with them and 

understand their expectations on the Group. The Group 

will incorporate their suggestions into its operation as far 

as they are feasible and in the interest of the Group and 

its shareholders as a whole. For details, please refer to the 

Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group.

Donations
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group donated 

over HK$250,000 to support the people in need.

By order of the Board

Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited

Chen Yaohuan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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I. Existing Agreements Entered 
into by the Group Constituting 
Continuing Connected 
Transactions
In order to ensure the normal operation of the business 

and compliance with the relevant requirements of 

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, on 21 October 2019, 

the Group entered into certain framework agreements 

with Sinopec Group Company and its subsidiaries for 

businesses such as crude oil jetty services and financial 

services which constituted continuing connected 

transactions for the three financial years ended 31 

December 2022, details of which include:

1. Huade Petrochemical, a wholly-owned subsidiary 

of the Company, renewed and entered into 

the Crude Oil Jetty and Storage Services 

Framework Master Agreement with China 

Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“Sinopec 

Corp.”) Guangzhou Branch (“Guangzhou 

Petrochemical”), Sinopec Petroleum Reserve 

Company Limited (“Sinopec Petroleum 

Reserve Company”) and Sinopec Pipeline 

Storage and Transportation Company Limited 

Crude Oil Sales Branch Company (“Sinopec 

Pipeline Storage and Transportation Branch 

Company”) for the provision of crude oil jetty 

and storage services by Huade Petrochemical to 

Guangzhou Petrochemical, Sinopec Petroleum 

Reserve Company and Sinopec Pipeline 

Storage and Transportation Branch Company. 

Guangzhou Petrochemical is a branch company 

of Sinopec Corp.; Sinopec Petroleum Reserve 

Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 

Sinopec Group Company, the holding company 

of Sinopec Corp.; Sinopec Pipeline Storage and 

Transportation Branch Company is a branch 

company of a then wholly-owned subsidiary 

of Sinopec Corp., which indirectly wholly 

owns Kantons International, the controlling 

shareholder of the Company. All the transactions 

contemplated under the Crude Oil Jetty and 

Storage Services Framework Master Agreement 

constitute continuing connected transactions for 

the Company under the Listing Rules.

In addition, in order to meet the requirements of 

the relevant asset restructuring of Sinopec Corp. 

and PipeChina, Huade Petrochemical, Sinopec 

Pipeline Storage and Transportation Branch 

Company and Sinopec Petroleum Marketing 

Company Limited (“Sinopec Petroleum 

Marketing Company”) jointly entered into 

a supplemental agreement to the above-

mentioned agreement on 30 September 2020. 

Pursuant to the supplemental agreement, all 

rights and obligations of Sinopec Pipeline Storage 

and Transportation Branch Company under the 

Crude Oil Jetty and Storage Services Framework 

Master Agreement have been transferred to 

Sinopec Petroleum Marketing Company since 1 

October 2020. Save as disclosed herein, all other 

terms stated in the Crude Oil Jetty and Storage 

Services Framework Master Agreement remain 

unchanged;

2. Huade Petrochemical, a wholly-owned subsidiary 

of the Company, renewed and entered 

into the Sinopec Finance Financial Services 

Framework Master Agreement with Sinopec 

Finance Company Limited (“Sinopec Finance”) 

Guangzhou Branch for the provision of financial 

services within the PRC to Huade Petrochemical 

and its subsidiaries by Sinopec Finance 

Guangzhou Branch. Sinopec Finance Guangzhou 

Branch is a branch company of Sinopec Finance, 

which is owned as to 51% by Sinopec Group 

Company and 49% by Sinopec Corp. Sinopec 

Group Company is the holding company 

of Sinopec Corp., which indirectly wholly 

owns Kantons International, the controlling 

shareholder of the Company. All the transactions 

contemplated under the Sinopec Finance 
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Financial Services Framework Master Agreement 

constitute continuing connected transactions for 

the Company under the Listing Rules;

3. The Company renewed and entered into the 

Century Bright Financial Services Framework 

Master Agreement with Sinopec Century Bright 

Capital Investment Limited (“Century Bright”) 

for the provision of deposit and settlement and 

similar financial services outside the PRC to 

the Group by Century Bright. Century Bright is 

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sinopec Group 

Company which indirectly controls Kantons 

International, the controlling shareholder of the 

Company. All the transactions contemplated 

under the Century Bright Financial Services 

Framework Master Agreement constitute 

continuing connected transactions for the 

Company under the Listing Rules.

The above-mentioned agreements and continuing 

connected transactions were approved at the special 

general meeting of the Company convened on 29 

November 2019.

In addition, on 21 October 2019, the Group entered 

into corresponding framework agreements in 

relation to a number of other continuing connected 

transactions for the three financial years ended 31 

December 2022. As the applicable percentage ratios 

for the caps in respect of each of these framework 

agreements are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, 

these agreements are subject to the reporting, 

annual review and announcement requirements but 

exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval 

requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. 

Details of these framework agreements are as follows:

1. Huade Petrochemical, a wholly-owned subsidiary 

of the Company, renewed and entered into 

the Sinopec Fuel Oil Sales Company Limited 

Framework Master Agreement with Sinopec 

Fuel Oil Sales Company Limited (“Sinopec 

Fuel Oil”) for the provision of fuel oil jetty and 

storage services to Sinopec Fuel Oil. Sinopec 

Fuel Oil is a subsidiary of Sinopec Corp. which 

indirectly wholly owns Kantons International, the 

controlling shareholder of the Company;

2. Huade Petrochemical, a wholly-owned subsidiary 

of the Company, entered into the Oil Product 

Purchase Framework Master Agreement with 

China Shipping & Sinopec Shenzhen Marine 

Bunker Co., Ltd. (“China Shipping & Sinopec 

Shenzhen”) for the sale of oil products to 

Huade Petrochemical from China Shipping & 

Sinopec Shenzhen. China Shipping & Sinopec 

Shenzhen is an associate of Sinopec Corp. which 

indirectly wholly owns Kantons International, the 

controlling shareholder of the Company.

For details of the above-mentioned continuing 

connected transactions, please refer to the relevant 

announcement and circular dated 21 October 2019 

and 11 November 2019 published on the websites of 

the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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II. Information on the Continuing Connected Transactions Conducted by the 
Group during the Year
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the transaction amounts and annual caps for the continuing connected 

transactions conducted by the Group were as follows:

Transaction

amounts for the

year ended

31 December 2022

Annual caps

for the year 2022

RMB million RMB million

Crude oil jetty and storage services income 439.44 650.00
   

Fuel oil jetty and storage services income 46.87 70.00
   

Oil product purchase expenditure 3.52 10.00
   

Maximum balance of deposits placed by Huade Petrochemical in Sinopec 

Finance during the Year 284.34 400.00
   

Maximum balance of deposits placed outside the PRC by the Group in 

Century Bright during the Year Note (HK$ million) 499.48 500.00
   

Note: Unless specified as HK$, all figures are denominated in RMB.

III. Agreements Renewed and 
Entered into by the Group during 
the Year Constituting Continuing 
Connected Transactions
As the framework agreements for the existing 

continuing connected transactions entered into by 

the Group expired on 31 December 2022, in order 

to maintain business continuity and based on the 

actual needs of the business development of the 

Group, on 26 October 2022, the Group renewed and 

entered into the following framework agreements for 

continuing connected transactions with Sinopec Group 

Company and its subsidiaries respectively with a term 

of three financial years ending on 31 December 2025. 

Details of which includes:

1. Huade Petrochemical, a wholly-owned subsidiary 

of the Company, renewed and entered into 

the Crude Oil Jetty and Storage Services 

Framework Master Agreement with Guangzhou 

Petrochemical, Sinopec Petroleum Reserve 

Company and Sinopec Petroleum Marketing 

Company for the provision of crude oil jetty 

and storage services by Huade Petrochemical 

to Guangzhou Petrochemical, Sinopec 

Petroleum Reserve Company and Sinopec 

Petroleum Marketing Company. As Guangzhou 

Petrochemical is a branch company of Sinopec 

Corp.; Sinopec Petroleum Reserve Company is 

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sinopec Group 

Company, the holding company of Sinopec 

Corp.; Sinopec Petroleum Marketing Company 

is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sinopec 

Corp. which indirectly wholly owns Kantons 

International, the controlling shareholder of the 

Company, all the transactions contemplated 

under the Crude Oil Jetty and Storage Services 
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Framework Master Agreement constitute 

continuing connected transactions for the 

Company under the Listing Rules;

2. Huade Petrochemical, a wholly-owned subsidiary 

of the Company, renewed and entered into 

the Sinopec Fuel Oil Sales Company Limited 

Framework Master Agreement with Sinopec 

Fuel Oil for the provision of fuel oil jetty and 

storage services to Sinopec Fuel Oil. As Sinopec 

Fuel Oil is a subsidiary of Sinopec Corp. which 

indirectly wholly owns Kantons International, the 

controlling shareholder of the Company, all the 

transactions contemplated under the Sinopec 

Fuel Oil Sales Company Limited Framework 

Master Agreement constitute continuing 

connected transactions for the Company under 

the Listing Rules;

3. Huade Petrochemical renewed and entered into 

the Sinopec Finance Financial Services Framework 

Master Agreement with Sinopec Finance 

Guangzhou Branch for the provision of financial 

services within the PRC to Huade Petrochemical 

by Sinopec Finance Guangzhou Branch. 

Sinopec Finance Guangzhou Branch is a branch 

company of Sinopec Finance which is owned as 

to 51% by Sinopec Group Company and 49% 

by Sinopec Corp. Sinopec Group Company is 

the holding company of Sinopec Corp. which 

indirectly wholly owns Kantons International, the 

controlling shareholder of the Company. All the 

transactions contemplated under the Sinopec 

Finance Financial Services Framework Master 

Agreement constitute continuing connected 

transactions for the Company under the Listing 

Rules;

4. The Company renewed and entered into the 

Century Bright Financial Services Framework 

Master Agreement with Century Bright for the 

provision of deposit and settlement and similar 

financial services outside the PRC to the Group 

by Century Bright. As Century Bright is a wholly-

owned subsidiary of Sinopec Group Company 

which indirectly controls Kantons International, 

the controlling shareholder of the Company, all 

the transactions contemplated under the Century 

Bright Financial Services Framework Master 

Agreement constitute continuing connected 

transactions for the Company under the Listing 

Rules.

The above agreements and the continuing connected 

transactions were approved at the special general 

meeting of the Company held on 15 December 2022.
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Details of the aforesaid agreements and continuing connected transactions and the transaction amount annual caps for 

the continuing connected transactions to be conducted by the Group for the three financial years ending 31 December 

2025 are as follows:

Transaction amount annual caps

for the year ending

31 December (RMB million)

2023 2024 2025

Crude oil jetty and storage services income 550.00 550.00 550.00

Fuel oil jetty and storage services income 80.00 80.00 80.00

Oil product purchase expenditure 10.00 10.00 10.00

Maximum balance of deposits to be placed by Huade 

Petrochemical in Sinopec Finance 400.00 400.00 400.00

Maximum balance of deposits to be placed outside the PRC by 

the Group in Century BrightNote (HK$ million) 900.00 900.00 900.00
    

Note: Unless specified as HK$, all figures are denominated in RMB.

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement and circular dated 26 October 2022 and 14 November 2022 

published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

In addition, on 26 October 2022, the Group 

correspondingly entered into a number of framework 

agreements constituting continuing connected 

transactions for the three financial years ending 31 

December 2025. As the applicable percentage ratios 

for the caps in respect of each of these framework 

agreements are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, 

these agreements are subject to the reporting, 

annual review and announcement requirements but 

exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval 

requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. 

Details of the framework agreement is as follows:

1. Oil Products Purchase Framework Master 

Agreement was renewed and entered into 

between Huade Petrochemical and China 

Shipping & Sinopec Shenzhen in relation to the 

sale of oil products by China Shipping & Sinopec 

Shenzhen to Huade Petrochemical. China 

Shipping & Sinopec Shenzhen is an associate 

of Sinopec Corp.; and Sinopec Corp. indirectly 

wholly-owned Kantons International, the 

controlling shareholder of the Company.

The material related party transactions disclosed by 

the Group in note 31 to the financial statements are 

“continuing connected transactions” or “connected 

transactions”, as the case may be, within the meaning 

of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and were entered 

into in the manner described above. In accordance 

with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Company 

has complied with all disclosure requirements in 

respect of such connected transactions or continuing 

connected transactions. Save as disclosed herein, there 

are no continuing connected transactions/connected 

transactions required to be disclosed in accordance 

with the Listing Rules.
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In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, 

the independent non-executive Directors of the 

Company have reviewed and approved each of the 

above-mentioned continuing connected transactions 

and confirmed that the continuing connected 

transactions were entered into in accordance with the 

following principles:

(1) in the ordinary course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) the agreements governing such transactions are 

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the 

interests of the Company’s shareholders as a 

whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report 

on the Group’s continuing connected transactions 

in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard 

on Assurance Engagements 3000“Assurance 

Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of 

Historical Financial Information”, and with reference 

to Practice Note 740“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing 

Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong 

Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued 

its unqualified letter containing its conclusions (with a 

copy provided to the Stock Exchange) in accordance 

with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirmed 

that nothing has come to its attention that causes it to 

believe that the continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance 

with the pricing policies of the Group if the 

transactions involved the provision of goods or 

services by the Group;

(3) were not carried out, in all material respects, 

in accordance with the relevant agreements 

governing the transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the annual caps.

In addition, the Company obtained a waiver from the 

Stock Exchange on other connected transactions from 

strict compliance with the relevant requirements under 

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on 25 June 1999 for a 

period so long as the values of the relevant connected 

transactions in any financial year do not exceed 3% 

of the net tangible assets of the Group as at the end 

of that year, subject to certain waiver conditions 

as stipulated in paragraph (D)(1) of “conditions to 

waiver” set out in the section headed “Business – 

Connected Transactions” contained in the prospectus 

of the Company dated 15 June 1999.
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As at 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report, the Directors and 
senior management of the Company are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Yaohuan, aged 59, is the Chairman of the Board and executive Director of 
the Company. Mr. Chen holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering and graduated from 
the East China Institute of Chemical Technology, majoring in petroleum refining, in July 
1985 and is a senior engineer. From July 1985 to October 2008, Mr. Chen served at 
different positions in Sinopec Zhenhai Refining & Chemical Co., Ltd. From September 
2006 to March 2015, he served as the deputy director general of the Refining Business 
Division of Sinopec Corp. From March 2013 to March 2015, he concurrently served as 
a director of Sinopec Catalyst Co., Ltd. From March 2015 to June 2018, he served as an 
executive director and the general manager of Sinopec Beihai Refining & Chemical Co., 
Ltd. From May 2015 to July 2017, he served as a member and a standing committee 
member (temporary post) of the CPC Beihai Municipal Committee. From June 2018 to 
July 2019, he served as the general manager of Sinopec Corp. Guangzhou Branch and 
the general manager of Sinopec Group Asset Management Corporation Guangzhou 
Branch. From December 2018 to November 2019, he concurrently served as the 
chairman of Huade Petrochemical, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. From 
July 2019 to December 2019, he served as the deputy director general (director general 
level) and the chief engineer of the Refining Business Division of Sinopec Corp. From 
December 2019 to December 2020, he served as the general manager and the chief 
engineer of the Refining Business Division of Sinopec Corp. Since December 2019, 
he has served as the vice chairman of Yanbu Aramco Sinopec Refining Company Ltd. 
Since August 2020, he has also served as the executive director and party secretary 
of Sinopec Petroleum Marketing Company Limited and the chairman of Sinopec 
Petroleum Reserve Company Limited. Since December 2020, he has been serving as the 
chief engineer of the Refining Business Division of Sinopec Corp. Since January 2021, 
he has been serving as an employee’s representative supervisor of the seventh session 
of the board of supervisors of Sinopec Corp. Mr. Chen has been the Chairman of the 
Board and executive Director of the Company since November 2019.

Mr. Zhong Fuliang, aged 54, is an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zhong 
graduated with a bachelor’s degree majoring in economics and management from 
Wuhan University in July 1991. He graduated with a master’s degree in Business 
Administration from Staffordshire University in July 2003. He holds a bachelor’s 
degree in Economics and a master’s degree in Business Administration. He is a senior 
economist. From August 1991 to March 2015, Mr. Zhong successively held positions 
in Zhenhai Petrochemical General Plant, Sinopec Zhenhai Refining & Chemical Co., 
Ltd., and Zhenhai Refining & Chemical Branch Company of Sinopec Corp. Since 
March 2015, he has been the deputy general manager of China International United 
Petroleum & Chemicals Company Limited. Since June 2019, Mr. Zhong has successively 
served as a director of Sinopec Insurance Limited and a director of Sinopec Petroleum 
Reserve Company Limited. Since August 2020, Mr. Zhong has served as a director of 
China Merchants Energy Shipping Co., Ltd. Since December 2022, he has become the 
general manager and the director of China International United Petroleum & Chemicals 
Company Limited. Mr. Zhong has been an executive Director of the Company since 
March 2020.

Mr. Chen Yaohuan

Mr. Zhong Fuliang
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Mr. Mo Zhenglin

Mr. Yang Yanfei

Mr. Zou Wenzhi

Mr. Mo Zhenglin, aged 58, is an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Mo 
graduated from Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics majoring in finance 
and accounting in July 1986 with a bachelor’s degree in Economics and is a senior 
accountant. From May 1995 to August 2008, Mr. Mo successively held positions in 
Beijing Yanshan Petrochemical Corporation, Beijing Yanshan Petrochemical Co., Ltd. 
and Sinopec Corp. Beijing Yanshan Branch Company. From August 2008 to August 
2017, he served as chief accountant and deputy director general of the Chemical 
Division of Sinopec Corp. From August 2017 to December 2019, he served as deputy 
director general of the Finance Department of Sinopec Corp.; from December 2019 to 
October 2022, he served as deputy general manager of Finance Department of Sinopec 
Corp. In particular, from April 2002 to August 2008, Mr. Mo also served as a director 
of Beijing Yanshan Petrochemical Co., Ltd; he has been a non-executive director of 
Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Company Limited which is a company listed on the 
Stock Exchange from June 2014 to June 2020. In addition, since April 2018 and March 
2019, Mr. Mo has served as a director of PetroCyber Works Information Technology 
Co., Ltd and Sinopec SABIC Tianjin Petrochemical Company Limited respectively. Mr. 
Mo has been an executive Director of the Company since March 2020.

Mr. Yang Yanfei, aged 55, is an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Yang graduated 
from East China Institute of Chemical Technology majoring in oil processing with a bachelor’s 
degree in engineering in July 1991 and is a senior economist. From August 1991 to July 
2013, Mr. Yang successively held positions in Beijing Yanshan Petrochemical Corporation, 
China Petrochemical Corporation, relevant State ministries and Sinopec Group Company. 
From July 2013 to December 2019, he served as the deputy general manager of the 
Production and Operation Management Department of Sinopec Corp. From December 2019 
to January 2022, he served as the deputy general manager of the Production and Operation 
Management Department of Sinopec Corp. Since January 2022, he has been concurrently 
the general manager of the Production and Operation Management Department of Sinopec 
Corp. and the chief coordinator of the Production Dispatching Command Center of Sinopec 
Corp. In particular, since March 2019, Mr. Yang has concurrently served as a director of 
Sinopec Senmei (Fujian) Petroleum Co., Ltd.; since October 2019, Mr. Yang has also served as 
a director of Sinopec Petroleum Reserve Company Limited. Mr. Yang has been an executive 
Director of the Company since March 2020.

Mr. Zou Wenzhi, aged 52, is an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zou 
graduated from Tianjin University with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering 
and economics in July 1992. He graduated with a master’s degree in business 
administration from Staffordshire University in June 2006, he holds a bachelor’s degree 
in engineering and master’s degree in business administration, he is a professor-
level senior economist. From August 1992 to June 2016, Mr. Zou successively held 
positions in Sinopec Beijing Design Institute, Sinopec Engineering Incorporation and the 
Development Planning Department of Sinopec Corp. From June 2016 to August 2019, 
Mr. Zou was a member of the management committee of Russia SIBUR Management 
Co., Ltd. In particular, from June 2016 to June 2018, he was also the deputy supervisor 
of the Foreign Cooperation Office of Sinopec Corp.; from June 2018 to December 
2019, he served as deputy director general of International Cooperation Department, 
deputy head of Foreign Affairs Bureau, deputy supervisor of Hong Kong, Macao and 
Taiwan Office of Sinopec Corp.; since December 2019, he has been the deputy general 
manager of the International Cooperation Department, deputy general manager of 
the Foreign Affairs Department, and the deputy supervisor of the Hong Kong, Macao 
and Taiwan Office of Sinopec Corp. Mr. Zou has been an executive Director of the 
Company since March 2020.
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Mr. Ren Jiajun

Mr. Sang Jinghua

Mr. Ren Jiajun, aged 55, is an executive Director of the Company, is a professoriate 
senior engineer graduated from East China Petroleum Institute with a bachelor’s 
degree in petroleum processing in July 1989. He also holds a bachelor’s degree in 
engineering. From July 1989 to November 2010, Mr. Ren successively held positions in 
Sinopec Great Wall Advanced Lubricant Company, the Production Department and the 
Refining and Chemical Management Department of Sinopec Group and Oil Refining 
Business Division of Sinopec Corp. From November 2010 to September 2018, he 
served as the deputy director general of Oil Refining Business Division of Sinopec Corp. 
From September 2018 to December 2019, he served as the deputy director of the 
Department of Production, Operation and Management of Sinopec Group Company 
(Sinopec Corp.). From December 2019 to August 2020, he served as the deputy 
general manager of the Department of Production, Operation and Management of 
Sinopec Group Company (Sinopec Corp.). He has been serving as the general manager 
of Sinopec Petroleum Marketing Company Limited since August 2020, as well as the 
general manager of Sinopec Petroleum Reserve Company Limited since September 
2018. From September 2018 to August 2020, he successively served as an executive 
director and chairman of Sinopec Petroleum Reserve Company Limited and concurrently 
served as an executive director and general manager of Sinopec Petroleum (Shanghai) 
Reserve Company Limited. Since November 2021, he has also served as a director 
of China International United Petroleum & Chemicals Co., Ltd. Mr. Ren has been an 
executive Director of the Company since January 2021.

Mr. Sang Jinghua, aged 55, is an executive Director and the General Manager of the 
Company, is a senior engineer graduated from the Dalian University of Technology in 
July 1990 with a bachelor’s degree in macromolecule chemical engineering and holds a 
bachelor’s degree in engineering. From July 1990 to May 2019, Mr. Sang successively 
held positions in Shijiazhuang Refinery Branch Company of China Petroleum & 
Chemical Corporation, the board secretariat of Sinopec Corp. and SINOPEC Engineering 
(Group) Co., Ltd. (“Sinopec Engineering”). From May 2012 to January 2013, he 
served as the securities representative of Sinopec Corp. From August 2012 to May 
2019, he was the secretary to the Board Of Directors of Sinopec Engineering. From 
December 2012 to May 2019, he was the company secretary of Sinopec Engineering. 
From May 2014 to May 2019, he was a vice president of Sinopec Engineering. From 
May 2019 to January 2021, Mr. Sang was the executive deputy general manager of the 
Company. Since January 2021, Mr. Sang has been an executive Director, the General 
Manager and a member of each of the remuneration committee and nomination 
committee of the Company, and concurrently serving as a director of Sinopec Kantons 
International Limited, Sinomart KTS Development Limited and Kantons International 
Investment Limited.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria, GBM, JP, aged 77, is an independent non-executive 
Director of the Company. Ms. Tam graduated from London University. She obtained the 
qualification as a barrister-at-law at Gray’s Inn, and practised in Hong Kong. Ms. Tam 
was a member of the Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong Special Administrative 
Region of the People’s Republic of China, a Hong Kong Affairs Advisor of the Hong 
Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the State Council of the People’s Republic of China, 
a Deputy to the 9th to 12th National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of 
China and a member of the Basic Law Committee of Hong Kong Special Administrative 
Region. She was a member of the Operations Review Committee and the Panel of the 
Witness Protection Review Board under Independent Commission Against Corruption 
(“ICAC”) of Hong Kong from January 2010 to December 2014. She was the Chairman 
of Operations Review Committee, a member of the Panel of the Witness Protection 
Review Board, and an Ex-Officio of the Advisory Committee on Corruption under 
ICAC from January 2015 to December 2017. She is currently a Vice-Chairperson of the 
HKSAR Basic Law Committee under the Standing Committee of the National People’s 
Congress of the People’s Republic of China. She is also a member of various community 
service organizations. She is currently an independent non-executive director of Nine 
Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, Wing On Company International Limited, both are 
companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. She is also a director of Green 
Fun Limited, Love Foundation Limited, and Love • Family Foundation Limited. She is 
the Council Member of the Academy of Chinese Studies Limited. Ms. Tam has been an 
independent non-executive Director of the Company since June 1999.

Mr. Fong Chung, Mark, aged 71, is an independent non-executive Director of the 
Company. Mr. Fong was the President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants, and has over 40 years of experience in the accounting profession. He 
was a Council Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 
from June 2016 to June 2018 and was the Chairman of Audit Committee of the Hong 
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants from February 2016 to January 2019. 
Mr. Fong is currently a non-executive director of Worldsec Limited, a company listed on 
the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Fong has been an independent non-executive Director 
of the Company since September 2004.

 

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria

Mr. Fong Chung, Mark

30 Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT



Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP, aged 65, is an independent non-executive 
Director of the Company. Dr. Wong received a doctorate degree in economics from 
the University of Chicago. Dr. Wong has extensive experience in manufacturing, direct 
investment and international trade. Dr. Wong participates actively in public services. 
He is a Hong Kong Deputy to the 12th and the 13th National People’s Congress of 
the People’s Republic of China. Dr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive 
director of Huayi Tencent Entertainment Company Limited, Shenzhen Investment 
Limited and GDH Guangnan (Holdings) Limited, all of which are companies listed on 
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Dr. Wong has been an independent non-executive 
Director of the Company since March 2014.

Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla, SBS, JP, a practising barrister in Hong Kong, aged 62, 
is an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Ms. Wong obtained a 
Bachelor of Laws (Hons) degree from the University of Hong Kong and a Master of Laws 
degree from the London School of Economics and Political Science of the University 
of London. She is qualified as a barrister in Hong Kong, an advocate and solicitor 
in Singapore, a mediator of Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR) and an 
arbitrator of China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (CIETAC). 
Ms. Wong holds a number of public positions in Mainland China and the Hong Kong 
Special Administrative Region. She is currently a member of Shanghai Committee of 
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the chairman of the Minimum 
Wage Commission of Hong Kong, the chairman of Prince of Wales Hospital Governing 
Committee, the chairman of the Council and a member of the Court of the University 
of Hong Kong, the convener of the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Hong Kong 
Special Administrative Region and the chairman of the Independent Police Complaints 
Council. Ms. Wong has been an independent non-executive Director of the Company 
since March 2018.

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David

Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla
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Senior Management
Mr. Pang Ai Bin, aged 52, the Deputy General Manager of the Company, graduated with a 
bachelor degree in Industrial Management Engineering from Nanjing Aviation College in July 
1991, holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering, and has professional qualification of senior 
economist. Mr. Pang worked for Sinopec Jiujiang Petrochemical from July 1991 to July 2002. 
He worked in the Crude Oil Trading Department of Sinopec International Co., Ltd. from July 
2002 to September 2005. From September 2005 to November 2022, he served as deputy 
general manager of the Crude Oil Department of China International United Petroleum & 
Chemicals Co., Ltd., deputy general manager of Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited, general 
manager of the Crude Oil Resource Allocation Centre and general manager of the Logistics 
Optimisation Management Centre of China International United Petroleum & Chemicals Co., 
Ltd. Since November 2022, Mr. Pang started to work as the Deputy General Manager of the 
Company.

Mr. Shi Baoming, aged 50, the Deputy General Manager of the Company, graduated from 
China University of Petroleum (East China) in July 1994 with a bachelor’s degree in chemical 
engineering and graduated from Dalian University of Technology in November 2002 with a 
master’s degree in business administration, holder of master degree of Management, and has 
professional qualification of senior economist. Mr. Shi worked at Sinopec Information Centre, 
Sinopec Economic and Technical Research Institute, Sinopec International Co. Ltd. and China 
International United Petroleum & Chemicals Co., Ltd. (during which he served as the business 
manager of the Oil Products Department and the deputy general manager of the Marketing 
Strategy Department) from July 1994 to August 2018. From April 2015 to February 2018, Mr. 
Shi was the deputy county head of Luxi County in Hunan Province (temporary post). Mr. Shi 
has extensive overseas experience and worked for UNIPEC Singapore Pte Limited from June 
2009 to June 2014 in trading and market analysis of refined oil products, was the general 
manager of Fujairah Oil Terminal FZC from August 2018 to December 2021, and assistant 
to general manager of Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited from January 2022 to April 2022. 
In 2022, he was honoured with the Aramco Trading New Silk Road CEO of the Year Award 
2022 (oil warehousing category). From January 2022 to April 2022, Mr. Shi was the assistant 
general manager of the Company and from April 2022, Mr. Shi worked as the Deputy General 
Manager of the Company.

Mr. Xiao Weijie, aged 54, the Deputy General Manager and Chief Safety Officer of the 
Company, graduated from Liaoning Petrochemical University in July 1990 with a bachelor’s 
degree in computer software and graduated from the Staffordshire University in the United 
Kingdom in June 2003 with a master’s degree in business administration, holder of Master 
of Business Administration, and has professional qualification of senior economist. From July 
1990 to June 2020, he worked for Fujian Refinery, Fujian Petrochemical Co., Ltd. and China 
International United Petroleum & Chemicals Co., Ltd. From October 2000 to June 2007, he 
was the deputy director of the Foreign Trade Centre and the Marketing Centre of Fujian 
Refining & Chemical Co., Ltd. From July 2007 to June 2020, he was the deputy general 
manager of the Crude Oil Department, Planning and Information Department, Development 
Department, General Management Department and Corporate Management Department of 
China International United Petroleum & Chemicals Co., Ltd. From July 2020 to April 2022, 
he was the Director of Safety of the Company. Since April 2022, he worked as the Deputy 
General Manager and Chief Safety Officer of the Company.

Mr. Shi Baoming

Mr. Xiao Weijie

Mr. Pang Ai Bin
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Mr. Jiang Yu, aged 36, the Deputy General Manager of the Company, graduated from 
Nanjing Normal University in July 2009 with a bachelor’s degree in sociology and social work, 
and graduated from Nanjing Normal University in July 2012 with a master’s degree in human 
resources and social security, holder of Master of Management. From July 2012 to October 
2016, Mr. Jiang worked in the Sixth Physical Exploration Brigade of Sinopec East China 
Petroleum Bureau, Sinopec Geophysical Company Limited East China Branch and Human 
Resources Department, and the Human Resources Department of China International United 
Petroleum & Chemical Company Limited. From October 2016 to April 2022, he was the 
personnel manager and general manager of the General Management Department of the 
company and from June 2018 to June 2020, he concurrently served as a director of Fujairah 
Oil Terminal FZC. Since April 2022, Mr. Jiang worked as the Deputy General Manager of the 
Company.

Mr. Wang Haifeng, aged 41, the Deputy General Manager and the Chief Financial Officer 
of the Company, graduated from the Central University of Finance and Economics in June 
2003 with a bachelor’s degree in accounting and obtained a master’s degree in management 
from the Central University of Finance and Economics in March 2012, and has professional 
qualification of senior auditor. From July 2003 to October 2014, he worked in the Sales 
Enterprise Division and Audit Supervision Division of the Audit Bureau. From 2014 to October 
2022, he served as a business manager and audit specialist in the Audit Department of China 
International United Petroleum & Chemicals Co., Ltd. Since November 2022, Mr. Wang 
worked as the Deputy General Manager and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Mr. Wang Xiaoming, aged 44, the Joint Company Secretary and Secretary to the Board of 
the Company, graduated from the China University of Petroleum (East China) in July 2000 with 
a bachelor’s degree in oil and gas storage and transportation and graduated from the China 
University of Petroleum (Beijing) in July 2006 with a master’s degree in oil and gas storage 
and transportation. From July 2000 to April 2022, Mr. Wang worked for China Petroleum & 
Chemical Corporation Guangdong Petroleum Branch and Sinopec Economics & Development 
Research Institute Company Limited (“Sinopec EDRI”). From June 2012 to April 2022, he 
was the deputy manager of the Evaluation and Assessment Centre of Sinopec EDRI. Since May 
2022, Mr. Wang worked as the Joint Company Secretary and Secretary to the Board of the 
Company. 

Mr. Wang Haifeng

Mr. Wang Xiaoming

Mr. Jiang Yu

Particulars of Changes in Directors Subsequent to the Date of 2021 Annual 
Report
The following change is disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules:

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria, Independent Non-executive Director, resigned as a director of Hong Kong Chronicles Institute 
Limited since 13 May 2022.
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Compliance with the Corporate 
Governance Code
The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of 

corporate governance to properly safeguard and enhance 

the interests of its shareholders. The Board sets its corporate 

governance policies pursuant to the Corporate Governance 

Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the 

“Corporate Governance Code”), and it accordingly reviews 

and monitors the training and continuing professional 

development of Directors and the senior management and 

its policies and practices in compliance with relevant laws 

and regulatory requirements.

During 2022, the Company has complied with all the code 

provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code 

which came into effect during the Year and has adopted, 

where appropriate, the recommended best practices set out 

therein, except for the code provisions set out below:

Code Provision F.2.2
On 16 June 2022, the Company convened the annual 

general meeting. Affected by the COVID-19 pandemic 

control measures, Mr. Chen Yaohuan, the Chairman of the 

Board, was not able to come to Hong Kong to attend and 

preside at the annual general meeting as required under 

Code Provision F.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code. 

Pursuant to Bye-law 71 of the Bye-laws and as elected by 

the attending Directors, Mr. Sang Jinghua, an executive 

Director and the General Manager, presided at the annual 

general meeting. Details of the attendance of Directors at 

general meetings during the year are set out in the sections 

headed “The Board of Directors” – “Board Procedures” 

and “Shareholders and Investors Information” – “General 

Meeting” in this report.

The Company applies the principles set out in the Corporate 

Governance Code to its corporate governance structure and 

practices and the application of these principles is set out in 

this report.

Vision of Corporate Development 
and Corporate Culture
The Board of the Company has set the long-term 

development goal of the Company, which is committed to 

become a world-class international petrochemical storage 

and logistics company. In order to achieve this goal, the 

Company has adhered to a proactive, prudent and stable 

operation strategy to expand its core businesses such as 

crude oil jetties and storage and logistics services through 

mergers and acquisitions and investment and construction, 

thereby expanding the Group’s scale of operation, enhancing 

its profitability and strengthening its competitive strength 

on an ongoing basis. In 2022, the senior management 

of the Company reported the development plan of the 

Group to the Board and heard the opinion of the Directors, 

which promoted the realisation of long-term development 

objectives of the Company.

The Company fully understands that corporate development 

is closely related to the future of human society, and attaches 

great importance to environmental protection and corporate 

social responsibility, and organically integrates the concept 

of sustainable development into the Company’s corporate 

culture. The Company has made a solemn commitment to 

the public in five areas, namely operating legally, respecting 

stakeholders, developing together, valuing safety and green, 

and improving continuously for continuing the development 

of the Group’s businesses. The Company established the 

Environmental, Social and Governance Working Committee 

in 2020, with members including all senior management and 

key members of each business and functional departments, 

such working committee is responsible for formulating 

the Environmental, Social and Governance objectives and 

plans, and reports its work to the Board regularly. Further 

descriptions are set out in the Environmental, Social and 

Governance Report of the Group.
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The Board of Directors
Composition of the Board
The Board provides effective and responsible leadership for 

the Company. The Directors, individually and jointly, act in 

good faith and in the best interests of the Company and its 

shareholders as a whole. The Board formulates the strategy 

and direction of the Group, reviews its performance and is 

also responsible for decision-making on significant corporate 

matters of the Company such as effective supervision of 

environmental, social and governance matters, annual 

and interim results, notifiable transactions and connected 

transactions, appointment of Directors, dividend distribution 

and accounting policies. The Board has delegated the 

senior management the responsibility of managing the daily 

operation and overseeing the business of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, 

the Board comprised seven executive Directors and four 

independent non-executive Directors, members of which 

include top experts with international perspectives in 

business management, business development and operation, 

laws and regulations, and finance and accounting, providing 

professional and independent insights and perspectives to 

the Board. Meanwhile, all Directors have timely access to all 

relevant Board meeting materials and may seek independent 

and professional advice when necessary, including but not 

limited to the Company’s standing legal counsel and auditor.

Gender

Age Group

Length of Services
(No. of years)

Concurrently holding
directorships in other listed
companies (No. of companies)

2 Directors

7 Directors 2 Directors 2 Directors

9 Directors

Female

50-59

8 Directors

0-5

7 Directors

0

2 Directors

1

1 Director

2

1 Director

3

1 Directors

6-10

2 Directors

10+

60-69 70-79

Male
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Professional Backgrounds and Experience of Directors

Professional backgrounds of the Directors Number of Directors

Finance and accounting 5
  

Engineering 3
  

Legal 2
  

General management and corporate governance 1
  

The names of the Directors who held office during 2022 

and up to the date of this report are set out in the section 

headed “Report of the Directors” in this annual report. 

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the 

section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this 

annual report.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, a Director shall 

be appointed (but may be reappointed or re-elected) for a 

term not exceeding three years. As at the date of this report, 

the average length of service of the existing Board members 

as Directors of the Company is 6.9 years. At the annual 

general meeting held on 16 June 2022, Mr. Mo Zhenglin, 

Mr. Yang Yanfei, Mr. Zou Wenzhi and Mr. Fong Chung, 

Mark were re-elected.

Roles and Responsibilities
Good governance emanates from an effective and 

accountable Board. The Board, directly and indirectly 

through its committees, leads and provides direction 

to senior management by laying down strategies and 

overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s 

operational and financial performance, reviews the Group’s 

remuneration policies, and ensures that effective governance 

and corporate social responsibility policies and sound internal 

control and risk management systems are in place.

To achieve effective oversight and leadership, the Board 

regularly reviews progress reports on the Group’s 

strategies, plans and budgets and receives advice from 

Board committees and external auditors. The Board has 

established an Audit Committee, a remuneration committee 

(“Remuneration Committee”) and a nomination 

committee (“Nomination Committee”) of the Company 

and has delegated to these committees the responsibility 

for overseeing the affairs of the Company in specified 

areas in accordance with defined terms of reference. The 

Board reviews the composition and terms of reference of 

the Board Committees from time to time to ensure that 

the arrangements remain appropriate and in line with the 

development of the Group’s business and governance 

practices. The composition of each committee is set out 

below and the responsibilities of each committee are further 

described in this report.

Audit Committee Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee

Mr. Fong Chung, Mark 

(Chairperson)

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David 

(Chairperson)

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria 

(Chairperson)
   

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria Mr. Chen Yaohuan Mr. Chen Yaohuan
   

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria Mr. Fong Chung, Mark
   

Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla Mr. Fong Chung, Mark Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David
   

Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla
   

Mr. Sang Jinghua Mr. Sang Jinghua
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The Board may, at the Company’s expense, request 

the Company to engage professional bodies to provide 

independent views and opinions to bring a different 

perspective to the decision-making process as and when 

required, and this mechanism has been operating effectively. 

During the Year, when the Company applied for renewal of 

continuing connected transactions, the Board appointed all 

independent non-executive Directors to form an Independent 

Board Committee as required under the Listing Rules and 

an independent financial adviser was engaged to advise the 

Independent Board Committee.

During the Year, the Chairman of the Board held one closed 

meeting with the independent non-executive Directors 

without the presence of other Directors.

Chairman of the Board and the General 
Manager of the Company
The Chairman of the Board and General Manager of the 

Company are held by Mr. Chen Yaohuan and Mr. Sang 

Jinghua, respectively. This segregation of duties ensures a 

clear delineation between the Chairman’s responsibility to 

manage the Board and the General Manager’s responsibility 

to manage the Company’s business.

The major role of the Chairman of the Board is to lead the 

Board and to ensure the effective operation of the Board, 

including determining and approving the agenda for each 

Board meeting, with the assistance of the General Manager 

and the Joint Company Secretary(ies), taking into account 

any matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in 

the agenda where appropriate, to ensure that the Directors 

receive adequate, accurate and complete information in a 

timely manner, are aware of the matters under discussion 

and that all important and appropriate matters are discussed 

in a timely manner, and encourage those with different 

views to express their concerns and allow sufficient time 

for discussion of these matters, so that the decisions of the 

Board fairly reflect the consensus of the Directors.

The Chairman of the Board encourages all Directors to 

devote their full attention to the affairs of the Board and 

meets once a year with the independent non-executive 

Directors without the presence of other Directors. The 

Chairman of the Board and other Directors make every 

effort to maintain effective contact with shareholders and to 

ensure that the views of shareholders are communicated to 

all the Board members.

The role of the General Manager is to lead the senior 

management of the Company and has overall responsibility 

for the implementation and execution of the strategies 

and objectives set by the Board and the management of 

the Group’s business. The General Manager and senior 

management will report to the Board on a quarterly basis 

and provide key monthly updates on business operations, 

financial results and strategy.

Duties of the Board and the Senior 
Management
Details of the responsibilities of the Board and the senior 

management of the Company are as follows:

Responsibilities of the Board of the Company:

(1) determining the policy for corporate governance and 

performing duties under the Corporate Governance 

Code (including but not limited to A.2.1);

(2) being responsible for convening general meetings;

(3) executing the resolutions of general meetings;

(4) determining the development plans and operation 

plans;

(5) preparing the profit distribution plan and loss recovery 

plan;

(6) preparing material acquisition or disposal plans, as well 

as the plans for merger, spin-off, change of corporate 

form and dissolution;
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(7) under the authorization of general meeting 

determining matters such as the Company’s external 

investment, acquisition and disposal of assets, pledge 

of assets, disposal and repurchase of the Company’s 

shares, and transactions, etc;

(8) appointing or dismissing the general manager of the 

Company, and appointing or dismissing the company 

secretary according to the nomination of the general 

manager;

(9) being responsible for formulating the policies related 

to risk management, internal audit and internal 

control, and authorizing the Audit Committee to 

represent the Board to monitor the progress of work in 

risk management, internal audit and internal control;

(10) based on the recommendation of the Nomination 

Committee, determining the Director candidates and 

submitting them to general meeting for approval;

(11) reviewing the implementation and effectiveness of the 

Board’s diversity policy annually;

(12) based on the recommendation of the Remuneration 

Committee, determining the remuneration of Directors 

and senior management;

(13) finalizing the basic management system;

(14) managing the information disclosure;

(15) proposing to general meeting the appointment or 

change of the Company’s auditor;

(16) formulating the amendment plans of the Bye-laws, 

and submitting them to general meeting for approval;

(17) determining other material matters and administrative 

matters other than those required to be determined by 

general meeting of the Company according to laws, 

regulations, the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws, as well 

as entering into other important agreements;

(18) reviewing the implementation and effectiveness of 

mechanism(s) to ensure independent views and input 

are available to the Board annually.

Responsibilities of the senior management of the Company:

(1) being responsible for the daily operation and 

management, the organization and implementation of 

resolutions of the Board and the reporting of work to 

the Board;

(2) organizing and implementing the annual operation 

plan and investment plan;

(3) formulating the internal management system;

(4) preparing the fundamental management policies and 

submitting them to the Board for approval;

(5) formulating specific regulations;

(6) proposing the appointment or dismissal of deputy 

general managers and the chief financial officer of the 

Company; appointing or dismissing other management 

staff other than those that should be appointed or 

dismissed by the Board;

(7) determining the salaries, benefits, rewards and 

punishment for the staff, and determining the 

appointment and dismissal of the staff of the 

Company;

(8) proposing to convene extraordinary meetings of the 

Board;

(9) thoroughly implementing the risk management, 

internal audit and internal control policies formulated 

by the Board and confirming with the Audit 

Committee the effectiveness of the risk management 

and internal control systems;
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(10) thoroughly implementing the environmental, social 

and governance policies formulated by the Board and 

be responsible for the preparation of Environmental, 

Social and Governance Report according to the 

regulatory requirements;

(11) other responsibilities granted by the Bye-laws and the 

Board.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/

relevant relationships between the Chairman of the Board, 

the General Manager and other Directors of the Company.

Induction and Development
Directors are provided with comprehensive induction training 

in a timely manner to ensure that they have a thorough 

understanding of the Group’s operations and governance 

policies, as well as their role and responsibilities. Every 

new Board member receives compliance training provided 

by legal adviser and attends Directors’ training annually. 

Continual training allows Directors to stay abreast of current 

trends and material issues of the Group, as well as allows 

the Directors to update their skills and knowledge required 

to perform their duties. 

During the Year, all Directors participated in trainings 

through various ways. The record of Directors’ participation 

in trainings is as follows:

Types of Training

Executive Directors
  

Mr. Chen Yaohuan (Chairman) A、B
  

Mr. Zhong Fuliang B
  

Mr. Mo Zhenglin A、B
  

Mr. Yang Yanfei A、B
  

Mr. Zou Wenzhi B
  

Mr. Ren Jiajun A、B
  

Mr. Sang Jinghua (General Manager) A、B
  

Independent Non-executive Directors
  

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria A、B
  

Mr. Fong Chung, Mark A、B
  

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David A、B
  

Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla A、B
  

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating to directors’ duties or other relevant topics

B: reading newspaper, journals, materials and/or updates relating to the economy, the industry conditions of the Company or directors’ duties and 

compliance matters
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Board Procedures
The Board convenes meetings regularly on a quarterly 

basis, notice of meeting will be given a minimum of 14 

days prior to the meeting, and the agenda and related 

meeting documents should be sent to all Directors as soon 

as possible. Reasonable notice will be issued for other 

extraordinary meetings. Directors make their best effort to 

attend in person or to participate actively through electronic 

communications whenever practicable. All Directors 

have the right to access Board documents and related 

information, and the Company will respond as promptly and 

comprehensively as possible to questions raised by Directors.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board 

committees are kept by the joint company secretaries 

and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on 

reasonable notice by any Director. Drafted meeting minutes 

are promptly prepared for attending Directors’ comment and 

final version is signed by the chairman of the meeting for 

confirmation and record.

To ensure that independent views and input are available 

to the Board, members of the Board may, at any time, 

request additional information from management for 

further enquiries on matters under consideration or 

request in seeking independent professional advice at the 

Company’s expense to assist the Directors in discharging 

their responsibilities. In the event that a major shareholder 

or Board member has a material conflict of interest in the 

matter to be considered, such matter will be dealt with 

by way of a Board meeting with the absence of such 

shareholder or Director.

During the Year, the attendance of each Director of the 

Company at various meetings is as follows:

the Board

Audit

Committee

Nomination

Committee

Remuneration

Committee

General

Meeting

Independent

Board

Committee#

No. of meetings 6 2 1 1 2 1
       

Mr. Chen Yaohuan 6/6 1/1 1/1 0/2
       

Mr. Zhong Fuliang 5/6 0/2
       

Mr. Mo Zhenglin 5/6 0/2
       

Mr. Yang Yanfei 5/6 0/2
       

Mr. Zou Wenzhi 5/6 0/2
       

Mr. Ren Jiajun 6/6 0/2
       

Mr. Sang Jinghua 6/6 1/1 1/1 2/2
       

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria 6/6 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/2 1/1
       

Mr. Fong Chung, Mark 6/6 2/2 1/1 1/1 2/2 1/1
       

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David 6/6 2/2 1/1 1/1 2/2 1/1
       

Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla 6/6 2/2 1/1 1/1 2/2 1/1
       

# During the Year, as required under the Listing Rules, the Board appointed all independent non-executive Directors to establish an independent Board 

committee to provide advice to independent shareholders, for the purpose of updating the Group’s non-exempt connected transactions framework 

master agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder.
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Liability Insurance for Directors
The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for 

the Directors of the Company, such arrangements remain in 

force as at 31 December 2022 and the date of this report.

Joint Company Secretaries
All Directors can have the advice and services provided by 

the joint company secretaries. The joint company secretaries 

report to the Chairman on Board governance matters 

and are responsible for ensuring compliance with Board 

procedures and facilitating the flow of information and 

communication among Directors and between Directors and 

shareholders and management.

During the Year, Mr. Li Wenping resigned as the company 

secretary of the Company with effect from 20 May 2022 

due to retirement. Mr. Wang Xiaoming (“Mr. Wang”) and 

Ms. Huang He (“Ms. Huang”) have been appointed as the 

joint company secretaries of the Company.

Given Mr. Wang does not possess the requisite professional 

qualifications or relevant experience as required under Rule 

3.28 of the Listing Rules, the Company has applied to the 

Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted, 

a waiver (the “Waiver”) from strict compliance with Rules 

3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules for a period of three 

years (the “Waiver Period”), commencing from 20 May 

2022, being the date of appointment of Mr. Wang as a 

joint company secretary of the Company, on the following 

conditions:

(a) Mr. Wang will be assisted by Ms. Huang during the 

Waiver Period; and

(b) the Waiver could be revoked if there are material 

breaches of the Listing Rules by the Company.

Mr. Wang Xiaoming and Ms. Huang He have attended more 

than 15 hours of professional training related to compliance 

and regulation of listed companies in 2022.

Remuneration of Directors and 
Senior Management
The Company has established procedures for determining 

the remuneration packages of Directors and senior 

management, which are reviewed from time to time. For 

details of the remuneration policy and information of the 

Remuneration Committee, please refer to the section headed 

“Remuneration Committee” in this report.

Model Code for Securities 
Transactions by Directors and Senior 
Management
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own 

code of conduct regarding the securities transactions of the 

Directors, senior management and normal employees and 

has formulated the code for securities transactions. Having 

made specific enquiry to all Directors, all Directors confirmed 

that they had complied with the required standards set out 

in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 

2022.

For information on the Directors’ and chief executive’s 

interests or short positions in the shares, underlying 

shares and debentures, please refer to the section headed 

“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions 

in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” in the 

“Report of the Directors” of this annual report.

Continuing Connected Transactions
For details of the Group’s continuing connected transactions, 

please refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions” 

in this annual report.
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Responsibilities of Directors for the 
Financial Statements
The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation 

of the annual financial statements and the Board receives 

monthly updates on the performance, financial position 

and prospects of the Group. The Directors recognized 

their responsibilities for the preparation of the Company 

‘s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 

2022. Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Directors 

are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to 

events or situations that may cast significant doubt upon 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The 

responsibility statement of the auditor of the Company about 

its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set 

out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 63 to 

69 of this annual report.

Audit Committee
Powers and Duties
The Audit Committee is authorized by the Board to be 

responsible for reviewing the accounting standards and 

practices, audit, effectiveness of internal control, risk 

management, internal audit and legal and regulatory 

compliance of the Group. It also reviews the interim and 

annual results of the Group prior to recommending such 

results to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee 

hold regular meetings to review financial reporting and 

risk management and internal control matters and has 

unrestricted access to the Company’s auditor to this end. 

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, 

including support from the internal risk control department 

(“Risk Control Department“), external auditor, legal 

adviser and senior management to review any matters 

involving the accounting principles and practices adopted by 

the Group and to review all significant financial, operational 

and compliance controls measures.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set out 

on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Composition of the Committee and 
Summary of Work During the Year
Composition of the Audit Committee (all are independent 

non-executive Directors):

Mr. Fong Chung, Mark (Chairperson)

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David

Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla

During the Year, two meetings of the Audit Committee 

were held and the attendance records of the Directors can 

be found in the section headed “The Board of Directors” – 

“Board Procedures” of this report and a summary of their 

work is as follows:

1. Reviewed the Group’s interim and annual financial 

reports and results announcements to ensure 

integrity, transparency and consistency of the financial 

disclosures;

2. Reviewed with senior management and external 

auditor the accounting principles and practices 

adopted by the Group;

3. Reviewed the “Independent Auditor’s Report” made 

by the external auditor, in particular to the Key Audit 

Matters in the report and reviewed the proposal 

for the adoption of new accounting principles (if 

applicable);

4. Reviewed the risk control management report, 

discussed risk management and internal control issues, 

reviewed the Group’s internal control system and the 

adequacy and effectiveness of its accounting, financial 

reporting and internal audit functions;

42 Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT



5. Reviewed and monitored the relationship with the 

external auditor, including overseeing its appointment, 

independence, remuneration and tenure;

6. Reviewed continuing connected transactions.

Review of continuing connected 
transactions
During the Year, the independent non-executive Directors 

reviewed the Group’s continuing connected transactions and 

confirmed that they had been entered into:

1. in the ordinary course of the business of the Company;

2. on normal or better commercial terms; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms 

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the 

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In order to maintain business continuity and in line with the 

practical needs of the Group’s business development, on 

26 October 2022, the Group entered into the continuing 

connected transactions framework agreements in relation to 

the renewal of existing continuing connected transactions 

for the three financial years ended 31 December 2025. As 

required under the Listing Rules, the Board appointed all 

independent non-executive Directors, being all members 

of the Audit Committee, to establish an Independent 

Board Committee and appointed an independent financial 

adviser to consider relevant transactions and to advise the 

independent shareholders of the Company in respect of the 

transactions which require approval in general meeting. For 

details of the transactions, please refer to the section headed 

“Connected Transactions” in this annual report.

External Auditor
Independence
The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the 

independence of KPMG, the Group’s external auditor, to 

ensure its objectivity in auditing the financial statements. To 

ensure that all entities within the Group strictly implement 

the policy on restricting the provision of non-audit work by 

the external auditor, the Group has established appropriate 

policies and procedures which set out (i) the classification of 

services, including pre-approved services, non-pre-approved 

services and prohibited services; and (ii) the approval process 

for non-pre-approved services.

Representatives of the external auditor attended the annual 

general meeting held on 16 June 2022 as usual to respond 

to questions from shareholders of the Company.

Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the following fees 

were paid/payable by the Group to KPMG, the auditor, and 

its network members:

Unit: HK$ million

 2022 2021

Audit services 5.29 5.00
   

– the Company 2.00 2.00
   

– subsidiaries 3.29 3.00
   

Non-audit services – –
   

Total 5.29 5.00
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Re-appointment
The Audit Committee was satisfied with the work of KPMG, 

its independence, objectivity, qualifications, expertise, 

resources and the effectiveness of the audit process. 

Therefore, the Audit Committee recommended the re-

appointment of KPMG as the Group’s external auditor for 

the next financial year (which the firm has indicated its 

willingness to be re-appointed), which will be submitted 

for approval by the shareholders of the Company at the 

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Establishment of System and Culture
To ensure the establishment and maintenance of appropriate 

and effective risk management and internal control systems 

of the Company, the Company has adopted the “Enterprise 

Risk Management” framework in a top-down approach. The 

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the senior 

management’s design, implementation and supervision 

of such systems according to the delegation of the Board 

and the effectiveness of such systems is reviewed at least 

annually. The Board recognizes its responsibilities for the risk 

management and internal control systems of the Company 

and review of the effectiveness of such systems. However, 

such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate 

the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can 

only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against 

material misstatement or loss.

Environment for Risk Management and 
Internal Control
In order to assist the Audit Committee to continue to 

oversee the risk management and internal control systems 

of the Company and fully identify and manage all significant 

risks, the Company has established Risk Control Department, 

which is a centralized department and is responsible for risk 

management, internal audit and compliance management 

matters.

The Company has established the risk management and 

internal control systems according to the following principles:

1. Alignment to the Company’s strategy: The enterprise 

risk management is aligned to the Company’s strategic 

targets;

2. Compliance: The Company complies with the relevant 

laws, regulations and the requirements stipulated by 

regulatory bodies, and conforms to the Listing Rules 

and relevant management systems;

3. Comprehensiveness: The enterprise risk management 

involves all employees of the Company, and plays 

important roles in decision-making, management and 

execution in all business areas;

4. Materiality: The Company focuses on risk management 

of key businesses and high risk areas;

5. Cost effectiveness: The Company utilizes existing 

resources and optimizes their allocation, and 

implements effective risk control procedures at 

a reasonable cost to enhance the efficiency and 

effectiveness of the risk management and internal 

control systems;

6. Integration: The enterprise risk management should 

integrate with the existing management systems and 

complement and support each other.
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The Company resolves the internal control weaknesses by setting a three-line defense system. The three-line defense system is 

illustrating as below:

 
 

The Board

Audit Committee

Internal Auditors

Risk Control Department

Business departments and 
operating entities

Top decision makers and ultimate 
responsibility undertakers

Daily management and supervisor

Daily executors

 Inspection
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The first line is operational management and control. All 

departments and their subordinate units should manage 

and control their respective risk areas, identify and resolve 

problems in a timely manner. The second line is risk 

management and compliance. Risk Control Department 

coordinates all departments to carry out risk management 

process. If Risk Control Department discovers internal 

control weaknesses, they shall be reported for rectification 

in a timely manner. The third line is the Audit Committee 

and the internal audit personnel that are responsible for 

considering the system’s construction plan and evaluating 

its effectiveness. Significant internal control deficiencies, if 

found in the review, will be reported to the Audit Committee 

and the Board for solutions.

The Company continued to improve the construction of 

its internal control system. For corporate governance, 

we formulated and amended the ”Measures for the 

Administration of Authorization of the Board” to 

promote the standardized operation of the Board; for risk 

management, the “Measures for the Implementation of Risk 

Management” was amended to improve the enterprise risk 

management system; in order to improve the standard of 

listing compliance management, the “Listing Compliance 

Guidelines” was formulated to regulate the Company’s 

requirements on capital operation, information disclosure, 

connected transactions and securities transactions by 

employees; for operations management, the “Measures 

for Supervising and Managing the Operation of Operating 

Entities” was revised and implemented to improve the 

effective control, coordination and integration mechanism 

for our operating entities.

Risk Identification and Response Measures
The Group is exposed to various key risks and uncertainties 

which, if not properly managed, could have an impact on 

the Group. Regular tracking and monitoring of material risks 

and multi-dimensional monitoring of risk issues in operations 

help the Group to ensure that risks are effectively controlled 

and managed.

Comprehensive risk identification, assessment and response 

measures for all functional departments are performed by 

Risk Control Department on a quarterly basis for the purpose 

of studying existing and emerging risks and discussing the 

changes of risks caused by changes in internal and external 

environment. The Risk Control Department consolidates 

the significant risks identified, and compiles a quarterly risk 

management report after going through filtering, prioritizing 

as well as consultation and comprehensively reviews the 

notifiable transactions and connected transactions annually for 

reporting to the senior management. Risk management and 

internal control report is prepared by Risk Control Department 

on an annual basis and submitted to the Audit Committee 

for auditing after being reviewed by the senior management 

of members the Company. The principal risks faced by the 

Group (for details of the risks arising from climate, please refer 

to the Company’s standalone 2022 Environmental, Social and 

Governance Report) are as follows:

Principal risks Description Key response measures

Financial Risk
   

Exchange Risk  The Company is engaged in petrochemical 

storage, jetty and logistics businesses in the 

PRC, Europe and UAE through its respective 

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, 

and generates operating income in RMB, 

Euro and US$ respectively. As the exchange 

rates of RMB, Euro and US$ against HK$ 

fluctuate, the Group faces exchange risk to 

a certain extent.

 The Company continuously monitors the exchange 

rate of major currencies, tracks its impact on the 

Company’s profits, and mitigates exchange risk by fund 

management. For details please refer to the paragraph 

headed “Exchange Rate Risk” as set out in the section 

headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this 

annual report.
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Principal risks Description Key response measures

Global and Political Risk
   

Political and Policy 

Risks

 The macroeconomic policies, industrial 

policies and regulatory policies of the 

Chinese government and new changes 

which may happen in the future, such as 

changes in pricing and other management 

policies of domestic oil and gas industry, 

would affect the production, operation and 

efficiency of the Company’s crude oil jetty 

and storage business.

 The political environment and government 

policies of overseas projects have a 

significant impact on the business, 

increasing the unpredictability of the 

progress and operation of overseas 

projects.

 The Company actively tracks changes in the domestic 

energy market, enhances its ability to undertake domestic 

complementary infrastructure and conducts feasibility 

studies on domestic storage projects in a timely manner 

to ensure that the Company’s overall strategic layout and 

interests are maximised.

 The Company regularly tracks and analyses international 

political and policy information to enhance its 

understanding of the local market for medium and long-

term capital expenditure and investment research.

   

Risks in relation 

to changes in 

macroeconomic 

condition

 The operating results of the Group are 

closely related to the economic condition 

and energy demand of China. Affected by 

continuous global COVID-19 pandemic, the 

economic condition and energy demand of 

China are filled with uncertainties and the 

fluctuation of crude oil price may have an 

impact on the storage and jetty business. 

In terms of international situation, as the 

Federal Reserve of the U.S. announced 

that it would speed up its tapering of bond 

purchase, a cycle of interest rate hikes 

began, which may lead to a slowdown 

in the growth of major economies in the 

world. In conjunction with the Russia-

Ukraine conflict and the imposition of 

sanctions on Russian oil exports by a 

number of countries, these geopolitical 

factors are expected to add further 

uncertainty to the international oil market.

 The Company strengthens the tracking and research of 

new energy and new technology, deeply analyses the 

international oil and gas and market demand, studies 

and grasps the information of industry development 

trend, industrial layout and competitors, coordinates 

the development of the Company, pays attention to the 

strategic, global and systematic nature of development 

planning, and strives to grasp strategic development 

opportunities.

 The Company actively communicates with its operating 

entities to understand the local economic conditions and 

feedback information, conducts timely risk assessment, 

implements timely quality and efficiency improvement, 

enhances project competitiveness and conducts feasibility 

studies on storage business in order to enhance overall 

efficiency.
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Principal risks Description Key response measures

Business and Operational Risk
 

Investment Risk  The petroleum and petrochemical storage 

and logistics industry is a capital-intensive 

industry. Although the Company has 

adopted a prudent investment strategy 

and actively adopted risk prevention and 

control measures, and conducted rigorous 

feasibility studies on each investment 

project, uncertainties relating to market 

environment, geopolitics and legal disputes 

may still exist, which may lead to the 

failure of the investment projects and the 

possibility that expected returns could not 

be achieved, with exposure to investment 

impairment risk to a certain extent.

 The Company continuously monitors the operating 

condition of each investment project and the 

neighbouring market conditions, conducts in-depth 

analysis and evaluation of investment value for projects, 

and implements cost control measures in order to 

manage the investment risk.

   

Legal and 

Compliance Risks
 The business operations of the Group are 

closely linked to related parties and there is 

a risk that the Company and its operating 

entities may have incomplete identification 

of related parties and inadequate training 

in knowledge of connected transactions.

 The Company formulated “Measures for the 

Management of Connected Transactions” to clarify 

the business process of connected transactions, further 

regulate the work content and timing of relevant 

connected transactions of various departments of the 

Company, and strengthen the control over connected 

transaction operations of its subsidiaries.

 The Company completed the signing of the connected 

transaction agreements on time and the announcement 

has been disclosed. The transactions have been approved 

at the special general meeting in accordance with the 

requirements of the Listing Rules.
   

Risks in relation 

to production and 

operation and 

natural disasters

 The petroleum and petrochemical storage 

and logistics industry is exposed to the risks 

of inflammation, explosion, environmental 

pollution and natural disasters. The 

problem of climate change is becoming 

more and more severe, and heavy rainfall 

or typhoons may cause contingencies that 

affect the smooth operation of jetties and 

crude oil pipelines and may cause severe 

impacts on the environment and society 

and bring substantial economic losses 

to the Company and grievous injuries to 

people.

 The Company has always attached great emphasis 

on production safety and has implemented a strict 

management system for health, safety, security and 

environment (“HSSE”). It has also coordinated with 

the Environmental, Social and Governance Working 

Committee to conduct regular assessment of risks in 

relation to environmental, social and governance matters 

to jointly develop and review its monitoring strategies, 

in an effort to ensure that the Company has taken 

appropriate measures to minimize risks in relation to 

environmental, social and governance matters. However, 

such measures may not completely shield the Company 

from economic losses or adverse impacts resulting from 

such contingencies. For coping with climate risks, please 

refer to the Environment, Social and Governance Report 

of the Company.
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Anti-corruption, Anti-Money laundering and 
Anti-Commercial Bribery Policies
The Company has established anti-corruption, anti-

money laundering and anti-commercial bribery compliance 

guidelines, which are revised, explained and reviewed 

annually by the Risk Control Department, and relevant 

training is arranged. When the Company enters into a 

transaction, it will issue an “Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption 

Statement” to the counterparty, which clearly states the 

Company’s determination to uphold business ethics and 

integrity. For business entertainment, strict guidelines are in 

place to promote the culture of integrity.

Whistleblowing Policy
The Company is committed to maintaining high standards 

of integrity and ethical business practices and understands 

that a system of controls and balances requires a channel 

for employees, business partners, suppliers and other 

third parties to raise their concerns to senior management 

and the whistleblowing policy is therefore established. 

Whistleblowers and reported parties include employees at 

all levels and other stakeholders, including suppliers, who 

may be affected by employees’ misconduct behaviors. 

Whistleblowers can report misconduct, malpractice, 

and violations directly to the Company via email 

(compliance.skts@sinopec.com) or mail to 34/F, Citicorp 

Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. 

The Company guarantees that whistleblowers will not be 

retaliated against and that the name of the whistleblower 

will be kept strictly confidential. The Company’s 

whistleblowing policy sets out clear review and processing 

procedures, recording requirements and corresponding 

follow-up actions for all reported cases. If a reported case is 

substantiated and is considered serious, it will be reported 

to the Audit Committee and, if there is reasonable suspicion 

that the reported case involves a criminal offense, it will 

be reported to the local law enforcement agency. If the 

reported case can avoid significant financial loss to the 

Company, the whistleblower will be rewarded.

Inside Information Management
The Company has internal control procedures for the 

possession, confidentiality and dissemination of inside 

information. Directors and employees in possession of inside 

information are required to take appropriate precautionary 

measures when handling such information, such as using 

password protected emails and documents and requesting 

the relevant individuals to sign confidentiality agreement. 

At the same time, the Company will disclose such 

information in various forms, including but not limited to the 

announcements and press releases, as soon as practicable to 

prevent market rumors.

Effectiveness Assessment
The Board evaluates the effectiveness of the risk 

management and internal control systems of the Company 

annually through the Audit Committee and assesses the 

financial, operational and compliance controls based on the 

following factors:

1. changes in the nature and the extent of significant 

risks and the Company’s ability to respond to the 

changes in its business and external environment;

2. scope and quality of the management’s ongoing 

monitoring of the risk management and internal 

control systems, and the work of its internal audit 

function and other assurance providers;

3. report on the operation and the effectiveness of 

the risk management and internal control systems, 

including its extent and frequency, to the Audit 

Committee;
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4. reviewing any significant control deficiencies or 

weaknesses that have been identified during the Year, 

the outcome caused by or may have been caused by 

such deficiencies or weaknesses, and the impact made 

or may have been made on the Company, discussing 

and implementing appropriate rectification measures;

5. reviewing the sufficiency of resources, qualification and 

experience of employees as well as the training courses 

and the relevant budget in relation to accounting, 

internal audit and financial reporting;

6. the effectiveness of the procedures on financial 

reporting and compliance of the provisions under the 

Listing Rules;

7. the Company’s environmental, social and governance 

performance and reporting.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit 

Committee has reviewed once for the effectiveness of the 

Company’s risk management and internal control systems 

and considered such systems effective and adequate based 

on their purposes covering the Reporting Period. The Audit 

Committee and the senior management have performed 

a risk assessment for the core business management 

procedures and risk management function of the Company 

so as to enhance the Company’s internal control policies 

and procedures. In 2022, the Company has obtained senior 

management’s confirmation of the effectiveness of its risk 

management and internal control system.

Save as stated above, there are no other material matters 

relating to risk management and internal control that need 

to be disclosed by the Company.

Nomination Committee
Powers and Duties
The Nomination Committee is authorized by the Board 

to formulate and implement policies in relation to the 

nomination of Directors candidates and reviews the 

implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity 

Policy annually. Other functions of the Nomination 

Committee include: (i) reviewing the structure, number 

of members and composition (including skills, knowledge 

and experience) of the Board and proposing changes to 

the Board to adapt to the strategy of the Company; (ii) 

identifying candidates with adequate qualification for 

being Directors, selecting and nominating such candidates 

to be appointed as Directors or provide advice to the 

Board thereon; (iii) making proposals to the Board on the 

appointment or re-appointment of Directors; (iv) evaluating 

the independence and time commitment of independent 

non-executive Directors; and (v) stating the reasons for the 

appointment of a particular person (including the person 

who has been serving as an independent non-executive 

Director for more than 9 years) by the Board and for such 

person being deemed by it as an independent party in 

the circular and/or explanatory statement to shareholders 

attached to the notice convening a general meeting in 

the event that the Board intends to propose a resolution 

in relation to the appointment of such person as an 

independent non-executive Director at such meeting.

For details of the policy on the nomination of Directors 

during the year, please refer to the section headed 

“Nomination and Appointment Process” in this report.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are 

set out on the websites of the Company and the Stock 

Exchange.
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Composition of the Committee and 
Summary of Work During the Year
Composition of the Nomination Committee (with four 

independent non-executive Directors and two executive 

Directors and is chaired by an independent non-executive 

Director):

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David (Chairperson)

Mr. Chen Yaohuan

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria

Mr. Fong Chung, Mark

Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla

Mr. Sang Jinghua

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one 

meeting and attendance record of the Directors can be 

found in the section headed “The Board of Directors” – 

“Board Procedures” of this report, the summary of work is as 

follows:

1. Reviewed Board composition and the composition of 

the members of its committees;

2. Assessed the independence of independent non-

executive Directors;

3. Nominated candidates for election/re-election by 

shareholders at the annual general meeting;

4. Reviewed the time commitment of Directors for 

performance of their responsibilities;

5. Reviewed the training and continuous professional 

development of Directors;

6. Reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of 

Board Diversity Policy.

Diversity Policy
For inclusion of diversity of viewpoints from members of 

the Board, the Company has established a board diversity 

policy. The policy is to take into account various factors in 

determining the composition of Directors and set measurable 

objectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural 

and educational background, ethnicity, professional 

experience, skills, knowledge and tenure of service. The 

Company will consider factors according to its business 

mode and specific needs arisen from time to time, thereby 

ensuring that not all members of the Board are of the same 

gender. The Company currently has eleven directors, two 

of which are female directors, representing approximately 

18% in proportion. The Board targets to maintain the 

existing proportion of female directors in the Board and 

will continue to increase the proportion of female members 

in the future if suitable candidates are available. For more 

information on the measures the Company has adopted to 

develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board to 

achieve gender diversity, please refer to the “Nomination 

and Appointment Process” section of this report. 

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of 

this policy each year and reviews or proposes amendments 

in a timely manner to ensure the effectiveness of this policy.

As at 31 December 2022, approximately 20.18% of 

our workforce is female. For details of the gender ratio 

of all employees of the Group, please refer to the 2022 

Environmental, Social and Governance Report published 

separately by the Company. In order to achieve gender 

diversity among employees, the Group has formulated a 

human resources policy to encourage recruitment without 

considering the gender, nationality, race, religious belief and 

cultural background of employees, and to select the best 

candidates based on objective factors such as their skills and 

qualifications in a fair and open competition.

In the future, the Company will uphold the concept of 

diversity and equal opportunity in the recruitment of 

employees to ensure that the number of employees of 

different genders meets the development needs of the 

Company as far as possible.
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The Group pays extra attention to the lawful rights and 

interests of female employees to protect the implementation 

of regulations on maternity and childbirth leave and the 

policy of regular physical examination. We also pay attention 

to the physical and mental health and career development 

of female employees by providing them with continually 

improving labor environment and conditions.

Nomination and Appointment Process
After evaluating the composition of the Board, if the 

Nomination Committee decides to add members to 

the Board or select a successor, it will, consider seeking 

assistance in identifying suitable candidates by the following 

ways including but not limited to suggestion from major 

shareholder, from independent professional bodies, 

or through recommendations from business contacts 

and industry peers, or through other means, all at the 

Company’s expense, and upon receipt of a proposal for 

the appointment of a new Director and the candidate’s 

curriculum vitae (or relevant details), and in accordance 

with the Company’s policy on diversity of members of the 

Board, the Nomination Committee considers and selects 

candidates for directorship by taking into account various 

factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural 

and educational background, ethnicity, expertise and skills 

and tenure of service, in determining the suitability of such 

candidates for directorship. Thereafter, the Nomination 

Committee recommends to the Board the appointment of a 

suitable person to serve as a Director (if applicable).

• Consider the candidates 
based on merit having 
regard to the experience, 
skill and professional 
knowledge as well as the 
overall board diversity

• Make recommendations
to the Board as appropriate

Process for appointing a director

Establishment of
desired criteria for

prospective
directors

• Identi�cation
of candidates

• Interview with
candidates 

Nomination
Committee

Evaluation of
the Board

composition 

Nomination
Committee

Nomination
Committee

Nomination
Committee

General Meeting

• Approve the election or 
re-election of Directors at the 
Company’s general meeting

• Proposed Directors: Appoint-
ment is considered as an 
individual resolution at the 
general meeting

Board

• Approve the appoint-
ment

• Appointment made
through a formal letter

• On a term of not more
than three years

Board

• Approve the 
re-election shortlist

Appointment Process of New Directors

Re-election Process of Existing Directors

Board

• Newly appointed Directors 
should be re-elected by 
shareholders of the 
Company at the �rst 
general meeting following 
the appointment

Nomination
Committee

• Evaluate the performance 
of Directors in ful�lling 
their responsibilities

• Assess the independence 
of independent non-execu-
tive Directors

• Shortlist eligible directors 
for re-election (one-third 
of Directors)
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Upon appointment, new Directors will be provided 

with comprehensive, formal and tailor-made induction, 

orientation and training by the joint company secretaries 

to ensure their proper understanding of the operations 

and business of the Company and are fully aware of their 

responsibilities under the applicable regulatory requirements 

of laws and regulations and the Company’s business and 

governance policies.

According to Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, each Director 

shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 

three years. Meanwhile, based on the consideration of 

maintaining, as far as possible, a relatively balanced number 

of Directors being re-elected by rotation each year, the 

Nomination Committee considers various aspects, such as the 

culture, educational background, professional experience, 

knowledge, skills, ethnicity and age, of the Directors to 

fully reflect the diversity of the Board, while taking into 

account their respective contributions to the Board and their 

dedication to duties and academic qualifications. This year, 

the Nomination Committee nominated Mr. Chen Yaohuan, 

being the Chairman of the Board and executive Director, 

and Mr. Zhong Fuliang, being executive Director, and Ms. 

Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, being 

independent non-executive Directors, to the Board for re-

election by rotation at the forthcoming annual general 

meeting. In order to avoid conflicts of interest, the Directors 

being re-elected by rotation abstained from voting on the 

resolution for their own re-election at the meetings of the 

Board and/or the Nomination Committee.

Notwithstanding that Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Dr. 

Wong Yau Kar, David, have been served as independent 

non-executive Directors for more than 9 years, in deciding 

to propose Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Dr. Wong Yau 

Kar, David, for re-election as an independent non-executive 

Director, (i) the Board and the Nomination Committee 

have assessed and reviewed the annual confirmation of 

independence of Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Dr. Wong 

Yau Kar, David, in accordance with the criteria set out in 

Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, particularly given that Ms. 

Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, had 

no interest in the securities or business of the Company 

and are not connected with any Directors, executive or 

substantial shareholders of the Company. The Board and 

the Nomination Committee consider that Ms. Tam Wai Chu, 

Maria and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, remain independent 

of the management and do not have any relationship that 

would significantly impair their exercise of independent 

judgment; (ii) the Nomination Committee considers that 

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, 

are suitable candidates to serve as independent non-

executive Directors based on their background, experience 

and commitment to devote sufficient time to the Company, 

having taken into account the Company’s nomination 

policy and the Board Diversity Policy; (iii) the Board considers 

that the cultural and education background of Ms. Tam 

Wai Chu, Maria and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, and their 

valuable experience in the legal industry and economics and 

trade respectively, are unique among the Board members, 

therefore, Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, 

David, can further contribute to the diversity of the Board 

and it is believed that they will devote sufficient time to the 

Board; and (iv) the Board is satisfied that Ms. Tam Wai Chu, 

Maria and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, will continue to provide 

independent and objective judgment and advice to the 

Board by performing the review and supervision functions 

of an independent non-executive Director, to safeguard the 

interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Independence of Directors
The Company has received from each of the independent 

non-executive Directors the annual confirmation of 

independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules 

and considers that all of the independent non-executive 

Directors continued to demonstrate strong independence 

in judgement and were free from any business or other 

relationship which could interfere with their ability to 

discharge their duties effectively, and they therefore 

all remained their independence and are considered as 

independent. All independent non-executive Directors are 

financially independent from the Group.
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All members of the Board, with the assistance from the 

Nomination Committee, may participate in the selection and 

approval of the appointment of new Directors. Independent 

non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term. 

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria, Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, Mr. 

Fong Chung, Mark, and Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla, being 

the independent non-executive Directors, were re-elected 

and approved to serve as the independent non-executive 

Directors of the Company at the annual general meetings of 

the Company held on 18 June 2020, 18 June 2020, 16 June 

2022 and 15 June 2021, respectively, for a term of three 

years.

Remuneration Committee
Powers and Duties
The Remuneration Committee is authorized by the Board to 

study and determine the remuneration and incentive policies 

for the Directors and senior management of the Company, 

and provides advice to the Board on such remuneration 

and incentive policies for the Directors. To avoid conflicts 

of interest, any member who is interested in any given 

proposed resolution is required to abstain from voting on 

such resolution.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are 

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock 

Exchange.

Composition of the Committee and 
Summary of Work During the Year
Composition of the Remuneration Committee (with four 

independent non-executive Directors and two executive 

Directors and is chaired by an independent non-executive 

Director):

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria (Chairperson)

Mr. Chen Yaohuan

Mr. Fong Chung, Mark

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David

Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla

Mr. Sang Jinghua

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee convened 

one meeting and the attendance record of Directors was set 

out in the section headed “The Board of Directors” – “Board 

Procedures” of this report and a summary of its work is as 

follows:

1. Reviewed and determined policy for the remuneration 

of Directors;

2. The performance of management staff (including 

executive Directors) was evaluated and rewards were 

offered in accordance with the relevant assessment 

and incentive mechanisms which were linked to the 

business development of the Company;

3. Reviewed the total annual performance incentives for 

the Group’s employees.
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Directors’ Remuneration
The remuneration of the executive Directors and the fees of 

the independent non-executive Directors of the Company are 

determined with reference to various factors such as market 

remuneration rate, performance, qualification requirements, 

time commitment, duties and responsibilities to be 

performed. In order to avoid duplication of remuneration 

for executive Directors who hold other executive positions 

within Sinopec Group Company and/or its subsidiaries, 

the controlling shareholder of the Company, or within 

the Company’s subsidiaries, the Company will only pay a 

nominal salary of HK$1 per annum to any executive Director 

who holds other executive positions within Sinopec Group 

Company and/or its subsidiaries or within the Company’s 

subsidiaries. In order not to impair the independence of 

the independent Directors, the Company does not provide 

equity-related fees with any performance related element 

to the independent non-executive Directors. The current 

fees for each of the independent non-executive Directors, as 

determined by the Remuneration Committee and approved 

by the Board, are HK$380,000 per annum. Further details of 

the remuneration of Directors are set out in Note 32 to the 

consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Group Emoluments Arrangement
The emoluments of the Group including senior management 

are considered having regard to their qualifications, 

experience, responsibilities, comparable market benchmarks, 

the Company’s corporate strategy, objectives, operating 

results and individual performance. In particular, the 

performance incentives of the senior management team 

are reviewed and recommended by the Remuneration 

Committee and approved by the Board.

The remuneration of senior management by remuneration 

band as at 31 December 2022 is set out below:

Remuneration bands

Number of 

individuals

Below HK$1,000,000 3
      

HK$1,000,000 – HK$1,500,000 0
  

HK$1,500,001 – HK$2,000,000 1
  

HK$2,000,001 – HK$2,500,000 1
  

HK$2,500,001 – HK$3,000,000 1
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Shareholders and Investors Information
Shareholder Engagement and Communications
The Board places high priority on maintaining balanced, clear and transparent communication with shareholders and other 

investors to facilitate their understanding on the performance and prospect of the Group, as well as the market environment 

in which the Group operates its business. The Company has established Regulations on Shareholders Communication and 

Investor Relations Management to maintain an ongoing dialogue with shareholders and other investors through different 

communication channels and to take into account any concerns when formulating business strategies.

Corporate communications and 

company website

 The Company regularly disseminates to shareholders information such as annual 

reports, interim reports, circulars and announcements in accordance with the 

Listing Rules, so as to ensure that corporate communications are published in a 

timely manner to enable shareholders and other stakeholders to keep abreast 

of the Group’s business and development so that they can make informed 

decisions.

 Shareholders may request for public information of the Company at any time. 

The corporate communications documents are available on the websites of the 

Group (www.sinopec.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

 In support of environmental protection and more efficient communication 

with shareholders, the Company encourages shareholders to receive corporate 

communications documents through electronic communication. As of 31 

December 2022, approximately 96% of shareholders have received corporate 

communications documents by electronic means.
  

Regulations of shareholders 

communications and investor 

relations

 The Company enhances the communication with investors and potential 

investors through information disclosure and communication to increase their 

understanding and recognition of the Company and to improve the governance 

standard of the Company, so as to maximize the overall interest of the Company 

and protecting the legitimate rights and interests of investors.

 Basic policies of the regulations:

 (1) Compliance: The policy shall be in strict compliance with the relevant laws 

and regulations or relevant regulatory documents issued by the Securities and 

Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong 

Limited and the Company’s Bye-laws and related systems;

 (2) Fairness: The Company shall conduct its shareholders relations activity in a 

manner that is fair to all investors;

 (3) Interaction: Establishment of a two-way communication mechanism. On one 

hand, to introduce relevant information about the Company to investors, on 

the other hand, to convey investors’ opinions and suggestions on the Company 

to the management of the Company in a timely manner, so as to maintain the 

relationship of mutual trust and align the interests of the Company and investors;

 (4) High efficiency and low cost: When choosing the way to work on investor 

relations, the Company shall thoroughly considerate increasing communication 

efficiency and reducing communication costs.
  

56 Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT



Establishment of a dedicated 

department and dedicated staff

 The Company has a dedicated department and dedicated staff specially for 

communicating with shareholders to solicit and understand the views of the 

shareholders and stakeholders through various regular and irregular channels, 

including general meetings, roadshows, daily meetings and emails and publicly 

disclosing various contacts of the Company through many channels so that 

shareholders and investors can be informed of the Company’s latest operations 

and development prospect in a timely manner, and at the same time, effectively 

convey different opinions from shareholders and all stakeholders to the senior 

management of the Company in a timely manner.

 To make enquiries to the Board, shareholders may do so from time to time by 

email to dedicated staff of the Company (ir.skts@sinopec.com) or by writing 

to the Joint Company Secretary of the Company at 34/F, Citicorp Centre, 18 

Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, attn: Mr. Wang Xiaoming, Joint 

Company Secretary.
  

Key financial dates  Key financial dates and important dates for shareholders are set out in the 

section “Financial Calendar and Important Dates for Shareholders” of this report 

and in the “IR Calendar” under “Investor Relation” on the Company’s website.
  

Dividend information  The dividend policy of the Company is set out in the “Dividend Policy” section of 

this report.
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Shareholder’s Rights I. Convening a general meeting

 Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company for the time being in force, the Board 

may whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings, and any one or more 

Member(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-

tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at 

general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written 

requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to either (i) require 

a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any 

business or resolution specified in such requisition; or (ii) add resolutions to a 

meeting agenda; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the 

deposit of such requisition.

II. Proposing resolutions at general meeting

 Pursuant to the Companies Act of Bermuda, shareholders can submit a 

written requisition to propose a resolution at a general meeting. The number 

of shareholders necessary for a requisition shall represent not less than one-

twentieth of the total voting rights at the general meeting, or a number of 

no less than one hundred shareholders. The written requisition must state the 

resolution, accompanied by a statement of not more than one thousand words 

with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business 

to be dealt with at the general meeting.

It must also be signed by all of the concerned shareholders and be deposited at 

the registered office of the Company in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church 

Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary 

not less than six weeks before the general meeting in case of a requisition 

requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the general 

meeting in case of any other requisition. The concerned shareholders must 

deposit a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses 

in serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement submitted by 

the concerned shareholders under the applicable laws and rules.

III. Proposing a person for election as a director

 Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, if a shareholder wishes to propose 

a person for election as a Director at a general meeting, he or she should give 

written notice of the nomination to the head office or registrar of the Company.

The Company welcomes shareholders to attend general meetings to express 

their opinions and encourages all Directors to attend general meetings to directly 

communicate with shareholders. The external auditor is also required to attend annual 

general meetings to assist the Directors in answering any pertinent questions from 

shareholders.
  

Shareholding analysis  The Company conducts shareholding analysis from time to time to enable the 

management to have a better understanding on the changes in the Company’s 

shareholding structure.
  

Shareholding enquiries  Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the 

Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 17/F, Far East 

Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.
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The Company’s senior management has received regular 

work report on shareholders communication and investor 

relations management from the relevant departments. The 

senior management of the Company has reviewed the 

implementation and effectiveness of the above shareholders 

communication channels and policy and the regulations of 

shareholders communications and investor relations adopted 

during the year and confirmed that it remains effective.

Investor Engagement and 
Communications
The investor relations team of the Company focuses on 

effective communication with and provision of relevant 

public information to investors and analysts to support the 

appropriate valuation on the Company’s shares. Through an 

extensive engagement programme, institutional investors 

and analysts can interact with the Chairman, General 

Manager and other senior management of the Company 

for updates on the development of the Group’s strategic 

plans and operations, as well as corporate governance 

policies. During the Year, 53 meetings were held with 

institutional investors and analysts in Hong Kong, Mainland 

China and overseas. To facilitate effective investor relations, 

shareholding analyses were conducted in a timely manner 

under Section 329 of the SFO to update the senior 

management of any material changes in the shareholding 

structure of the Company.

Investor Relations Activities in 2022

 Small group/one-on-one meetings

 Non-deal roadshows

 Analyst briefings

 Investor conferences

Investor Relations Contact Details

Email: ir.skts@sinopec.com

Tel: 852-2508 0228

Investment community views are communicated to the 

Board from time to time, including sell-side rating and target 

price for the Company’s shares and summaries of questions 

and feedback from investors and analysts. During 2022, 

investors’ major areas of interest included:

1. The future development plan and strategic direction of 

the Group;

2. Updates on financial performance of the Group;

3. Issues related to ESG, including diversity of the 

members of the Board and independence of directors; 

and

4. Dividend policy of the Group.

To enhance investors’ understanding of the Group’s 

governance performance, the Company will provide related 

information to ESG rating institutions or ESG team of 

institutional investors upon their request.

Issued Shares of the Company
As at 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, 

the Company had a total of 2,486,160,000 shares in issue.

As at 31 December 2022, there were 768 shareholders 

directly registered in the register of members of the 

Company and the remaining shareholders held shares of 

the Company through nominees or intermediaries, such as 

HKSCC Nominees Limited.

In addition, as the Company’s shares are eligible for 

trading on Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the total 

shareholdings held through China Securities Depository and 

Clearing Corporation Limited, which is regarded as a single 

shareholder, amounted to 178 million shares or 7.13% of 

the total issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 

2022.

Since 13 March 2023, the Company’s share has been eligible 

for trading on Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect.
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In addition, as at 31 December 2022, based on the public 

information available and to the best knowledge of the 

Directors of the Company, none of the Directors and senior 

management of the Company currently hold any shares in 

the Company and the shareholder structure is as follows:

Name of shareholder Class of shares Number of shares

Percentage of

shareholdings (%)

Kantons International ordinary shares 1,500,000,000 shares 60.33
    

Public shares ordinary shares 986,160,000 shares 39.67
    

Dividend Policy
The dividend policy of the Company is as follows:

(1) The Company may distribute dividends in cash, stock 

and in any other manner as permitted under the 

applicable laws, regulations, Bye-laws and by the 

relevant regulatory authorities of the place(s) where 

the shares of the Company are listed;

(2) The Company may distribute interim and final 

dividends once a year respectively taking account 

of its financial condition and net realizable asset 

value. Subject to compliance with the applicable 

laws and regulations and the Bye-laws, the Board 

shall determine whether to pay any interim dividend 

or special dividend; and the general meeting shall 

determine whether to pay any final dividend. As the 

shares of the Company are denominated in Hong 

Kong dollars, cash dividends or other distributions shall 

be presented, denominated and paid in Hong Kong 

dollars. Dividends are pre-tax earnings, so shareholders 

of the Company are required to pay the corresponding 

taxes in accordance with the applicable laws and 

regulations;

(3) In respect of a financial year, during which both 

the net profit attributable to equity holders of the 

Company and the accumulated undistributed profit 

are positive, provided that the Company’s cash 

flow can fulfill its normal operation and sustainable 

development, the total annual cash dividends (including 

the interim cash dividend and the final cash dividend) 

shall not be less than 20% of the profit attributable 

to equity holders of the Company for the full financial 

year;

(4) In the event of a force majeure such as war or natural 

disaster, or any change in external environment 

which imposes a significant impact on the Company’s 

production and operation, or any change in dividends 

of the Company’s operating entities which leads to a 

significant change in the Company’s operating cash 

flow, or any significant change in the Company’s own 

operation or financial conditions, or where the Board 

deems it necessary, the Board may amend the dividend 

distribution policy at any time, subject to the then 

relevant laws and regulations and the Bye-laws.
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General Meeting
The General Meeting provides a platform for constructive 

dialogue between the Company and its shareholders. 

Separate resolutions are proposed by the Company on each 

substantially separate issue and all resolutions are voted 

by means of poll with explanations on the voting method 

and procedure, and such poll is independently scrutinized 

and certified by the Company’s Hong Kong branch share 

registrar and transfer office.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2022, the 

Company convened one annual general meeting and one 

special general meeting strictly in accordance with the 

relevant notices, convening and holding requirements under 

laws, regulations and the Bye-laws.

Annual General Meeting
The 2021 annual general meeting was convened on 16 

June 2022. Mr. Chen Yaohuan, the Chairman of the 

Board, did not attend and preside at the annual general 

meeting as require under Code Provision F.2.2 of the 

Corporate Governance Code due to the impact of the 

COVID-19 pandemic control measures. Pursuant to bye-

law 71 of then Bye-laws of the Company and according to 

the election by the attending Directors, Mr. Sang Jinghua, 

an executive Director and General Manager, presided over 

the annual general meeting. Mr. Fong Chung, Mark, the 

chairperson of the Audit Committee, Dr. Wong Yau Kar, 

David, the chairperson of the Nomination Committee, Ms. 

Tam Wai Chu, Maria, the chairperson of the Remuneration 

Committee and Ms. Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla, an independent 

non-executive Director, as well as the responsible persons of 

KPMG, the auditor, were invited to attend the meeting. For 

details of the annual general meeting and the poll results, 

please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company 

dated 16 June 2022 published on the website of the Stock 

Exchange and the website of the Company.

Special General Meeting
On 15 December 2022, a special general meeting of the 

Company was convened to consider and approve the 

continuing connected transactions of the Group and to 

consider and approve the new Bye-laws. Mr. Chen Yaohuan, 

the Chairman of the Board, did not attend and preside 

over the special general meeting due to the impact of the 

COVID-19 pandemic control measures. Mr. Sang Jinghua, 

an executive Director and general manager, presided 

over the special general meeting. Mr. Fong Chung, Mark, 

the chairperson of the independent board committee 

established in relation to the above continuing connected 

transactions, and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David and Ms. Wong 

Pui Sze, Priscilla, members of the committee, as well as 

the representative of independent financial adviser and 

representative of legal adviser were invited to attend the 

meeting. For details of the special general meeting and the 

poll results, please refer to the relevant announcement of the 

Company published on the websites of the Stock Exchange 

and the Company on 15 December 2022.

For details of the attendance of Directors at the general 

meeting, please refer to the section headed “Board 

Procedures” in this report.
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Changes in Constitutional Documents
On 15 December 2022, a special general meeting of the 

Company was held at which a special resolution was 

passed to approve the Amended and Restated Bye-laws 

of the Company (the “New Bye-laws”) in substitution 

for and to the exclusion of the existing Bye-laws of the 

Company to (a) bring the constitutional documents of the 

Company in line with the relevant requirements of the 

Listing Rules (including the core shareholder protection 

standards set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules) and 

the applicable laws of Bermuda; (b) allow the Company to 

hold hybrid and electronic meetings of shareholders; and (c) 

introduce corresponding and house-keeping amendments. 

Further details of such amendments were disclosed in the 

announcement of the Company dated 26 October 2022 and 

the circular of the Company dated 15 November 2022.

Save for the aforesaid changes, there are no other changes 

to the constitutional documents of the Company. The New 

Bye-laws of the Company were published in the websites 

of the Stock Exchange and the Company on 15 December 

2022.

Financial Calendar and Important Dates for Shareholders

Dates Matters
  

23 March 2023 Announcement of 2022 annual results
  

12 June 2023 10:30 a.m. Annual General Meeting
  

Before or after 25 July 2023 Date of dividend payment
  

Before 31 August 2023 Announcement of 2023 interim results
  

62 Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SINOPEC KANTONS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries 

(the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 143, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 

2022, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of 

changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group 

as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended 

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong 

Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial 

statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional 

Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SINOPEC KANTONS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Impairment assessment of interests in joint ventures and associates

Refer to Note 4(b) (Critical accounting estimates and judgements), Note 13 (Interests in associates), and Note 14 (Interests in joint 
ventures) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies 2.10 on page 84.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group has significant investments in joint ventures and 

associates, which are accounted for under equity method. As 

at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of investments 

in joint ventures and associates amounted to approximately 

HK$6,672 million and HK$1,063 million respectively, in 

aggregate representing approximately 50% of the Group’s 

total assets.

Investments in joint ventures and associates are subject to 

impairment assessments whenever there is an impairment 

indicator. The financial performance of Vesta Terminals 

B.V. (“Vesta”), a joint venture, was significantly impacted 

by a number of factors including economic and geopolitical 

conditions, regional demand and supply of petrochemical 

products and conditions of facilities. With the worsened 

financial performance of Vesta, management considered 

impairment indicators to exist surrounding the Group’s 

interest in Vesta as at 31 December 2022 and performed an 

impairment assessment thereon accordingly.

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of interests in joint 

ventures and associates included the following:

• understanding and evaluating the design and implementation 

of controls relating to the impairment assessment process;

• assessing management’s evaluation of indicators of 

impairment, identification of CGU and allocation of assets to 

the CGU with reference to the requirements of the prevailing 

accounting standards;

• involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us in 

assessing the methodology applied with reference to the 

requirements of the prevailing accounting standards and 

assessing the appropriateness of discount rate adopted and 

whether the discount rate was within the range adopted by 

other companies in the same industry;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SINOPEC KANTONS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Impairment assessment of interests in joint ventures and associates

Refer to Note 4(b) (Critical accounting estimates and judgements), Note 13 (Interests in associates), and Note 14 (Interests in joint 
ventures) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies 2.10 on page 84.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Management identified interest in Vesta as a separate CGU 

for impairment assessment purpose and compared the 

carrying value of the CGU with the recoverable amount, 

which was estimated by preparing a discounted cash flow 

forecast, to determine the amount of impairment loss, 

if any. The preparation of discounted cash flow forecast 

involved significant estimation uncertainties and exercise of 

subjective judgements such as forecast revenue growth rate 

and discount rate.

We identified impairment assessment of interests in joint 

ventures and associates as a key audit matter because the 

impairment assessment involved significant estimation 

uncertainties and exercise of subjective judgements, which 

could be subject to management bias in their selection.

• evaluating the key assumptions adopted in the discounted 

cash flow forecast such as forecast revenue growth rate, by 

comparing with the historical information, our understanding 

on the relevant industries, committed contracts and the 

financial budget approved by the board of directors of Vesta;

• comparing the actual results for the current year with 

management’s estimates in their cash flow forecast prepared 

in the previous year to assess the historical accuracy of 

management’s forecasting process and whether there was 

any indication of management bias;

• evaluating the sensitivity analyses performed by the 

management on the key assumptions such as forecast 

revenue growth rate and discount rate and assessing whether 

there were indicators of management bias in the selection of 

these assumptions; and

• assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures in relation 

to the impairment assessment in the consolidated financial 

statements with reference to the requirements of the 

prevailing accounting standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SINOPEC KANTONS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the annual 

report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 

with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal 

control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting 

process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SINOPEC KANTONS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made 

solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not 

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 

of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout 

the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SINOPEC KANTONS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 

Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 

performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SINOPEC KANTONS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 

of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 

our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Lee, Wai Shun Wilson.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue 5, 6 616,064 636,517

Cost of providing services 8 (328,302) (353,253)    

Gross profit 287,762 283,264

Other income and other gains, net 7 326,856 79,721

Impairment loss on investment in a joint venture – (156,551)

Impairment loss on non-current assets 4(a) (629,772) –

Distribution costs (16,928) (18,323)

Administrative expenses 8 (147,112) (135,468)
    

Operating (loss)/profit (179,194) 52,643

Finance income 10 77,702 21,952

Finance costs 11 (852) (1,147)

Share of results of:

– Joint ventures 14 540,403 901,561

– Associates 13 171,675 181,934    

Profit before income tax 609,734 1,156,943

Income tax expenses 15 (207,093) (107,259)    

Profit for the year 402,641 1,049,684
    

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 434,882 1,050,396

Non-controlling interests (32,241) (712)    

Profit for the year 402,641 1,049,684
    

Basic and diluted earnings per share for profit  

attributable to equity holders of the Company 

(expressed in HK cents per share): 16 17.49 42.25
    

The notes on pages 76 to 143 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit for the year 402,641 1,049,684
   

Other comprehensive income for the year:

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on currency translation

– Subsidiaries (180,752) 64,968

– Joint ventures (476,955) 43,875

– Associates (92,953) 30,400   

(750,660) 139,243
   

Cash flow hedges

– Joint ventures 300,621 (1,988)

– An associate 11,821 (5,625)   

312,442 (7,613)
   

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of nil tax (438,218) 131,630
   

Total comprehensive income for the year (35,577) 1,181,314
   

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company (3,336) 1,182,026

Non-controlling interests (32,241) (712)   

Total comprehensive income for the year (35,577) 1,181,314
   

The notes on pages 76 to 143 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 18 1,453,295 1,508,091
Right-of-use assets 17 66,946 590,985
Investment properties 19 17,337 18,575
Prepayment 1,887 847
Interests in joint ventures 14 6,672,394 6,753,155
Interests in associates 13 1,063,145 1,151,511    
Total non-current assets 9,275,004 10,023,164

    

Current assets
Inventories 21 4,119 4,125
Trade and other receivables 20 590,647 1,621,698
Time deposit with original maturity of more than  

three months 23 3,000,000 –
Cash and cash equivalents 22 2,490,097 4,197,541    
Total current assets 6,084,863 5,823,364

    

Total assets 15,359,867 15,846,528
    

EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capital 24 248,616 248,616
Reserves 14,615,679 15,116,247    
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 14,864,295 15,364,863
Non-controlling interests 2,069 34,310    
Total equity 14,866,364 15,399,173

    
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities 29 178,056 177,270
Government grants 53,714 14,909
Lease liabilities 17 27,910 15,943    
Total non-current liabilities 259,680 208,122

    

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 143,301 213,105
Income tax payable 83,412 19,259
Lease liabilities 17 7,110 6,869    
Total current liabilities 233,823 239,233

    

Total liabilities 493,503 447,355
    

Total equity and liabilities 15,359,867 15,846,528
    

Net current assets 5,851,040 5,584,131
    

Total assets less current liabilities 15,126,044 15,607,295
    

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 143 were approved by the board of directors on 23 March 2023 and 

were signed on its behalf:

Chen Yaohuan Sang Jinghua

Chairman Executive Director

The notes on pages 76 to 143 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Note

Share

capital

Share

premium

Specific

reserve

Merger

reserve

General

reserve

Hedging

reserve

Exchange

reserve

Retained

earnings Subtotal

Non-

Controlling

Interest

Total

Equity

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note 25c) (Note 25a) (Note 25b)

Balance at 1 January 2021 248,616 6,300,684 24 23,444 296,079 (250,252) 157,049 7,904,425 14,680,069 35,022 14,715,091

Comprehensive income:

Profit for the year – – – – – – – 1,050,396 1,050,396 (712) 1,049,684

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on currency 

translation:

– Subsidiaries – – – – – – 64,968 – 64,968 – 64,968

– Joint ventures – – – – – – 43,875 – 43,875 – 43,875

– Associates – – – – – – 30,400 – 30,400 – 30,400

Cash flow hedges:

– Joint ventures – – – – – (1,988) – – (1,988) – (1,988)

– An associate – – – – – (5,625) – – (5,625) – (5,625)             

Other comprehensive income for the year, 

net of nil tax – – – – – (7,613) 139,243 – 131,630 – 131,630
             

Total comprehensive income for the year – – – – – (7,613) 139,243 1,050,396 1,182,026 (712) 1,181,314             

Transaction with owners

Appropriation of reserves – – 7,940 – – – – (7,940) – – –

Utilisation of specific reserve for the year – – (7,854) – – – – 7,854 – – –

Dividends 26 – – – – – – – (497,232) (497,232) – (497,232)             

Total transaction with owners – – 86 – – – – (497,318) (497,232) – (497,232)
             

Balance at 31 December 2021 248,616 6,300,684 110 23,444 296,079 (257,865) 296,292 8,457,503 15,364,863 34,310 15,399,173
             

The notes on pages 76 to 143 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Note

Share

capital

Share

premium

Specific

reserve

Merger

reserve

General

reserve

Hedging

reserve

Exchange

reserve

Retained

earnings Subtotal

Non-

Controlling

Interest

Total

Equity

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note 25c) (Note 25a) (Note 25b)

Balance at 1 January 2022 248,616 6,300,684 110 23,444 296,079 (257,865) 296,292 8,457,503 15,364,863 34,310 15,399,173

Comprehensive income:

Profit for the year – – – – – – – 434,882 434,882 (32,241) 402,641

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on currency 

translation:

– Subsidiaries – – – – – – (180,752) – (180,752) – (180,752)

– Joint ventures – – – – – – (476,955) – (476,955) – (476,955)

– Associates – – – – – – (92,953) – (92,953) – (92,953)

Cash flow hedges:

– Joint ventures – – – – – 300,621 – – 300,621 – 300,621

– An associate – – – – – 11,821 – – 11,821 – 11,821             

Other comprehensive income for the year, 

net of nil tax – – – – – 312,442 (750,660) – (438,218) – (438,218)
             

Total comprehensive income for the year – – – – – 312,442 (750,660) 434,882 (3,336) (32,241) (35,577)             

Transaction with owners

Appropriation of reserves – – 7,522 – – – – (7,522) – – –

Utilisation of specific reserve for the year – – (7,505) – – – – 7,505 – – –

Dividends 26 – – – – – – – (497,232) (497,232) – (497,232)             

Total transaction with owners – – 17 – – – – (497,249) (497,232) – (497,232)             

Balance at 31 December 2022 248,616 6,300,684 127 23,444 296,079 54,577 (454,368) 8,395,136 14,864,295 2,069 14,866,364
             

The notes on pages 76 to 143 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 27(a) 290,910 337,294

Income tax paid (65,063) (135,252)

Withholding tax paid (71,548) (41,285)    

Net cash generated from operating activities 154,299 160,757
    

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 18(a) (5,486) (42,232)

Loans and interest repaid by joint ventures 87,123 86,358

Loans and interest repaid by an associate 6,704 9,063

Dividend received from joint ventures 1,348,825 632,275

Dividend received from an associate 172,452 90,865

Bank interest income received 47,907 21,952

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 461 7,169

Proceeds from disposal of discontinued operation,  

net of cash disposed – 732,123

Increase in time deposit with original maturity of more than 

three months (3,000,000) –    

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (1,342,014) 1,537,573
    

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of lease liabilities 27(b) (7,649) (7,216)

Dividends paid to owners of the Company 27(b) (497,232) (497,232)

Decrease in amounts due to immediate, intermediate  

holding company and other related parties – (779,782)    

Net cash used in financing activities (504,881) (1,284,230)
    

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,692,596) 414,100

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 4,197,541 3,781,081

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (14,848) 2,360    

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 22 2,490,097 4,197,541
    

The notes on pages 76 to 143 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares 

are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its registered office and principal 

place of business are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and 34/F, Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield 

Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of crude oil jetty services. 

The joint ventures and associates of the Group are principally engaged in operation of crude oil and oil product terminals and 

ancillary facilities, provision of logistics services including storage, transportation and terminal services, details of which are set 

out in Notes 13 and 14.

The Group’s financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These financial 

statements have been approved by the board of directors for issue on 23 March 2023.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the Company is Sinopec Kantons International Limited 

and the ultimate holding company is China Petrochemical Corporation (“Sinopec Group”). China Petroleum & Chemical 

Corporation (“Sinopec Corp.”), is an intermediate holding company of the Company and its shares are listed on the stock 

exchanges of Shanghai and Hong Kong. Sinopec Corp. produces consolidated financial statements available for public use.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These 

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial 

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting 

Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure 

requirements under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622). These financial statements also comply with 

the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong 

Kong Limited (“the Listing Rule”). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 

convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. 

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The 

areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to 

the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 

1 January 2022:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:  

Onerous contracts – cost of fulfilling a contract

Adoption of the above amendments does not have a material impact on how the Group’s results and financial 

position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.

2.1.2 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the year 

ended 31 December 2022 and have not been early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected 

to have a material impact on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future 

transactions.

Effective for 

accounting periods 

beginning on or after

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts 1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of 

liabilities as current or non-current

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and HKFRS Practice 

Statement 2, Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates 

and errors: Definition of accounting estimates

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and 

liabilities arising from a single transaction

1 January 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity 

when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability 

to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is 

transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(i) Merger accounting for common control combinations
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statement items of the combining entities or 

businesses in which the common control combination occurs as if they had been combined from the date 

when the combining entities or businesses first came under the control of the controlling party, as prescribed in 

Accounting Guideline 5 (“AG 5”), Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations, issued by the HKICPA.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are combined using the existing book values from the 

controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s 

interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the 

time of common control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes the results of each of the combining entities or 

businesses from the earliest date presented or since the date when the combining entities or businesses first 

came under the common control, where there is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control 

combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented as if the entities or businesses 

had been combined at the beginning of the previous reporting period or when they first came under common 

control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and 

unrealised gains on transactions between combining entities or businesses are eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, 

costs or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation 

to the common control combination that is to be accounted for by using merger accounting is recognised as an 

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(ii) Acquisition method of accounting for non-common control combinations
Apart from the business combination under common control which is accounted for using the principles of 

merger accounting prescribed in AG 5 (Note 2.2(i)), the Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to 

account for non-common control business combinations.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
(ii) Acquisition method of accounting for non-common control combinations 

(Continued)
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary includes the fair values of the assets transferred, 

the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree, the equity interests issued by the Group and fair 

value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired 

and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values 

at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-

acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised 

amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously 

held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising 

from such re-measurements are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. 

Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted 

for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the 

acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable 

net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest 

recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary 

acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. 

Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to 

conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

(iii) Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of 

investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and 

receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend from these investments 

if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or 

if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the 

consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a 

shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the 

equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying 

amount is thereafter adjusted to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in 

other comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the 

acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s 

share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in associates is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the 

amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its share 

of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a 

corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in associates 

equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise 

further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 

amount may not be recoverable. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference 

between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated 

income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its associates are 

recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. 

Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. 

Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 

by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interests in associates are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.4 Joint arrangements
The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are 

classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each 

investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint 

arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued)
Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter 

to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive income. 

The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the 

ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the 

net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share 

of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests 

that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further 

losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

The Group determines at each reporting date whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 

amount may not be recoverable. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference 

between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and it’s carrying value and recognises the amount in the 

consolidated income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s 

interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an 

impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to 

ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.5 Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are 

identified from the financial information provided regularly to the board of directors (the “Group’s chief operating 

decision-maker”) for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of the Group’s various 

lines of business.

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of 

the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated 

financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation 

currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the 

dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting 

from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets 

and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary 

economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the 

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that 

balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement and statement of comprehensive income are translated at 

average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates 

prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the 

transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 

impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 

when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the 

item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised 

when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in 

which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated 

useful lives, as follows:

– Building 20 years

– Leasehold improvement 10 years

– Jetty structures 20-25 years

– Jetty facilities 12-20 years

– Plant and machinery 5-20 years

– Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-30 years

– Motor vehicles and vessels 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting 

period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 

greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Items may be produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary 

for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The proceeds from selling any such items and 

the related costs are recognized in profit or loss.

Gains and losses on retirement or disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are 

recognised in the consolidated income statement on the date of retirement or disposal.

All direct and indirect costs relating to the construction of property, plant and equipment are classified as construction in 

progress. No depreciation is provided on construction in progress until such times as the relevant assets are completed 

and available for intended use.

When one or more items of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for non-monetary asset or assets, 

or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the cost of such an item of property, plant and equipment is 

measured at fair value unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of neither the asset 

received nor the asset given up is reliably measurable.

2.8 Investment properties
Investment properties, comprising buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and 

that are not occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that are being constructed or developed for future use 

as investment properties. Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction costs and where 

applicable borrowing costs. The Group accounts for its investment properties under the cost method and investment 

properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the 

straight-line basis so as to allocate the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives of 30 to 40 years.

2.9 Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount 

of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the 

acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-

generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the 

goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate 

a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of 

value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not 

subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation 

and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they 

might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the 

asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 

less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest 

levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered 

impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 Discontinued operation
A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and 

that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated 

plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to 

resale. The results of discontinued operation are presented separately in the consolidated income statement.

2.12 Financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

• those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 

cash flow characteristics.

(ii) Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group 

commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows 

from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all 

the risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset 

not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction 

costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset 

and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which 

the Group classifies the debt instruments:

(a) Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 

represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from 

these financial assets is included in the consolidated income statement using the effective interest rate 

method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented 

in other income and other gains, net. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in 

profit or loss.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of 

contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ contractual cash flows 

represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying 

amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income 

and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is 

derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit 

or loss.

(c) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or 

FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is 

recognised in profit or loss.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are presented respectively in the consolidated statement of financial position, without 

any offset. However, they are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when the Group currently 

has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis 

or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on 

the occurrence of future events and must be enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the event of 

default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all of the counterparties.

2.14 Derivatives and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 

remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair 

value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item 

being hedged. The Group’s certain joint venture and an associate designate certain derivatives as the hedging 

instruments to hedge particular risks associated with the cash flows of recognised assets and liabilities and highly 

probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14 Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)
Cash flow hedges
Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective 

portion of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income and 

accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset such as inventory, 

the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be included in the initial cost of the non-financial asset.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified from equity 

to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss (such as when 

a forecast sale occurs or interest expense is recognised).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting (including when the hedging instrument expires or 

is sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting is 

discontinued, but the hedge forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the amount that has been accumulated in 

the hedging reserve remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it is recognised in accordance with the above 

policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the amount that has been accumulated in the 

hedging reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss immediately.

2.15 Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on financial assets which are subject to 

impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, loans to joint ventures and associates, cash and 

cash equivalents and time deposit with original maturity of more than three months).

The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. 

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of the relevant 

instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result 

from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on 

the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic 

conditions and an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. To measure ECL, trade receivables have been 

grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The ECL on these assets are assessed using 

simplified expected credit loss model.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL unless, when there has been 

a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of 

whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default 

occurring since initial recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares 

the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default 

occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group 

considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical 

experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. In particular, the 

following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

– an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available) or 

internal credit rating;

– significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit 

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

– existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to 

cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

– an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; or

– an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological 

environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt 

obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased 

significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the 

Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

(ii) Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial 

difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under 

liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, etc, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written 

off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account 

legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in 

profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

(iii) Definition of default and credit-impaired financial assets
The Group considers that default has occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the 

Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is 

more appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Definition of default and credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a detrimental impact on 

the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-

impaired includes observable data about the following events:

– significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

– a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

– the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial 

difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise 

consider;

– it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

– the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

– the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

(iv) Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude 

of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default 

and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by current and forward-looking information on 

macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified 

the GDP and the money market rate of the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most 

relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors. 

Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the respective 

probability of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance 

with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate 

determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset 

is credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying 

amount, with the exception of trade and other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is recognised 

through a loss allowance account.
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2.16 Inventories
Inventories include spare parts, which are initially measured at cost. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and 

net realisable value. Cost of the spare parts is determined using weighted average cost method. It comprises all cost 

of purchases, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 

condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs 

necessary to make the sale.

2.17 Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is 

initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

• the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial 

Instruments; and

• the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in 

accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the present value of the difference in cash flows 

between the contractual payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required 

without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair 

values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of 

the guarantee. A 12m ECL is measured unless the risk that the specified debtor will default has increased significantly 

since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The same definition of default and the same 

assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described in Note 2.15 applies.

As the group is required to make payments only in the event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with 

the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse 

the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the Group expects to receive from the holder of the 

guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then discounted using the current risk-free rate 

adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.

2.18 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade 

and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method, less loss allowance. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or 

less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are 

presented as non-current assets. The details of the Group’s impairment policies is set out in Note 2.15.

89Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly 

liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of 

cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand 

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash 

equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for 

expected credit loss in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2.15.

2.20 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net 

of tax, from the proceeds.

2.21 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business 

from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the 

normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest method.

2.22 Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 

qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 

or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use 

or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they are 

incurred.

2.23 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, 

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this 

case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2.23 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at 

the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 

operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with 

respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 

where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the 

tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, 

deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income 

tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than 

a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. 

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted 

by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is 

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise 

those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount 

and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is able to control the timing of the 

reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable 

future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 

and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and 

tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on 

a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised 

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.24 Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution 

retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services 

are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these 

amounts are stated at their present values.
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2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii) Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF 

Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible 

to participate in the MPF Scheme in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic 

of China (“Hong Kong” or “Hong Kong S.A.R.”). Contributions are made based on a percentage of the 

employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with 

the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in 

an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when 

contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operate in Mainland China are required to participate in a 

central retirement benefit scheme operated by the local municipal or provincial government. The subsidiary in 

the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is required to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs to the 

central retirement benefit scheme. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have 

been paid.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal retirement 

date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. Termination benefits 

are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when 

it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

2.25 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when the Group has a 

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future 

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 

determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an 

outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimates of the expenditures expected to be 

required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine 

the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance cost.
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2.25 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where is it not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated 

reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is 

remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 

more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is 

remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a 

separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised 

for the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the provision.

2.26 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the services in the ordinary 

course of the Group’s business. If contracts involve the multiple performance obligations, the transaction price will be 

allocated to each performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. Revenues are recognised 

when or as the control of the good or service is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract 

and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the good or service may be transferred over time or at a point in 

time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

• provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the customer;

• creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

• does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to 

payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the 

progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point 

in time when the customer obtains control of the asset. Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition policies 

are as follows:

Crude oil jetty and storage service income
Crude oil jetty service and storage service income is recognised when the services are rendered. Service income is 

recognised in the accounting period in which the provision of services occurs. Customers are invoiced upon the 

completion of services or on a regular basis. Some contracts include multiple elements and they are accounted for 

as separate performance obligations. Revenue from each of the performance obligations is recognised at the stand-

alone service price.
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2.27 Interest income
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset 

except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective 

interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

2.28 Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised when the services are rendered.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or 

services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group does not 

adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

2.29 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.30 Leases
The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 32 years. Lease 

terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease 

agreements do not impose any covenants. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. Prepaid 

land lease payments represent the consideration paid to lease the state-owned land in the PRC and land in Indonesia. 

Lease terms are typically for 50 years.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the 

net present value of the following lease payments:

• fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

• variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the 

commencement date;

• amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

• the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the 

liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the 

lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds 

necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

94 Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.30 Leases (Continued)
The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in index 

or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 

guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain 

to exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a 

corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the consolidated 

income statement if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease 

that is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate 

lease. In this case, the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised 

discount rate at the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions are rent concessions that occurred as a 

direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. 

In such cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions 

are lease modifications, and recognised the change in consideration as negative variable lease payments in profit or 

loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over 

the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each 

period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

• the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

• any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

• any initial direct costs; and

• restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on 

a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is 

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

The Group has short-term leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months for the hire of property, plant 

and equipment, which are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in the consolidated income statement.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in consolidated income statement on 

a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note 19(a)). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are 

added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same 

basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the consolidated statement of financial position 

based on their nature.
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2.31 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the 

discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting 

period.

2.32 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant 

will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the consolidated financial statements over the 

period necessary to match with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred 

government grants and are credited to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected 

lives of the related assets.

2.33 Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary 

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a 

member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an 

entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key 

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services 

to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and 

liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management primarily focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and 

seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional 

currency in which they are measured. The functional currency of the Company is HK$. The functional currency of 

Group’s major subsidiaries with principal country of operation in Hong Kong and the PRC are HK$ and Renminbi 

(“RMB”) respectively. The Group’s foreign exchange risks arise mainly from the cash and bank balances in 

currencies other than HK$ and RMB, as well as dividend receivables from joint ventures and associates and loans 

to joint ventures and an associate, which are usually held by the Hong Kong entities, denominated in US dollars 

(“USD”).

A 3% strengthening/weakening of HK$ against USD would have decreased/increased post-tax profit of the Group 

by the amounts shown below. This analysis has been determined assuming that the change in foreign exchange 

rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the foreign currency balances to which the 

Group has significant exposure as stated above, and that all other variables remain constant.

2022 2021

Increase/

(decrease) in 

foreign 

exchange 

rates

(Decrease)/

increase in

post-tax

profit

Increase/

(decrease) in 

foreign 

exchange 

rates

(Decrease)/

Increase in

post-tax

profit

HK$’000 HK$’000

US$ 3% (57,271) 3% (47,061)

(3%) 57,271 (3%) 47,061
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily arises from variable-rate 

bearing assets, majority of which are loans to a joint venture and an associate and bank deposits.

The following table, as reported to the management of the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of the 

Group’s interest-bearing assets at the end of the reporting period:

2022 2021

HK$’000

Effective 

interest rate HK$’000

Effective 

interest rate

Variable-rate bearing assets

Bank deposits 382,944 0.01% 830,049 0.01%

Fixed-rate bearing assets

Loans to joint ventures 966,859 5.60% 999,056 5.40%

Loan to an associate 38,654 6.80% 42,584 6.70%

Bank deposits with original 

maturities within three months 2,107,153 2.10% 3,367,492 0.60%

Time deposit with original 

maturity of more than  

three months 3,000,000 5.30% – –     

6,112,666 4,409,132     

Total exposure 6,495,610 5,239,181     

Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all 

other variables held constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by 

approximately HK$3,829,000 (2021: HK$8,300,000).
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 

meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s deposits placed with financial institutions, 

receivables from customers and loans to joint ventures and an associate.

To limit exposure to credit risk relating to deposits, the Group primarily places cash deposits only with large banks 

and financial institutions with sound external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally understood 

definitions, which the Group considers to represent low credit risk.

Trade receivables
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. To measure ECL, 

trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. As the 

Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates significantly different loss patterns for different customer bases, 

the loss allowance based on past due status is distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases, which 

are separated into related parties and third parties. Taking into account the financial position, past experience, 

other factors of the related parties, such as external credit ratings, as well as forward-looking information on 

macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables, management considered 

that the credit risk associated with trade receivables from related parties is low, and the expected credit loss 

allowances are immaterial.

As at 31 December 2022, no single customer accounted for greater than 10% of total accounts receivable, except 

the amounts due from Sinopec Corp., an intermediate holding company, and other related parties. Management 

performs ongoing credit evaluations of the Group’s customers’ financial condition and generally does not require 

collateral on trade receivable. There was no history of significant doubtful accounts nor actual bad debt loss.

Loans to joint ventures and an associate
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the loans to joint ventures and an associate at the end of 

the reporting period and the key terms of the loans are disclosed in Notes 13 and 14 respectively. The Group 

considers the credit risk associated with the loans to joint ventures and an associate is low, taking into account 

the financial position, historical loss experience with these joint ventures and associate, as well as other forward-

looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the settlement ability.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, time deposit with original maturity of more than three 

months, trade and other receivables and loans to joint ventures and an associate, represent the Group’s maximum 

exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 

Group’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 

to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses 

or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. Management prepares monthly cash flow budget to ensure that the 

Group will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group arranges 

and negotiates financing with financial institutions and maintains a certain level of standby credit facilities to 

reduce the Group’s liquidity risk.

At 31 December 2022, the Group has standby credit facilities with Sinopec Century Bright Capital Investment Ltd., 

amounting to US$500 million, equivalent to approximately HK$3,898 million (2021: US$500 million, equivalent to 

approximately HK$3,887 million) on an unsecured basis, at a weighted average interest rate of 2.60% per annum 

(2021: 0.84%).

The following table sets out the remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s 

financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments 

computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on prevailing rates current at the balance sheet date) and 

the earliest date the Group would be required to repay:

Within 1 year 

or on demand

More than 

1 year but less 

than 2 years

More than 

2 years but 

less than

5 years

More than

5 years

Total 

contractual 

undiscounted 

cash flow

Carrying 

values

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 31 December 2022

Trade and other payables 143,301 – – – 143,301 143,301

Lease liabilities 8,659 3,148 9,443 36,233 57,483 35,020
       

At 31 December 2021

Trade and other payables 213,105 – – – 213,105 213,105

Lease liabilities 7,745 7,494 5,950 3,969 25,158 22,812
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital management
Management optimises the structure of the Group’s capital, which comprises of equity and borrowings. In order to 

maintain or adjust the capital structure of the Group, management may cause the Group to issue new shares, adjust the 

capital expenditure plan, adjust the investment plan or adjust the proportion of short-term and long-term borrowings. 

Management monitors capital on the basis of the current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) and net debt-

to-capital ratio (lease liabilities and trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity).

Management’s strategy is to make appropriate adjustments according to the Group’s operating and investment needs 

and the changes of market conditions, and to maintain the current ratio and net debt-to-capital ratio at a range 

considered reasonable. The net debt-to-capital ratio of the Group is negative as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

2022 2021

Current ratio 26.02 24.34
   

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, 

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment assessment of non-current assets of PT. West Point Terminal (“PT. West 
Point”)
Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 

circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable to determine whether there is any indication that 

the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 

is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s 

fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

In 2012, the Group acquired 95% equity interest in PT. West Point for potential development and construction of oil 

storage and terminal facilities in Batam Island, Indonesia (the “Batam Project”). Due to certain disputes between the 

shareholders on the Batam Project, the minority shareholder filed two arbitration requests against the Group in 2016 to 

the International Court of Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce (the “ICC Court”). In 2019, the Group 

received two arbitral awards from the ICC Court in the Group’s favour with respect to the aforesaid arbitration request. 

To secure its right to enforce the arbitral awards in Indonesia, the Group has completed the necessary procedures with 

District Court of Central Jakarta in 2020.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Impairment assessment of non-current assets of PT. West Point Terminal (“PT. West 
Point”) (Continued)
In 2021, the Group planned to compile an updated feasibility study report of the Batam Project so as to provide a basis 

for the future decision of the project. The compilation of the updated feasibility study report was completed during 

the year. After validating and assessing the updated feasibility report, which suggests with the increasing uncertainty 

on the long-term impact of energy transition on traditional oil storage market and competition in oil storage market 

in Singaporean region, the economic return of the Batam Project is undermined and after deliberate discussion and 

consideration, the Board has in principle decided not to continue with the Batam Project.

The property, plant and equipment and the prepaid land lease payments of PT. West are identified as one 

cash-generating unit (“CGU”) for impairment assessment purpose, the carrying amount of which amounts to 

HK$629,772,000. Considering (i) the Board’s current decision of not to continue with the Batam Project and (ii) it is 

probable that the land rights will be revoked by the local authority following such decision and there have been no 

updates from the local authority that indicate or suggest otherwise prior to issuance of this report, the directors consider 

carrying amount of the CGU to be not recoverable. Accordingly, a full impairment of the non-current assets with 

amount totalling HK$629,772,000, including HK$543,516,000 for right-of-use assets and HK$86,256,000 for property, 

plant and equipment, was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022.

(b) Impairment assessment of interests in joint ventures and associates
Interests in joint ventures and associates are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Vesta Terminal B.V. (“Vesta”), the Group’s joint venture, performed 

impairment assessments on its non-current assets as the significant changes in geopolitical situation caused by the 

outbreak of Russia-Ukraine conflict in February on its business operation, financial performance and future prospects 

indicate impairment indicators existed with its non-current assets. Vesta recognised an impairment loss on certain non-

current assets, primarily related to its Estonian storage area in Europe. The Groups’ share of the related impairment loss 

amounts to HK$261,112,000.

In view of this, the Group continued to perform an impairment assessment on its interest in Vesta, which is identified 

as a single CGU. The recoverable amount, which is the value in use (“VIU”) estimated using discounted cash flow 

model, amounts to HK$828 million (EUR100 million). The VIU calculation was based on key assumptions, including (i) 

forecast revenue which was mainly based on committed revenue contracts (ii) forecast revenue growth rate based on 

management’s expectation and relevant market indexes, (iii) terminal growth rate with reference to relevant market 

indexes and (iv) pre-tax discount rate of 9% per annum, which is based on estimated cost of capital reflecting the 

current market assessment of the time value of money.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment assessment of interests in joint ventures and associates (Continued)
The valuation is highly sensitive to certain key assumptions, in particular, revenue and discount rate. The valuation will 

further reduce the headroom following the changes of certain key assumptions such as:

• A 1% decrease in revenue would reduce the headroom by HK$37 million (EUR5 million)

• A 100 basis points increase in the discount rate would reduce the headroom by HK$136 million (EUR16 million)

Based on the impairment assessment, the recoverable amount of the investment is higher than its carrying amount.

5 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by its business lines (products and services). In a manner 

consistent with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) 

for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has identified two reportable segments, 

namely, crude oil jetty and storage services and vessel chartering and logistics services. All operating segments which fulfill 

the aggregation criteria under HKFRS 8, Operating segments have been identified by the Group’s CODM and aggregated in 

arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

– Crude oil jetty and storage services: this segment provides crude oil transportation, unloading, storage and other jetty 

services for oil tankers. Currently, the Group’s activities in this regard, including those carried out through its joint 

ventures and associate, are carried out in the PRC, Europe and the Middle East.

– Vessel chartering and logistics services: this segment provides vessel chartering services for liquefied natural gas 

transportation. Currently, the Group’s activities in this regard are mainly carried out through its joint venture and associate 

in the PRC, Australia and Papua New Guinea.
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s CODM monitors 

the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reporting segment on the following basis:

Segment assets included all assets, except for cash and cash equivalents, time deposit with original maturity of more than 

three months, investment properties, dividend receivables from joint ventures and associates, properties in Hong Kong and 

prepaid land lease payments in Indonesia classified as right-of-use assets, unallocated other receivables and property, plant and 

equipment. Segment liabilities exclude unallocated other payables, income tax payable, lease liabilities, and deferred income 

tax liabilities. The Group’s CODM has determined to present segment assets, liabilities and results of joint ventures and associates 

under respective segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with reference to revenue generated by those segments 

and the expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets attributable to those 

segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “segment results”. Segment results include the operating profit generated 

by the segments and finance costs directly attributable to the segments. Items that are not specifically attributed to individual 

segments, such as unallocated other income, unallocated other finance income, unallocated depreciation and other corporate 

costs or income are excluded from segment results.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment results, management is also provided with segment 

information concerning interest income, depreciation and additions to non-current segment assets of each segments.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource 

allocation and assessment of segment performance for the year ended is set out as follows:
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(i) As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022:
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Crude oil 

jetty and 

storage services

Vessel 

chartering and 

logistics services Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment revenue 616,064 – 616,064

Inter-segment revenue – – –    

Revenue from external customers 616,064 – 616,064
    

Segment results

– Subsidiary 493,571 – 493,571

– Joint ventures (Note (a)) 431,388 109,015 540,403

– Associates 164,677 6,998 171,675    

1,089,636 116,013 1,205,649

Other unallocated corporate expense,  

net (Note (b)) (595,915)    

Profit before income tax 609,734

Income tax expenses (207,093)    

Profit for the year 402,641
    

Notes:

(a) The share of results of joint ventures within crude oil jetty and storage services segment includes the Group’s share of impairment 
loss of HK$261,112,000 in relation to the Group’s interest in Vesta (Note 4(b)).

(b) Other unallocated corporate expense, net includes the impairment loss on non-current assets of PT. West of HK$629,772,000 (Note 
4(a)).

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Crude oil 

jetty and 

storage services

Vessel 

chartering and 

logistics services Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Other segment items

Finance income 1,200 – 1,200

Depreciation

– Property, plant and equipment (113,021) – (113,021)

– Right-of-use assets (5,443) – (5,443)

Additions to non-current segment assets 299,803 – 299,803

Impairment loss on trade and  

other receivables (1) – (1)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment (Note 7(b)) 249,476 – 249,476
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
(i) As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Crude oil 

jetty and 

storage services

Vessel 

chartering and 

logistics services Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment assets

– Subsidiary 2,060,338 – 2,060,338

– Joint ventures 5,710,207 962,187 6,672,394

– Associates 992,476 70,669 1,063,145    

8,763,021 1,032,856 9,795,877    

Unallocated assets

– Cash and cash equivalents 2,490,097

– Time deposit with original maturity of more 

than three months 3,000,000

– Other receivables 47,987

– Investment properties 17,337

– Right-of-use assets

• properties in Hong Kong 4,760

– Dividend receivable from an associate 2,527

– Property, plant and equipment 1,282    

5,563,990
    

Total assets 15,359,867
    

Segment liabilities 215,866 – 215,866    

Unallocated liabilities

– Other payables 94,149

– Income tax payable 33

– Lease liabilities 5,399

– Deferred income tax liabilities 178,056    

277,637
    

Total liabilities 493,503
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
(ii) As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Crude oil 

jetty and 

storage services

Vessel 

chartering and 

logistics services Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment revenue 636,517 – 636,517    

Revenue from external customers 636,517 – 636,517
    

Segment results

– Subsidiary 235,145 – 235,145

– Joint ventures (Note) 650,778 94,232 745,010

– Associates 176,457 5,477 181,934    

1,062,380 99,709 1,162,089

Other unallocated corporate expense, net (5,146)    

Profit before income tax 1,156,943

Income tax expenses (107,259)    

Profit for the year 1,049,684
    

Note: The share of results of joint ventures within crude oil jetty and storage services segment included an impairment loss of 

HK$156,551,000 in relation to the Group’s interest in Vesta.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Crude oil

jetty and

storage services

Vessel

chartering and

logistics services Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Other segment items

Finance income 539 – 539

Depreciation

– Property, plant and equipment (138,973) – (138,973)

– Right-of-use assets (5,637) – (5,637)

Additions to non-current segment assets 42,232 – 42,232

Impairment loss on trade and  

other receivables (4) – (4)

Impairment loss on investment in  

a joint venture (156,551) – (156,551)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
(ii) As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Crude oil

jetty and

storage services

Vessel

chartering and

logistics services Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment assets

– Subsidiary 2,121,215 – 2,121,215

– Joint ventures 6,032,256 720,899 6,753,155

– Associates 1,093,181 58,330 1,151,511    

9,246,652 779,229 10,025,881    

Unallocated assets

– Cash and cash equivalents 4,197,541

– Other receivables 15,983

– Investment properties 18,575

– Right-of-use assets

• properties in Hong Kong 9,962

• prepaid land lease payments in Indonesia 556,937

– Dividend receivable from a joint venture 936,192

– Property, plant and equipment 85,457    

5,820,647
    

Total assets 15,846,528
    

Segment liabilities 176,461 – 176,461    

Unallocated liabilities

– Other payables 80,604

– Income tax payable 2,234

– Lease liabilities 10,786

– Deferred income tax liabilities 177,270    

270,894
    

Total liabilities 447,355
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(b) Analysis of information by geographical regions
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of the Group’s revenue was generated from the customers 

located in the PRC.

The following tables set out information about the geographical information of the Group’s non-current assets and total 

assets which are based on the geographical location of the assets.

Non-current assets

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

The PRC 6,784,840 6,909,708

Europe 813,048 1,156,526

Indonesia – 643,207

Hong Kong 1,055,692 807,364

United Arab Emirates 620,880 505,771

Other regions 544 588   

Total non-current assets 9,275,004 10,023,164
   

Total assets

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

The PRC 7,647,035 7,611,003

Hong Kong 6,261,810 5,829,432

Europe 813,048 1,156,526

Indonesia 16,550 743,208

United Arab Emirates 620,880 505,771

Other regions 544 588   

Total assets 15,359,867 15,846,528
   

(c) Major customers
For the purpose of disclosure under segment reporting, several customers, being the branches and subsidiaries of 

Sinopec Group, including Sinopec Corp. Guangzhou Branch and Sinopec Fuel Oil Sales Corporation Limited, from crude 

oil jetty services have transactions that exceeded 91% (2021: 91%) of the Group’s revenue, amounted to approximately 

HK$563,617,000 (2021: HK$580,809,000). These customers mainly operate in the PRC.
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6 REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major service lines is as follows:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope  

of HKFRS 15

– Provision of crude oil jetty services (Note) 480,385 498,264   

Revenue from other sources

Rental revenue from operating leases with customers

– Lease payments that are fixed or depend on an index or a rate 71,043 73,579

– Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate 64,636 64,674   

135,679 138,253
   

616,064 636,517
   

Note: Revenue from provision of crude oil jetty services is recognised at a point in time.

7 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Other income:

– Rental income from investment properties 2,033 1,713

– Government grants:

– Value-added tax refund 7,650 9,127

– Amortisation of deferred government grant 1,443 1,308

– Employment Support Scheme in Hong Kong (Note (a)) 566 –

– Interest income from loans to:

– Joint ventures 54,926 56,217

– An associate 2,774 3,066

– Management fee income from a joint venture 3,943 3,631   

73,335 75,062   

Other gains/(losses):

– Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 4,027 (2,975)

– N et gains/(losses) on disposal of property,  

plant and equipment (Note (b)) 249,479 (803)

– Others 15 8,437   

253,521 4,659   

326,856 79,721
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7 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET (CONTINUED)
Notes:

(a) In 2022, the Group successfully applied for funding support from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the 

Hong Kong Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to employers to retain their current employees or hire more 

employees when the business revives. Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required to employ a sufficient number of employees with 

reference to its proposed employee headcounts in each subsidy month.

(b) To cope with the need of reclamation from a local construction project, Huade Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (“Huade Petrochemical”), a subsidiary 

wholly owned by the Group, entered into an agreement with an independent third party, whereby the original submarine pipeline owned by 

Huade Petrochemical (the “Original Pipeline”) is to be demolished in exchange for a new submarine pipeline (the “New Pipeline”). In 2022, 

the demolition of the Original Pipeline, the construction and valuation of construction work of the New Pipeline and the exchange of the two 

pipelines are completed. As a result, a pre-tax gain of RMB214,481,000 (equivalent to HK$249,716,000) is recognised in 2022, and the relevant 

tax expense amounted to HK$62,429,000.

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Depreciation

– property, plant and equipment (Note 18) 113,123 139,087

– investment properties (Note 19) 1,238 1,238

– right-of-use assets (Note 17) 24,028 24,128

Employee benefit expenses, including directors’ remuneration (Note 9) 155,246 140,167

Auditor’s remuneration

– the Company 2,000 2,000

– subsidiaries 3,103 3,122

– under-provisions of prior years 295 55

– non-audit services – 22

Expenses relating to short-term leases

– hire of a property 1,928 2,028
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Wages, salaries and other benefits 140,581 127,280

Retirement benefit scheme contributions 14,665 12,887   

155,246 140,167
   

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees 

employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution 

retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each 

required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of a monthly relevant 

income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC have participated in defined contribution retirement schemes organised 

by respective local government. These subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the respective scheme at certain 

percentage of the employees’ relevant basic salaries. Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

There are no forfeited contributions for the MPF Scheme as the contributions are fully vested to the employees upon payments 

to the MPF Scheme.

There are no fortified contributions for the PRC retirement schemes as the contributions are fully vested to the employees 

upon payments to the PRC retirement schemes.

As at 31 December 2022, there was no material outstanding contribution to employee retirement benefits. The Group does 

not have any other obligations other than the contributions described above.
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(a) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 

are as follows:

Number of individuals

2022 2021

Directors 1 2

Non-director individuals 4 3   

5 5
   

Details of emoluments to non-director individuals:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and other benefits-in-kind 5,261 4,382

Bonuses 5,172 3,199

Retirement scheme contributions – –   

10,433 7,581
   

Number of individuals

2022 2021

Emolument bands 

HK$1,500,001 – HK$2,000,000 – 1

HK$2,000,001 – HK$2,500,000 1 1

HK$2,500,001 – HK$3,000,000 2 3

HK$3,000,001 – HK$3,500,000 2 –   

5 5
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10 FINANCE INCOME

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Finance income:

– Deposits at banks and related financial institutions 77,702 21,952   

77,702 21,952
   

11 FINANCE COSTS

2022 2021

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Finance costs:

– from lease liabilities 17 852 1,147    

852 1,147
    

12 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Proportion of ordinary shares and

voting powers at 31 December

Place of

incorporation/

establishment and

type of legal entity

Principal

country

of operation

Principal

activities

Particulars of issued

and paid up capital/

registered capital

% held by 

the Group

in 2022

% held by 

the Group

in 2021

% held

by non-

controlling

Interests

in 2022

% held

by non-

controlling

interests

in 2021

Directly held

Sinomart KTS Development 

Ltd. (“Sinomart 

Development”) (經貿冠德
發展有限公司)

Hong Kong/Limited 

liability company

Hong Kong Trading of crude oil 

and rendering 

vessel chartering 

services

185,250,050 ordinary shares 

of HK$1 each and 10,000 

non-voting deferred shares 

of HK$1 each (Note (b))

100% 100% – –

Kantons International 

Investment Ltd. (“KII”)

(冠德國際投資有限公司)

British Virgin 

Islands/ Limited 

liability company

Hong Kong Investment holding 3,000,000 ordinary shares of 

US$1 each

100% 100% – –

Indirectly held

Huade Petrochemical (Note 

(a)) (惠州市大亞灣華德石化
有限公司)

The PRC/Limited 

liability company

The PRC Operating crude oil 

jetty and ancillary 

facilities

Registered capital 

US$93,758,200

100% 100% – –

PT. West Point Jakarta, Indonesia/ 

Limited liability 

company

Batam, 

Indonesia

Provision of oil 

supporting 

services

100,000,000 shares of US$1 

each

95% 95% 5% 5%
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Notes:

(a) Huade Petrochemical holds business licence with a term of 35 years expiring in 2029.

(b) Holders of non-voting defined shares have no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of Sinomart 

Development or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

There was no material non-controlling interest during the year.

The English name of certain companies referred in this financial statements represent management’s best effort at translating 

the Chinese names of these companies as no English names have been registered.

13 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost of unlisted investments 419,030 419,030

Share of:

– Post-acquisition results 1,561,273 1,389,598

– Other comprehensive income (95,851) (14,719)

Dividend received (859,961) (684,982)   

Share of net assets 1,024,491 1,108,927

Loan to an associate 38,654 42,584   

1,063,145 1,151,511
   

Loan to an associate is unsecured and interest bearing at fixed rate and are wholly repayable within 20 years after the vessels 

construction project undertaken by the associate is completed. Principal and interest of the loan is repayable quarterly. The 

effective interest rate for the loan is 6.8% (2021: 6.7%).
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13 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The following list contains only the particulars of the Group’s associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities:

Proportion of ordinary shares 

and voting powers 

at 31 December

Note Principal activities

Place of

incorporation/

establishment

Particulars of issued

and paid up capital/

registered capital

% held

by the Group

in 2022

% held

by the Group

in 2021

Indirectly held

Zhan Jiang Port Petrochemical 

Jetty Co., Ltd (“Zhan Jiang Port 

Petrochemical Terminal”)

(湛江港石化碼頭有限責任公司)

(a) Provision of logistic service The PRC Registered capital 

RMB180,000,000

50% 50%

East China LNG Shipping Investment 

Co., Limited (“East China LNG”) 

(中國東方液化天然氣運輸投資 

有限公司)

Transportation of liquefied 

natural gas

Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 

US$5,000,000

30% 30%

       

(a) The directors have assessed that even though Sinomart Development owns 50% of the issued capital of this entity, it only has significant influence 

but not joint control over the entity.

Set out below is the summarised financial information for Zhan Jiang Port Petrochemical Terminal, which is considered material 

to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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13 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised Statement of Financial Position

Zhan Jiang Port 

Petrochemical Terminal

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current

Cash and cash equivalents 272,578 360,706

Other current assets 26,874 18,629   

Total current assets 299,452 379,335
   

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) (70,367) (86,473)

Other current liabilities (43,827) (43,076)   

Total current liabilities (114,194) (129,549)
   

Non-current

Assets 1,812,434 1,950,793

Financial liabilities (12,989) (14,463)   

Total non-current net assets 1,799,445 1,936,330   

Net assets 1,984,703 2,186,116
   

Summarised Income Statement and Statement of Comprehensive Income

Zhan Jiang Port 

Petrochemical Terminal

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue 674,120 705,449

Depreciation and amortisation (87,497) (63,557)

Interest income 4,992 3,178

Interest expense (416) (382)

Other expenses (205,145) (228,526)   

Profit before income tax 386,054 416,162
   

Income tax expense (56,699) (63,248)   

Profit after tax 329,355 352,914
   

Other comprehensive income (185,861) 60,583   

Total comprehensive income 143,494 413,497   

Dividends declared by the associate 172,453 90,865
   

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associate (i.e. not the Group’s 

attributable share) adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the Group and the associate.
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13 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of its interest in an associate.

Zhan Jiang Port 

Petrochemical Terminal

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets 1,984,703 2,186,116

Interest in an associate (%) 50% 50%   

Group’s share of net assets in an associate 992,352 1,093,058

Goodwill 123 123
   

Carrying value 992,475 1,093,181
   

The Group has interest in another immaterial associate. The following table analyses the share of profit and other 

comprehensive income and carrying amount of this associate.

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of profit 6,997 5,477

Share of other comprehensive income 11,799 (5,516)   

Share of total comprehensive income 18,796 (39)   

Carrying amount of interest in the associate 32,016 15,746
   

14 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000   

Cost of unlisted investments 4,468,763 4,468,763

Less: impairment allowance on interest in a joint venture (156,551) (156,551)

Share of:

– Post-acquisition results 6,949,389 6,408,986

– Other comprehensive income (591,972) (415,638)

Dividend received (4,964,094) (4,551,461)   

Share of net assets 5,705,535 5,754,099

Loans to joint ventures 966,859 999,056   

6,672,394 6,753,155
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14 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Loans to joint ventures are unsecured and interest bearing at fixed rate and are wholly repayable within 20 years after the 

vessels construction project in the joint ventures is completed. The effective interest rate for the loans is 5.6% (2021: 5.4%).

Details of the Group’s interests in the joint ventures are as follows:

Proportion of ordinary shares 

and voting powers at  

31 December

Indirectly held Note Principal activities

Place of

establishment

Particulars of

issued and

paid up capital/

registered capital

Measurement

method

% held

by the Group

in 2022

% held

by the Group

in 2021

Ningbo Shihua Crude Oil Terminal 

Co., Ltd. (寧波實華原油碼頭有

限公司)

(a) Operation of crude oil jetty 

and its ancillary facilities

The PRC Registered capital 

RMB80,000,000

Equity 50% 50%

Qingdao Shihua Crude Oil Terminal 

Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Shihua”) 

(青島實華原油碼頭有限公司)

(a) Operation of crude oil jetty 

and its ancillary facilities

The PRC Registered capital 

RMB1,000,000,000

Equity 50% 50%

Tianjin Port Shihua Crude Oil 

Terminal Co., Ltd. (天津港實華原

油碼頭有限公司)

(a) Operation of crude oil jetty 

and its ancillary facilities

The PRC Registered capital 

RMB482,660,000

Equity 50% 50%

Rizhao Shihua Crude Oil Terminal 

Co., Ltd. (“Rizhao Shihua”)  

(日照實華原油碼頭有限公司)

(a) Operation of crude oil jetty 

and its ancillary facilities

The PRC Registered capital 

RMB1,080,000,000

Equity 50% 50%

Tangshan Caofeidian Shihua 

Crude Oil Terminal Co., Ltd. 

(“Caofeidian Shihua”)(唐山曹

妃甸實華原油碼頭有限公司)

(a) Operation of crude oil jetty 

and its ancillary facilities

The PRC Registered capital 

RMB289,610,000

Equity 90% 90%

China Energy Shipping Investment 

Co., Ltd. (中國能源運輸投資有

限公司)

(b) Vessel chartering services Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 

US$5,000,000

Equity 49% 49%

Fujairah Oil Terminal FZC (“FOT”) (c) Provision of oil storage 

services

Fujairah 100,000 shares of  

US$1 each

Equity 50% 50%

Vesta (d) Transit, transhipment and 

storage of petrochemical 

products, oil shale 

derived products, and 

other cargo and provision 

of associated services

Netherlands 18,002 shares of EUR1  

each have been issued  

and fully paid

Equity 50% 50%
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14 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
Notes:

(a) The acquisition of the five joint ventures was completed in October 2012. The Directors believe the acquisition of the five joint ventures is 

consistent with the development strategy of the Group, and will bring long-term strategic benefits to the Group, including: creation of one of Asia’s 

largest oil terminal businesses and attractive growth profile driven from China’s long-term projected energy consumption growth, increasing scale 

and strengthens competitive advantage of Group’s core business, increasing profitability and stability of earnings and creation of a platform for 

future development of the Group.

 The directors have also determined that the Group does not control Caofeidian Shihua, even though Sinomart Development owns 90% of the 

issued capital of this entity. It is not a controlled entity of Sinomart Development, because decisions for financial and operating activities can only 

be passed with a unanimous consent of all members in the Board. Therefore, Sinomart Development is not able to use its power over the entity to 

affect those returns.

(b) The Directors are of the opinion that the formation of the joint venture for participating in the LNG transportation under APLNG is beneficial for 

the Group to further expand its logistics business, and enhance the Group’s profitability through sharing profit from the transportation link in the 

LNG business chain.

(c) In January 2012, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement to acquire 50% of the equity interest of FOT from Concord Energy Oil Terminal 

(Hong Kong) Limited at a consideration of US$25,050,000, equivalent to approximately HK$195,390,000. The acquisition was completed in 

January 2013. The directors of the Company had conducted a fair value assessment of identifiable assets of the investment and goodwill, totalled 

HK$55,844,000 was recognised in the interests in joint ventures in year 2013.

 The Directors consider that the acquisition of FOT is in line with the Group’s business development strategy of providing oil storage facilities and 

related logistics services and expanding into new markets.

 To support the project financing of FOT, the Group pledged its 50% equity interest for the bank loans of FOT as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

(d) In October 2012, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement to acquire 50% of the equity interest in Vesta from Mercuria Energy Group at 

a consideration of Euro 128,600,000, equivalent to approximately HK$1,377,682,000. The acquisition was completed in April 2013. The directors 

of the Company had conducted a fair value assessment of identifiable net assets of the investment and goodwill of HK$493,400,000 was 

recognised in the interests in joint ventures in year 2013.

 The Directors consider that the acquisition of Vesta provides the Group with a good opportunity to develop its experience in operating and 

managing overseas storage facilities and achieve rapid expansion in the European bulk liquid storage terminals business.
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14 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information
Set out below are the summarised financial information for Vesta, Qingdao Shihua and Rizhao Shihua which are considered 

material to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Summarised Statement of Financial Position

Vesta Qingdao Shihua Rizhao Shihua

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Current

Cash and cash equivalents 48,854 210,239 1,348,281 1,650,413 197,985 174,284

Other current assets 19,988 10,327 259,606 107,943 181,803 181,185       

Total current assets 68,842 220,566 1,607,887 1,758,356 379,788 355,469
       

Financial liabilities 

(excluding trade payables) – (1,343) (119,265) (986,295) (12,834) (15,002)

Other current liabilities (75,785) (104,526) (366,803) (294,173) (141,164) (119,905)       

Total current liabilities (75,785) (105,869) (486,068) (1,280,468) (153,998) (134,907)
       

Non-current

Assets 1,314,672 1,907,239 2,602,792 2,895,545 2,557,168 2,865,660

Financial liabilities (326,829) (347,048) (17,105) (7,339) – –

Other liabilities (28,502) (35,534) – – – –       

Total non-current net assets 959,341 1,524,657 2,585,687 2,888,206 2,557,168 2,865,660       

Net assets 952,398 1,639,354 3,707,506 3,366,094 2,782,958 3,086,222
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14 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarised Income Statement and Statement of Comprehensive Income

Vesta Qingdao Shihua Rizhao Shihua

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue 333,576 464,721 1,828,783 1,920,060 570,943 607,942

Depreciation and amortization (117,216) (165,361) (157,328) (160,507) (73,226) (69,591)

Impairment (522,224) (109,005) – – – –

Interest income 6 448 12,327 21,736 4,849 5,090

Interest expense (19,740) (7,519) – – – –

Other expenses (196,382) (218,965) (803,089) (639,351) (80,937) (96,514)       

(Loss)/profit before income tax (521,980) (35,681) 880,693 1,141,938 421,629 446,927
       

Income tax expense (21,790) (51,487) (224,567) (292,092) (89,022) (92,675)       

(Loss)/profit after tax (543,770) (87,168) 656,126 849,846 332,607 354,252
       

Other comprehensive income (143,186) (220,218) (314,714) 140,684 (285,881) 98,854       

Total comprehensive income (686,956) (307,386) 341,412 990,530 46,726 453,106
       

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the joint ventures, adjusted for differences 

in accounting policies between the Group and the joint ventures (i.e. not the Group’s attributable share).

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Vesta Qingdao Shihua Rizhao Shihua

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Opening net assets 1,639,354 1,955,550 3,366,094 4,247,948 3,086,222 3,146,612

(Loss)/profit for the year (543,770) (87,168) 656,126 849,846 332,607 354,252

Other comprehensive income (143,186) (220,218) (314,714) 140,684 (285,881) 98,854

Dividend declared – (8,810) – (1,872,384) (349,990) (513,496)       

Closing net assets 952,398 1,639,354 3,707,506 3,366,094 2,782,958 3,086,222

Interests in joint ventures (%) 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

Group’s share of net assets 

in joint ventures 476,199 819,677 1,853,753 1,683,047 1,391,479 1,543,111

Goodwill 493,400 493,400 7,609 7,609 4,237 4,237

Less: impairment allowance on interest 

in a joint venture (156,551) (156,551) – – – –       

Carrying value 813,048 1,156,526 1,861,362 1,690,656 1,395,716 1,547,348
       

The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint ventures. The following table analyses, in aggregate, the 

share of profits and other comprehensive income and carrying amount of these joint ventures.
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14 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information (Continued)

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of profit 317,921 343,096

Share of other comprehensive income 195,557 32,227   

Share of total comprehensive income 513,478 375,323   

Carrying amount of interests in these joint ventures 1,635,409 1,359,569
   

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of joint ventures
The Group has the following commitments relating to its joint ventures as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of joint ventures’ capital commitments 

– Contracted for 60,966 116,738
   

There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in the joint ventures as at 31 December 2022.

15 INCOME TAX EXPENSES
2022 2021

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Current income tax:

– Hong Kong profits tax (b) 2,870 5,266

– PRC corporate income tax (c) 192,617 94,006    

195,487 99,272

Deferred income tax charged (d), 29 11,606 7,987    

207,093 107,259
    

(a) The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of 

the Bermuda and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of the Bermuda income tax.

(b) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the 

year.

(c) Except for withholding tax on dividend as explained in Note (d), the provision for PRC corporate income tax is based on 

statutory income tax rate of 25% of the assessable income of a subsidiary of the Group as determined in accordance 

with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC (2021: 25%).

(d) Dividend distribution out of profit of foreign-invested enterprises earned in the PRC subsequent to 1 January 2008 is 

subject to withholding tax at tax rate of 5% or 10%. During the year, withholding tax was provided for portion of the 

relevant undistributed profits of the Group’s subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates established in the PRC at tax rate 

of 5% (2021: 5%).
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15 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(e) The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax less share of results of joint ventures and associates differs from the 

theoretical amount that would arise using the principal applicable tax rate as follows:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit before income tax 609,734 1,156,943

Less: Share of results of joint ventures (540,403) (901,561)

Share of results of associates (171,675) (181,934)   

(102,344) 73,448

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the 

respective tax jurisdictions 25,067 32,106

Income not subject to tax (13,400) (13,020)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 109,263 35,381

Withholding tax on undistributed profits 80,499 48,150

Over provision in prior years (1,078) (1,233)

Tax losses not recognised 6,742 5,875   

Income tax expenses 207,093 107,259
   

16 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basis earnings per share are based on the following data:

2022 2021

Earnings (in HK$’000)

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company: 434,882 1,050,396   

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in thousand) 2,486,160 2,486,160   

Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) 17.49 42.25
   

Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in the 

current and prior years.
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17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

As at 

31 December 2022

As at 

31 December 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Right-of-use assets

Properties 33,713 21,363

Prepaid land lease payments 33,233 569,622   

Total right-of-use assets 66,946 590,985
   

As at 

31 December 2022

As at 

31 December 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Lease liabilities

Current 7,110 6,869

Non-current 27,910 15,943   

35,020 22,812
   

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

2022 2021

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Depreciation of right-of-use assets by 

class of underlying assets

Properties 6,712 6,765

Prepaid land lease payments 17,316 17,363    

8 24,028 24,128

Finance costs 11 852 1,147
    

Impairment loss by class of underlying 

assets

Prepaid land lease payments 4(a) 543,516 –
    

The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was HK$9,577,000 (2021: HK$9,244,000).
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings held 

for own use 

and leasehold 

improvements

Jetty 

structures

Jetty 

facilities

Plant and 

machinery

Furniture, 

fixtures and 

equipment

Motor vehicle

and vessels

Construction 

in progress Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Year ended 31 December 2021

Opening net book amount 21,532 539,274 589,235 2,894 36,154 5,620 375,599 1,570,308

Currency translation differences 721 16,480 16,763 1,091 (4) 65 7,494 42,610

Additions – – – – – – 42,232 42,232

Disposals – (514) (45) (97) (146) (24) (7,146) (7,972)

Transfers – 118,925 3,671 12,033 4,793 – (139,422) –

Depreciation charge (1,805) (71,013) (54,390) (4,403) (3,656) (3,820) – (139,087)         
Closing net book amount 20,448 603,152 555,234 11,518 37,141 1,841 278,757 1,508,091         
At 31 December 2021

Cost 60,790 1,936,153 1,725,085 174,364 194,304 121,097 278,757 4,490,550

Accumulated depreciation (40,342) (1,333,001) (1,169,851) (162,846) (157,163) (119,256) – (2,982,459)         
Net book amount 20,448 603,152 555,234 11,518 37,141 1,841 278,757 1,508,091         

Buildings held 

for own use 

and leasehold 

improvements

Jetty 

structures

Jetty 

facilities

Plant and 

machinery

Furniture, 

fixtures and 

equipment

Motor vehicle

and vessels

Construction 

in progress Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Year ended 31 December 2022

Opening net book amount 20,448 603,152 555,234 11,518 37,141 1,841 278,757 1,508,091

Currency translation differences (2,003) (48,886) (75,436) (3,542) 49 (210) (23,009) (153,037)

Additions – – 43,569 – – – 257,428 300,997

Disposals – – (3,377) – – – – (3,377)

Transfers – – 394,555 3,185 661 5,016 (403,417) –

Impairment (Note 4(a)) – – – – – – (86,256) (86,256)

Depreciation charge (1,566) (55,742) (48,767) (3,854) (2,954) (240) – (113,123)         
Closing net book amount 16,879 498,524 865,778 7,307 34,897 6,407 23,503 1,453,295         
At 31 December 2022

Cost 55,333 1,772,575 1,901,556 157,330 181,252 111,111 23,503 4,202,660

Accumulated depreciation (38,454) (1,274,051) (1,035,778) (150,023) (146,355) (104,704) – (2,749,365)         
Net book amount 16,879 498,524 865,778 7,307 34,897 6,407 23,503 1,453,295         

Major non-cash transactions
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group acquired certain property, plant and equipment amounting to 

RMB216,782,000 (equivalent to HK$252,395,000) through the transaction disclosed in Note 7(b).

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group acquired certain property, plant and equipment amounting to 

RMB37,032,000 (equivalent to HK$43,116,000) through government grants. Further details on the Group’s accounting 

policy related to government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are set out in Note 2.32.
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Jetty facilities leased out under operating leases

HK$’000

Year ended 31 December 2021

Opening net book amount 252,890

Currency translation differences 7,015

Depreciation charge (28,529)  

Closing net book amount 231,376  

At 31 December 2021

Cost 690,006

Accumulated depreciation (458,630)  

Net book amount 231,376
  

Year ended 31 December 2022

Opening net book amount 231,376

Currency translation differences (18,589)

Depreciation charge (26,434)  

Closing net book amount 186,353  

At 31 December 2022

Cost 631,534

Accumulated depreciation (445,181)  

Net book amount 186,353
  

The Group leases out certain jetty facilities under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three 

years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. The undiscounted lease 

payments under non-cancellable operating leases in place at the reporting date will be receivable by the Group in future 

periods are RMB61,019,000 per annum in the next year (2021: RMB61,019,000 per annum in the next year).

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January 18,575 19,813

Depreciation charge for the year (1,238) (1,238)   

At 31 December 17,337 18,575
   

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2021: Nil).
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
All investment properties of the Group are carried at their costs less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 

impairment losses as at 31 December 2022. For disclosure purposes, the fair values of investment properties have been 

estimated at the market value by reference to recent market transactions in comparable properties. The fair value of the 

investment properties as at 31 December 2022 is estimated to be approximately HK$93,900,000 (2021: HK$97,900,000). 

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was performed by the valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, to 

determine the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The following table analyses the 

investment properties measured at fair value, by valuation method.

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements

As at 31 December 2022 using

Quoted prices in

active markets for

identical assets

Significant other

observable inputs

Significant

unobservable inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Description

Fair value measurements

Investment properties:

– Residential (HK and Macau) – – 56,200

– Commercial (HK) – – 37,700    

– – 93,900
    

Fair value measurements

As at 31 December 2021 using

Quoted prices in

active markets for

identical assets

Significant other

observable inputs

Significant

unobservable inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Description

Fair value measurements

Investment properties:

– Residential (HK and Macau) – – 56,000

– Commercial (HK) – – 41,900    

– – 97,900
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range

Investment properties: 

–  Residential (HK and Macau) 

and commercial (HK)

Market comparison approach Premium on quality and 

location of the buildings

0.2% to 10%  

(2021: 0.2% to 10%)
    

The fair value of the residential properties is determined using market comparison approach by reference to recent sales price 

of comparable properties in close proximity on a price per square foot basis, adjusted for factors specific to the quality and 

location of the Group’s properties. Higher premium for higher quality buildings will result in a higher fair value measurement.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

The movements during the period in the balance of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Investment properties  

– Residential (HK and Macau) and commercial (HK)

At 1 January 97,900 95,300

Fair value adjustment (4,000) 2,600   

At 31 December 93,900 97,900
   

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases. Leases typically run for one to two years. None of the 

leases includes contingent rentals. As at 31 December 2022, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 

operating leases are HK$1,045,000 and are receivable within one year (2021: HK$245,000 receivable within one year).

(a) Amounts recognised in income statement for investment properties

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Rental income 2,033 1,713

Direct operating expenses from property that generated 

rental income (243) (204)   

1,790 1,509
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade receivables

– Related parties 534,665 650,876

– Others 1,421 1,705   

536,086 652,581   

Other receivables

– Dividend receivable from an associate 2,527 –

– Dividend receivable from a joint venture – 936,192

– Interest receivables 32,414 2,629

– Others 19,620 30,296   

54,561 969,117
   

590,647 1,621,698
   

The Group grants credit periods of 30 to 90 days or one year from the invoice date to its customers.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within 1 month 46,896 46,779

1 to 2 months 42,643 25,064

2 to 3 months 42,384 40,692

3 to 12 months 404,163 452,277

Over 12 months – 87,769   

536,086 652,581
   

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

HK$ 35,757 3,750

RMB 540,133 1,605,716

US$ 14,757 12,232   

590,647 1,621,698
   

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Note 3.1(c).
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21 INVENTORIES

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Spare parts 4,119 4,125   

4,119 4,125
   

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash at bank and on hand 110,939 891,032

Deposits at bank 1,593,445 2,859,400

Deposits at related financial institutions at call 785,713 447,109   

Cash and cash equivalents 2,490,097 4,197,541
   

Deposits at related financial institutions primarily represent deposit placed at Sinopec Century Bright Capital Investment Ltd. 

and Sinopec Finance Co., Ltd, financial institutions registered with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and China Banking 

Regulatory Commission respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents situated in the PRC amounted to RMB284,017,000 (2021: 

RMB22,604,000). Remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents  are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

RMB 318,114 27,712

HK$ 1,274,261 3,664,930

US$ 897,242 498,278

Euro 29 4,888

Others 451 1,733   

2,490,097 4,197,541
   

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss 

was immaterial.

131Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 TIME DEPOSIT WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY OF MORE THAN THREE MONTHS

The time deposit held by the Group is with original maturity of more than three months and less than one year. The carrying 

amount of time deposit is denominated in HK$.

While the time deposit is also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was 

immaterial.

24 SHARE CAPITAL

2022 2021

Number of

Shares Amounts

Number of

Shares Amounts

’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
     

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January and 31 December 2,486,160 248,616 2,486,160 248,616
     

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per 

share at meetings of the company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the company’s residual assets.

25 RESERVES

(a) The merger reserve of the Group represents 1) the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital of 

the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued for the acquisition under 

a Group reorganisation carried out in 1999; 2) the difference between the consideration paid by the Group and the 

existing book value of the net assets of Yu Ji Pipeline Company at the time of common control combination occurred in 

2015.

 The merger reserve resulted from the common control combination of Yu Ji Pipeline Company was transferred to 

retained earnings in 2020, together with the balance of Yu Ji Pipeline Company’s general reserve and specific reserve 

due to the disposal of the 100% equity interest in Yu Ji Pipeline Company.

(b) The general reserves of the Group represent the general reserve and enterprise development fund reserve applicable to 

subsidiaries which were established in accordance with the relevant PRC regulations. Neither the reserve nor the fund is 

available for distribution.

 The PRC entities are required to transfer at least 10% of its net profit for the year, as determined under the PRC 

accounting rules and regulations, to the general reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the paid-up capital. 

The transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of dividends to equity owners. The general reserve can be 

utilised to offset prior year’s losses or converted into paid-up capital.
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25 RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)  (Continued)

 In accordance with the articles of association of the PRC subsidiary, the board of directors can determine the percentage 

of appropriation each year to transfer a portion of its net profit to the enterprise development fund, which can be used 

for future development for the enterprise or converted into paid-up capital.

 The general reserves also included the excess of the consideration paid over the carrying value of the net assets acquired 

in respect of the acquisition of a 30% equity interest in Huade Petrochemical from Sinopec Guangzhou Petrochemical 

Complex in 2006 amounted to a debit balance of HK$141,279,000.

(c) According to relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required to transfer an amount to specific reserve for the safety 

production fund based on the annual turnover of crude oil jetty services in the PRC.

26 DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable to the year

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000   

Interim dividend declared and paid of HK$8 cents per ordinary 

share (2021: HK$8 cents per ordinary share) 198,893 198,893

Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period  

of HK$12 cents per ordinary share (2021: HK$12 cents 

per ordinary share) 298,339 298,339   

497,232 497,232
   

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK$12 cents per share, amounting to a total 

dividend of HK$298,339,000 is to be proposed at the annual general meeting on 12 June 2023. The final dividend to be 

proposed after the end of the reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable to the previous 
financial year, approved and paid during the year

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000   

Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year,  

approved and paid during the year, of HK$12 cents  

per ordinary share (2021: HK$12 cents per share) 298,339 298,339
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27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

2022 2021

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit before income tax: 609,734 1,156,943

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

– Property, plant and equipment 18 113,123 139,087

– Investment properties 19 1,238 1,238

– Right-of-use assets 17 24,028 24,128

Amortisation of deferred government grant 7 (1,443) (1,308)

Finance costs 852 1,147

Interest income (135,402) (81,236)

Net (gains)/losses on disposal of property, 

plant and equipment 7 (249,479) 803

Impairment loss on right-of-use assets 17 543,516 –

Impairment loss on property, plant and 

equipment 18 86,256 –

Impairment loss on interest in a joint venture – 156,551

Share of results of joint ventures 14 (540,403) (901,561)

Share of results of associates 13 (171,675) (181,934)

Changes in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (357) 532

Decrease in trade and other receivables 72,196 28,775

Decrease in trade and other payables (61,274) (5,871)    

Cash generated from operations 290,910 337,294
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27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Dividend 

payable

Lease 

liabilities Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Balance at 1 January 2022 25 22,812 22,837

Repayment of lease liabilities – (7,649) (7,649)

Dividend paid (497,232) – (497,232)    

Total changes from financing cash flows (497,232) (7,649) (504,881)

Non-cash changes

Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases 

during the year – 19,970 19,970

Net exchange and translation difference – (965) (965)

Finance cost charged to profit or loss – 852 852

Dividend declared 497,232 – 497,232    

Balance at 31 December 2022 25 35,020 35,045
    

Trade and 

other payables

Dividend 

payable

Lease 

liabilities Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Balance at 1 January 2021 779,782 25 28,420 808,227

Repayment of lease liabilities – – (7,216) (7,216)

Dividend paid – (497,232) – (497,232)

Decrease in amount due to 

an immediate holding company (779,782) – – (779,782)     

Total changes from financing cash flows (779,782) (497,232) (7,216) (1,284,230)

Non-cash changes

Net exchange and translation difference – – 363 363

Finance cost charged to profit or loss – – 1,147 1,147

Dividend declared – 497,232 – 497,232

Lease modification – – 98 98     

Balance at 31 December 2021 – 25 22,812 22,837
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28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade payables

– Related parties 738 284

– Others 36,480 116,679   

37,218 116,963   

Other payables

– Amounts due to immediate, intermediate holding companies 

and other related parties 15,357 15,097

– Accrued charges 90,726 81,045   

106,083 96,142   

143,301 213,105
   

The amounts due to immediate, intermediate holding companies and other related parties are unsecured, interest free and 

repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice date was as follows:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within 1 month 9,370 27,642

1 to 3 months 153 160

3 to 12 months 618 836

Over 12 months 27,077 88,325   

37,218 116,963
   

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

HK$ 33,385 20,145

RMB 54,540 137,888

US$ 22,254 22,256

Others 33,122 32,816   

143,301 213,105
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

The gross movements on the deferred income tax account are as follows:

Undistributed

profits of

a subsidiary

in the PRC

Undistributed

profits of joint

ventures

in the PRC

Undistributed

profits of an

associate

in the PRC

Accelerated

tax

depreciation Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January 2021 20,923 68,373 29,164 45,889 164,349

(Credited)/charged to income 

statement (Note 15) (7,016) 9,536 4,345 1,122 7,987

Exchange differences 553 2,116 902 1,363 4,934      

At 31 December 2021 14,460 80,025 34,411 48,374 177,270
      

At 1 January 2022 14,460 80,025 34,411 48,374 177,270

Charged/(credited) to income 

statement (Note 15) 17,624 (7,516) (1,157) 2,655 11,606

Exchange differences (1,174) (2,765) (2,680) (4,201) (10,820)      

At 31 December 2022 30,910 69,744 30,574 46,828 178,056
      

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax 

benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets in respect of tax 

losses attributable to a subsidiary of HK$528,300,000 (2021: HK$505,795,000), as the directors consider it is not probable 

that future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

30 COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contracted for but not provided for 32,665 80,899
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions with intermediate holding company and other related parties
The Group is part of a larger Group of companies under Sinopec Group, which is owned by the PRC government, and 

has significant transactions and relationship with Sinopec Group and its subsidiaries.

During the year, the Group had the following significant transactions with Sinopec Group companies, joint ventures and 

an associate:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Sinomart Development

Interest income from a fellow subsidiary 5,170 449

Professional fee expense to a fellow subsidiary 2,125 –

KII

Interest income from a fellow subsidiary 600 10

Huade Petrochemical

Jetty service fees from an intermediate holding company  

(Note (i)(a)) 511,626 533,258

Jetty service fees from a fellow subsidiary (Note (i)(a)) 2,125 –

Fuel oil jetty service fees from a fellow subsidiary (Note (i)(b)) 54,567 56,759

Insurance premium paid to a fellow subsidiary (Note (i)(c)) (1,104) (1,150)

Interest income from a fellow subsidiary 1,200 538

Oil products purchased from a related party (Note (i)(d)) (4,099) (5,093)

Joint ventures and an associate

Interest income from:

– Joint ventures (Note 7) 54,926 56,217

– An associate (Note 7) 2,774 3,066

Management fees income from a joint venture (Note 7) 3,943 3,631
   

The related party transactions in respect of jetty service fees from an intermediate holding company, fuel oil jetty service 

fees from a fellow subsidiary, oil products purchased from a related party and interest income from fellow subsidiaries 

constitute continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by 

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in section headed “Connected Transactions” of this annual report.

Other than the above mentioned related party transactions, the related party transactions disclosed in the above 

constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing 

Rules. However, those transactions are exempt from the disclosure requirement in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as 

they are either below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(a) or covered by a waiver obtained from The Stock 

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 25 June 1999, more details of which are set out in the section headed “Connected 

Transactions” of this annual report.
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Transactions with intermediate holding company and other related parties 
(Continued)
The balances with related parties are disclosed in Notes 20, 22 and 28 to the financial statements.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above transactions with related parties were conducted in 

the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms or in accordance with the agreements governing such 

transactions, and this has been confirmed by the independent non-executive directors.

Notes:

(i) Huade Petrochemical

(a) The jetty service fees were charged in accordance with the relevant service agreements and at rates based on the state-prescribed 

price regulated and standardised by the Ministry of Transport and government-approved prices approved by the Guangdong 

Provincial Price Supervision and Inspection and Anti-Trust Bureau in the PRC.

(b) The fuel oil jetty service fees were charged in accordance with the Sinopec Fuel Oil Sales Company Limited Framework Master 

Agreement, with reference to, among other factors, law and regulations, market conditions, normal commercial terms, trade 

customs and the principle of fairness.

(c) The insurance premium was calculated at rates that are set and revised by the ultimate holding company from time to time under 

the framework of the relevant provisions of a document jointly issued by the ultimate holding company and the Ministry of Finance 

in the PRC in 1998.

(d) The transaction price for purchasing oil products was determined in accordance with the state-prescribed prices of diesel published 

by the National Development and Reform Commission.

(b) Transactions with key management personnel
Key management solely represents directors of the Company. The compensation paid or payable to key management is 

shown as below:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Compensations to key management personnel

Directors’ fees (Note 32(a)) 1,520 1,520

Salaries, allowances and benefits-in-kind (Note 32(a)) 1,965 2,130

Bonuses (Note 32(a)) 1,802 2,613   

Total 5,287 6,263
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) Transactions with other state-controlled entities in the PRC
Apart from the aforementioned transactions with the Sinopec Group, associates and joint ventures, the Group also has 

transactions with other state-controlled entities. These transactions include but not limited to (i) jetty services fees; (ii) 

construction work; (iii) rendering and receiving services; and (iv) use of public utilities.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

32 BENEFITS ON INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executives emoluments
The remuneration of the directors for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out below:

2022

Fees Salaries

Discretionary

Bonus

Allowances

and benefits

in kind

Employer’s

contribution

to retirement

benefit

scheme Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive directors

Chen Yaohuan (Chairman) – – – – – –

Zhong Fuliang – – – – – –

Mo Zhenglin – – – – – –

Yang Yanfei – – – – – –

Zou Wenzhi – – – – – –

Ren Jiajun (Note (i)) – – – – – –

Sang Jinghua (General Manager)  

(Note (i)) – 865 1,802 1,100 – 3,767

Independent non-executive directors

Tam Wai Chu, Maria 380 – – – – 380

Fong Chung, Mark 380 – – – – 380

Wong Yau Kar, David 380 – – – – 380

Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla 380 – – – – 380       

1,520 865 1,802 1,100 – 5,287
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32 BENEFITS ON INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives emoluments (Continued)
2021

Fees Salaries 

Discretionary

Bonus

Allowances 

and benefits

in kind

Employer’s 

contribution 

to retirement 

benefit

scheme Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive directors

Chen Yaohuan (Chairman) – – – – – –

Zhong Fuliang – – – – – –

Mo Zhenglin – – – – – –

Yang Yanfei – – – – – –

Zou Wenzhi – – – – – –

Ren Jiajun (Note (i)) – – – – – –

Wang Guotao (Note (i)) – – – – – –

Ye Zhijun (Note (i)) – – 1,310 613 – 1,923

Sang Jinghua (General Manager)  

(Note (i)) – 964 1,303 553 – 2,820

Independent non-executive directors

Tam Wai Chu, Maria 380 – – – – 380

Fong Chung, Mark 380 – – – – 380

Wong Yau Kar, David 380 – – – – 380

Wong Pui Sze, Priscilla 380 – – – – 380       

1,520 964 2,613 1,166 – 6,263
       

Note:

(i) On 19 January 2021, Ye Zhijun resigned as executive director and managing director, and Wang Guotao resigned as executive director. 

On the same date, Sang Jinghua was appointed as executive director and general manager and Ren Jiajun was appointed as executive 

director.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
No retirement benefits were paid to any director and the chief executive of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking 

during the year (2021: nil).
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32 BENEFITS ON INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no emoluments was paid to any director of the Company and the 

Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

(d) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a 

party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end 

of the year or at any time during the year.

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 
COMPANY
Statement of Financial Position of the Company

As at 31 December

Note 2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

Assets

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries 5,259,858 5,783,178

Dividend receivables (b) 4,400,000 –    

Total non-current assets 9,659,858 5,783,178    

Current assets

Other receivables 35 –

Dividend receivables (b) – 3,900,000

Cash and cash equivalents 38 39    

Total current assets 73 3,900,039
    

Total assets 9,659,931 9,683,217
    

Equity and liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Share capital 248,616 248,616

Reserves (a) 9,406,406 9,430,418    

Total equity 9,655,022 9,679,034    

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 4,909 4,183    

Total liabilities 4,909 4,183    

Total equity and liabilities 9,659,931 9,683,217
    

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2023 and was 

signed on its behalf:

Chen Yaohuan

Chairman

Sang Jinghua

Executive Director
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company

Share 

premium

Contributed

surplus

Retained 

earnings Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January 2021 6,300,684 242,397 3,403,892 9,946,973

Interim dividends declared in 

respect of the current year – – (198,893) (198,893)

Total comprehensive income 

for the year – – (19,323) (19,323)

Final dividends declared in 

respect of the prior year – – (298,339) (298,339)     

At 31 December 2021 6,300,684 242,397 2,887,337 9,430,418
     

At 1 January 2022 6,300,684 242,397 2,887,337 9,430,418

Interim dividends declared in 

respect of the current year – – (198,893) (198,893)

Total comprehensive income 

for the year – – 473,220 473,220

Final dividends declared in  

respect of the prior year – – (298,339) (298,339)     

At 31 December 2022 6,300,684 242,397 2,863,325 9,406,406
     

Notes:

(a) The application of the share premium account is governed by section 40 of Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the differences between the aggregate shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries at the 

date on which the Company became the holding company of the Group and the nominal amount of the share capital of the Company issued 

under a Group reorganisation.

 Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the 

Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share 

premium accounts.

(c) At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, including the 

contributed surplus and retained earnings, was HK$3,105,722,000 (2021: HK$3,129,734,000). After the end of the reporting period, 

the directors proposed a final dividend of HK$12 cents (2021: HK$12 cents) per ordinary share, amounting to HK$298,339,000 (2021: 

HK$298,339,000). The dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Dividend receivable
On 2 September 2019, the subsidiaries of the Company, Sinomart Development and KII, had resolved to, respectively 

distribute special dividends of HK$3,000 million and HK$900 million to the Company. On 30 November 2022, Sinomart 

Development and KII, had resolved to, respectively distribute special dividends of HK$400 million and HK$100 million to 

the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, such dividend receivables are not expected to be realised within twelve months after the 

reporting period.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Unrestated) (Restated)

(Note b) (Note a)

Results

Continuing operations

Revenue 1,655,633 595,577 601,239 636,517 616,064
      

Operating profit/(loss) 660,371 182,572 325,902 52,643 (179,194)

Finance income 3,168 367 9,990 21,952 77,702

Finance costs (152,020) (31,397) (5,342) (1,147) (852)

Share of results of associates 151,289 185,402 169,936 181,934 171,675

Share of results of joint ventures 825,594 891,211 886,738 901,561 540,403
      

Profit before income tax 1,488,402 1,228,155 1,387,224 1,156,943 609,734

Income tax expense (226,994) (142,913) (120,656) (107,259) (207,093)
      

Discontinued operation

Profit for the year from discontinued operation – 199,162 1,034,802 – –
      

Net profit for the year 1,261,408 1,284,404 2,301,370 1,049,684 402,641
      

Assets and liabilities (As at 31 December)

Fixed assets 6,946,832 6,494,675 2,217,999 2,118,498 1,539,465

Interests in associates 866,711 954,994 1,041,395 1,151,511 1,063,145

Interests in joint ventures 6,902,973 6,813,973 7,558,826 6,753,155 6,672,394

Net current (liabilities)/assets (2,867,297) (1,871,948) 4,098,937 5,584,131 5,851,040

Deferred income tax liabilities (130,299) (146,724) (164,349) (177,270) (178,056)

Government grants (20,136) (18,399) (15,774) (14,909) (53,714)

Non-current lease liabilities – (11,709) (21,943) (15,943) (27,910)
      

Net assets 11,698,784 12,214,862 14,715,091 15,399,173 14,866,364
      

Equity (As at 31 December)

Share capital 248,616 248,616 248,616 248,616 248,616

Reserves 11,413,711 11,930,496 14,431,453 15,116,247 14,615,679

Non-controlling interests 36,457 35,750 35,022 34,310  2,069
      

Total equity 11,698,784 12,214,862 14,715,091 15,399,173 14,866,364
      

Basic earnings per share for profit 

attributable to equity holders of  

the Company HK50.76 cents HK51.69 cents HK92.59 cents HK42.25 cents HK17.49 cents
      

Notes:

(a) Due to the completion of the disposal of Sinopec Yu Ji Pipeline Company Limited, a subsidiary, on 30 September 2020, 
the comparative financial information of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 has been restated to reflect the 
exclusion of financial information of the disposed subsidiary.

(b) The financial information of the Group for that year has not been restated as the Directors consider that the unrestated 
financial information is more appropriate to reflect year-on-year comparison of the Group’s business operation.
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